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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

To the shareholders of Cie Automotive, S.A.

We have audited the consolidated annual accounts of CIE Automotive, S.A. (the parent company) and
subsidiaries {the Group) consisting of the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2009, the
consolidated income statement, the statement of overall consolidated income statement, the statement
of changes in consclidated equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and the notes to the
consolidated annual accounts for the year then ended, the preparation of which is the responsibility of
the Directors of the parent company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consclidated
annual accounts taken as a whole, based on the work carried out in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in Spain which require the examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the
consolidated annual accounts and an evaluation of their overall presentation, the accounting principles
applied and the estimates made.

In accordance with commercial legislation, the Directors of the parent company present, for the purposes
of comparison, the figures from the 2008 consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement,
overall consolidated income statement, the statement of changes in consolidated equity, consclidated
cash flow statement and the notes to the consolidated annual accounts in addition to those from 2009,
which differ from those expressed for that year due to the application of International Financial Reporting
Standard 1 (Revised) - 1AS 1, as is described in Note 2.1 of the accompanying notes to the consolidated
annual accounts. Our opinion refers solely to the annual accounts for 2009. On 27 February 2008 we
issued our audit report on the 2008 consolidated annual accounts in which we expressed a qualified
opinion.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated annual accounts for 2009 express, in all material
respects, a true and fair view of consolidated equity and the consolidated financial situation of CIE
Automotive, S.A. and subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 and the consolidated results of its operations, of
changes in consolidated equity and consolidated statement of cash flow for the year then ended and
contain sufficient information necessary for an adequate interpretation and understanding, in accordance
with the international financial reporting standards adopted by the European Union applied on a
consistent basis with respect to the figures and information for the previous year which have been
included in the 2009 consolidated annual accounts for the purposes of comparison.

The accompanying consolidated Directors' Report for 2009 contains the information that the Parent
Company’s Directors consider relevant to the Consolidated Group's, the development of its businesses
and other matters and does not form an integral part of the consoiidated annual accounts. We have
verified that the accounting information in the consolidated Directors’ Report coincides with that
contained in the consolidated annua! accounts for 2009. Our work as auditors is limited to checking the
consolidated Directors’ Report within the scope already mentioned in this paragraph and it does not
include a review of information other than that obtained from the accounting records kept by CIE
Automotive, S.A. and subsidiaries.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L.

Original in Spanish signed by Ricardo Celada
Audit Partner

26 February 2010

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. - R. M. Madrid, hoja 87.250-1, falio 75, tomo 9.267, libro 8.054, seccién 32
Inscrita en el R.0.A.C. con &f nlimero 50242 — CIF: B-79031250
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2008

(Thousand eurao)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Non-current financial assets
Investments in associated companies
Deferred tax asseats

Other non-current assets

Current assets

fnventaries

Trade and other receivables
QOther current assets

Current tax assets

Other current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Disposal groups of assets classified as held-for-sale

Total assets

At 31 December

Note 2009 2008

6 693,998 616,244
7 210,067 173.300
7 42,423 41,469
8 8,911 9,927
8 1,739 1,888
23 58,736 41,492
a 14.898 15,811
1,030,772 900,211

11 138,335 176,044
10 180,193 166,836
- 2,560 1,522
- 29,033 38,095
23,075 22,201

12 124,413 92,091
497,609 496,789

13 9,534 .
1,537,915 1,397,000

The accompanying Notes on pages 8 to 123 are an integral part of these consolidated

annual accounts
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2009 AND 2008

(Thousand euroa)

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributahle to the Company’s sharcholders
Share capitat

Treasury sharas

Share premium

Reserves and retained earnings
Cumulative exchange differences
Minority shareholdings

Total equity

Deferred revenues
LIABILITIES

Non-current Fabilities
Nor-current provisions
Longterm borrowings

Oeferred tax liabilities

(ther non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Trade and other payables
Other current financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities

Current provisions

Other current liabifities
Disposal groups of liabilities ciassified as held-for-sale

Total Eabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying Motes on pages 8 to 123 are
annual accounts

At 31 December

Note 2009 2008
14 28,500 28,500
14 (4,203) [3,748)
14 33,752 33,752
15 237,579 231,425
15/16 (30,942} (57,181)
18 24,449 22,118
289,135 254,866
19 30,738 23,202
25 27,947 26,108
20 363,360 430,412
23 45,902 30,306
pp 47,801 48,938
485,010 535,762
20 312,908 212,134
21 290,013 269,749
8 8,823 6,579
22 29,687 23,821
25 14,550 10,168
oo 73,433 60,719
729,414 583,170
13 3,618 .
1,218,042 1,118,932
1,537,915 1,397,000

an integral part of these cansolidated
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 AND

2008
(Thousand euro)

OPERATING REVENUES
Net revenues
Other operating revenue
Change in inventaries of finished goods and work in progress

OPERATING EXPENSES
Consumption of raw materials end secondary materials
Employee benefit expenses
Depreciation /amortization
Other operating expenses
Other net profits / [losses)

OPERATING PROFIT
Financial income
Financial expense
Met exchange differences
Gains/ losses financial instruments  at fair value
Share in profits campanies carried under the equity method

PROFIT BEFORE TAXES
thcome tax

PROFIT ON CONTINUED ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXES
LOSS ON CONTINUED ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXES

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Profit /(loss) attributable to minority shareholdings

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
COMPANY SHAREHOLDERS

Year ended 31 December

Earning per share from continuing and discontinued activities attributable to

equity holders during the year [expressed in euro per share)
- Basic:

From continuing operations

From discontinued operations
- Diluted:

From continuing operations

From discontinued operations

The accompanying Notes on pages 8 to 123 are
annual accounts

Note 2009 2008

1,167,463 1,533,809
26 1,148,013 1,455,310
26 39,807 63,640
11/26 (31,357) 14,859
(1,104,807) _ [(1,430,149)
11 [656,440) (945,932)
28 [254,840) (254,641)
6/7 (63,718) (76,977)
27 (133,316) {161,172)
a5 3,507 8,573
52,656 103,660
29 11,852 17,647
20 (56,796) (55,201)
29 20,691 2,616
29 (171) (870)
B (1,589) (100)
26,643 67,752
30 (11.684] (15.065]
14,979 51,697
13 (6,946) -
8,033 51,697
18 (3,087) (2,126)
11,120 53,823

31 0.10 0.47

0.14 0.47

(0.04) -

31 0.10 0.47

0.14 0.47

(0.04) -

an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED OVERALL INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2009 AND 2008
(Thousand euro)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER OVERALL PROFIT/(LOSS)
Cash flow hedges
Differences on exchange
Tax effect
TOTAL AOVERALL PROFIT/{LOSS) NET OF TAXES

Attributable to:
- Parent company sharehalders
- Minority shareholders

Year ended 31 December

Note 2009 2008
8,033 51,697
B8 (2.103) (6,782}
31,330 {69,175}
718 1,898
37,979 (22,362)
35,975 {16,709}
2,004 {5,653}
37,979 (22,362)

The accompanying Notes on pages 8 to 123 are an integral part of these consolidated

annual accounts
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31
DECEMEBER 2009 AND 2008

(Thousand euro)

Balance at 1 Januery 2008
Total overall profit for 2008
Distribution of 2007 profit/[loss)
Complementary dividend for 2007

Acquisition/sale of treasury
shares

Businass combinations
[note 34)

Other movements (*}
Bal at 31D ber 2008

(*] Basically relates to the distribution of reserves agreed in 2008 in certain companies of the Group (CIE Autometal and
Durametal, see Appendix), paid out to minority interests in these companies, €10,923 thousand, and the contribution

Attributahle to the Company’s sharehaldars

Reserve
for first
Conversian
IFRS-EU and Accumulate
other ] d
Share Treasury 5"'“_"“ revaluation differences Retainad Interim Minarity
capital stock premium reserves oh exchange aarnings dividend shareholding Total
[Note 14) (Note 14) [Note 14) {Note 15) [Mata 16) {Note 15) [(Note 15} 5 [Mate 18) aguity
28,500 {2,108) 33,752 5,777 8,467 204,393 16,811) 24,931 296,901
- - - (4,884) (65,648) 53,823 - 15,653) 22,362)
i ) . - - (6,8%1) 6,811 - -
- - - - - (7,975} - [752] (8.727)
- (1.6840) - - - - - - (1.640)
- - - - - - - {827) (827)
- - - - - [12,898] - 4,219 (8.679)
28,500 13,748) 33,752 893 {57,181) 230,532 - 22,118 254,866

of funds owing to the acquisition of a holding by minority interests, €5,787 thousand (Note 1).

The accompanying Notes on pages 8 to 123 are an integral part of these consolidated

annual accounts
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2009 AND 2008

(Thousand euro)

Balance at 1 January 2009
Total overail profit for 2009
Distribution of 2008 prafit/[loss)

Acquisition/sale of sreasury
shares

Business combinaticns
Other movements [*]
Balance at 31 December 2009

Attributable to the Company’s shareholders

Reserve
for first
Conversion
IFRS-EU and Accumulate
other . d
Share Treasury Eha.re revaluation differences Retained Minority
capital stock premium resarves on exchange earnings sharaholding Total
[Note 14) ([Mote 14) (Note 14) [Note 15) [{Nate 16) {Note 15) s [Note 18) enquity
28,500 (3,748) 33,752 a93 157,181) 230,532 22,118 254,866
- - - (1.384] 26,239 11,120 2,004 37,979
- (455) - - . - - (455)
- - - - - - 503 an3
- - - - - [3.682) (5786) (4,158}
28,500 {4,203) 33,752 (491} {30,942) 238,070 24,449 289,135

£ Basically relates to the distribution of reserves agreed in 2009 in certain companies of the Group [CIE Autometal and
Durametal, see Appendix], paid out to minority interests in these companies, €3,098 thousand, and the contribution of
funds owing to the acquisition of a holding by minority interests, €530 thousand.

The accompanying Notes on pages 8 to 123 are an integral part of these consolidated

annual accounts
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
AND 2008
{Thousand euro)

Year ended
31 December

Notes 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from continuing and discontinued operations 33 157,648 124,765
Interest collected 9,870 17,404
Interest paid (52,014] (54,538}
Taxes paid {11,354) (13,556}
Net cash generated from operating activities 104,250 74,075
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition /disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 1/35 (24,4865] (30,840}
Acquisition of praperty, plant and equipment s} (84,839] (146,394}
Income from sale of property, plant and equipment 33 8515 17.356
Acquisition of intangible assets 7 {7,032) (15,310}
Acquisition/ disposals of financial assets held to maturity and deposits 8 1.851 20,287
Acquisitions / disposals of other non-current assets =) 1.013 2,885
Capital grants received 1 9,235 2,959
Cash ffows from investment activities 13 (419) -
Net cash used in investing activities - {86,301 (149,147)
Cash fiows from financing activities

Acquisition,/sale of treasury shares 14 (455} [1,840)
Income {net of reimbursements] from high rotation borrowings 20 8P,823 160,088
Repayment of loans 20 {53,889} {37,554)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders 15 - {7,979)
Distribution of reserves to minority interests 18 4,112} (13,6845)
Net cash used in financing activities - 24,373 99,285
Net (decrease}/increase in cash and bank overdrafts 32,322 24,213
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdraits at the start of the year 12 ‘ 92.091 57,878
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the

year 12 124,413 92,091

The accompanying Notes on pages 8 to 123 are an integral part of these consoclidated
annual accounts
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2009 AND 2008
(Thausand eura)

1. General information and Regulatory Framewark

1.1 CIE Autoamative group and activities

CIE Automotive Group has carried out its activities in two different sectors: automotive and biofuels.
Set out below is a descripticn of the two lines of business carried out by CIE Automotive Group:

- Automotive

CIE Automotive, S.A. is the parent company of an industrial group formed by several companies
that are mainly engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of automobile components and sub-
units on the world market. It applies complementary technologies — aluminum, molding, metals
and plastics - and several associated processes: welding, painting and assembly.

lts main facilities are located in Europe: Spain (Alava, Barcelona, Gadiz, Guipizcoa, Orense and
Vizcaya), France, Portugal, Czech Republic, Romania, Lithuania, Nafta (Mexico), in South America
(Brazil], the People’s Bepublic of China and Russia,

- Biofuels

The CIE Group is also involved in this business which is in the initial stages of development and
which, moreaver, offers synergies with the automotive business of CIE Automaotive with respect to
industry, project management, R&D, purchases and finance. The Biofuel business is made up of
various companies devoted to the production and distribution of biofuels, which are listed and
detailed in the table “Group structure” which is presented below. Note 1.2 to these annual
accounts summarizes the main lines of the regulatory framework of this new business,

The principal facilities from where this activity is carried on are located in Spain [Alava, Vizcaya
and Madrid} and Guatemala. Similarly, there are biodiesel plants under construction in Spain
(Alava and Huelva).

CIE Automotive, S5.A. [a listed company] currently, directly or indirectly, owns 100% of CIE Azkoitia,
S.L., CIE Bérriz, S.L. and CIE Inversiones e Inmuebles, S.L.U., RS Automotive B.V., ClIE-Avtocom Kaluga,
LLC, CiE-Avtocom, LLC and 80.5% of CIE Automotive Bioenergia, S.L. which are the holding companies
of the Group’s production companies. All other indirect shareholdings are listed in Appendix | to these
Notes to the annual accounts,

The parent company's registered address is located at “Calle Iparraguirre 34 - 2° derecha, 48011
Bilbao (Vizcaya-Spainj”.
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2009 AND 2008
(Thousand eura)

Group structure

The list of subsidiaries and associates at 31 December 2009, together with information concerning the
same, is set out in the Appendix to these Notes.

Except for the companies set out below, all subsidiaries have been consolidated under the full
consolidation method.

The companies consolidated under the equity method are as follows (Note 8.d):;

% interest

2009 2008
Belgium Forge, N.V. 1) 100% 100%
Biocombustibles de Zierbana, S.A. {2) (3] 16.1% 13.69%
Glycoleo, s.r.l. (2] 32.2% 27.38%
Biocombustibles La Seda, S.L. [2) [3)} 32.2% 27.38%
ClE-Avtocom Kaluga, LLC [*] [2) 35% -
CiE-Avtocom Kaluga, LLC (*] (2) 35% -

(1]
(2]
(3

(*)

In liquidation/ dormant
There is no contral.
Companies with facilities under construction /being launched.

On 24 November 2009, the Group has concluded an agreement together with the Bussian companies SAM
LTD, LLC and JSC KZAE to incorporate CIE-AVTOCOM, LLC and CIE-AVTOCOM KALUGA,LLC, which are joint
companies of Russian nationality.

CiE Automotive will own 35% of CIE-AVTOCOM, LLC and CIE-AVTOCOM KALUGA, LLC and the aforementionad
Russian companies own the remaining the rermaining 65%.

Within the framework of this transaction, at the end of 2008 the group maintained a stake in these
companies.

Changes in the scope of consolidation
2009

Un 23 January 2008, through the investee company {BO.5% stake) CIE Automotive Bioenergia S.L., the
Group formalized the acquisition of 14.923% of Bionor Transformacion, S.A.U., thereby becoming the
single shareholder of that company (Note 35).

Within the options agreed between CIE Bérriz, S.L. and Kuo Automotriz, S.A. de C.V. (up until 2010)
covering 50% of the shares in the “Joint Venture” CIE DESC Automative, S.A.P.l. de C.V. agreed on 4
March 2008, the Group has chosen to partially exercise options and carried out the following
transactions during the first half of 2009:

On 30 March 20089, through its wholly owned investee company CIE Bérriz de México, S.A. de C.V.,
formalized the acquisition from its 50% owned investee company GIE DESC Automative, S.A.P.. de
C.V. of all the shares representing the share capital of the Mexican company CIE Celaya S.A.P.|. de
C.V. {Notes 35 and 37). '

In addition, on 25 May 2009, CIE Bérriz de México S.A. de C.V. acquired 100% of the share capital
of Pintura, Estampado y Montaje, S.A.P.l. de C.V., which until then had been wholly owned by the
50% investee company CIE DESC Automotive, S.A.P.l. de C.V. {Notes 35 and 37).
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2009 AND 2008
(Thousand euro)

On 9 April 2009 the company CIE Bérriz S.L. acquired the remaining 49% of the Czech company CIE
Joamar, S.R.0. and thereby wholly acquired that company, as well as 100% of the shares in the
Moroccan company Joamar Maroc, S.A.R.L. (Note 35).

On 2 July 2009, through its subsidiary Bionor Transformacién, S.A.U. the Group formalized the
acquisition of the remaining 49% of the Madrid company Reciclado de Residuas Grasos, 5.L.U. for €2.04
million. With this acquisition Bionor Transformaciéon, S.A.U. became the owner of all the shares: of
Heciclado de Residuos Grasos, S.L.U. (Note 35).

In addition, on 9 July the Group company Bionor Transformacion, S.A.U. acquired the remaining 30% of
the company Bionor Tecnologia, S.L.U. for €250 thousand and the acquiring company therefore now
whaolly owns the shares in Bionor Tecnologia, S.L.U. (Note 35).

On 1 September 20083, together with the Dutch investment fund VEP Fund | Holding Cooperative W.A.,
which is administered by Value Enhancement Partners, the Group has incorporated RS Automotive B.V.,
a Dutch joint venture in which both partners hold 50% (Note 37).

On 24 July 2009, the Group has disposed of all of the shares in the company Matxitxako Diversificada,
Sociedad de Inversion de Capital Variable, S.A.

The operation generated a loss of €7 thousand, which is broken down below:

Thousand euro

Assets and liabilities sold:

Cash and deposits 3,088
Current liabilities 10}
Net assets sold 3,078
Selling price (cash) 3,071
Profit/(loss) on the operation (7)

On 14 September 2008 the Group company CIE Automotive Parts (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., sold 100% of its
stake in Shanghai Sandum Auto Parts Manufacture Co., Ltd.

The transaction gave rise to a profit of €468 thousand, broken down as follows:

Thaousand euro

Assets and kabilities sold;

Cash 1,301
Property, plant and equipment 5,181
Goodwill 722
Deferred tax liability (488)
Current liabilities {1,275)
Net assets sold 5,441
Selling price (cash) 5,808
Profit/(loss) on the operation 468
Cash held by the measured company (1.301}
Cash obtained from the transaction 4,608

10.-
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CiE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2009 AND 2008
(Thousand eurao)

2008

In 2008 CIE Compiégne, S.A.S., which in the previous year had been consolidated under the equity
method, was fully consolidated.

On 4 March 2008 CIE BERRIZ, S.L. and KUO AUTOMOTRIZ, S.A. de C.V., both holding 50% of the
“joint venture” CIE DESC AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. de C.V., entered into an agreement under which:

- CIE BERRIZ, S.L., through its wholly-owned newly-formed subsidiary, CIE BERRIZ DE MEXICO, S.A.
de C.V. will acquire 100% of the share capital of PINTURA Y ENSAMBLES DE MEXICO, S.A. de
C.V.,until now wholly-owned by CIE DESC Automative, S.A.P.l. de C.V. [Note 35).

Similarly, KUO AUTOMOTRIZ, S.A. de C.V. has granted a purchase option in favor of GIE BERRIZ,
S.L. so that it may itself or through the company it may freely designate, acquire 50% of the
share capital of CIE DESC AUTOMOTIVE, 5.A.P.I. de C.V. (the remaining 50% already pertained to
CIE Bérriz, 5.L.). The purchase option for the remaining 50% of CIE DESC Automotive, S.A.P.1. de
C.V. may be executed during the first quarter of 2008 and during the first quarter of 2010.
Furthermaore, and within this context, CIE Bérriz, S.L. itself, or through another company it may
freely designate, may make partial acquisitions of subsidiaries of CIE DESC Automative S.A.P.l. de
C.V. during the first quarter of 2003 {Notes 8 and 37).

On 11 January 2008 a capital increase was formalized in Bioauto Participagdes, S.A., as a resuit of
which the CIE Automotive Group indirectly owns 71.8% of the subgroup Biocauto - 65% directly
thorough CIE Autometal, S.A. and the remainder indirectly through Bionor Transformacion, S.A. —
(10D% at 31 December 2007). After the acquisition of the 14.923% stake in the company Bionor
Transformacion, S.A. the indirect stake currently held totals 73.05%.

Also, on 11 January 2008, a capital increase was formalized in CIE Autometal, S.A. consisting of the
creation of 2,871,859 nonwvoting preferred shares with no voting rights or par value, for a joint
amount of 10 million Brazilian real, that was fully subscribed by members of the Company’s
management and former shareholders.

On 13 November 2007, CIE Autometal, S.A., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIE Automotive, entered into
an agreement for the formation, together with NNE Minas Agro Florestal Ltda. and a series of Brazilian
researchers related to NNE, of a joint venture to engage in the following activities, among others:

(i) The production of jairopha curcas seed and shoots, with the introduction of new varieties
suited to Brazil and the sowing of an own plantation and exploitation of jatropha curcas,

{ii) GGuidance to local farmers concerning the expansion of jatropha curcas plantation areas;

(i} The provision of technology and technical assistance; and

(iv) the future implementation of a plant to extract jatropha curcas oil in the region in order to

take advantage of jatropha curcas products and derivatives and leverage other business
opportunities connected with this crop and the production of biofuels.

This company was incorporated in 20D8.
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Shareholders of the Group’s parent company

At 31 December 2008 the direct and indirect stake held by the parent company's majority
shareholder, Instituto Sectorial de Promaocién y Gestion de Empresas, S.A., amounted to 64.752% (31
December 2008: 64.752%)

Preparation of the accounts

These annual accounts were prepared by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2010. These
consolidated annual accounts have yet to be ratified by Shareholders and management expects them to
be approved without any maodification.

1.2 Regulatory Framework

The Biofuel business is subject to a specific regulatory framewaork.

The fossil fuel sector in Spain is mainly governed by Law 34,/1998, of 7 October 1998, and its
enabling regulations and Royal Decree Laws 6/1999 and 6,/2000, of 16 April 1999 and 23 June
2000, respectively, which have driven competition and the liberalization of the sector.

On 27 August 2004 Royal Decree 1716/2004 came into effect, developing the Law on Fassil Fuels,
in relation to the obligation to maintain minimum inventory levels in the petrol and natural gas sectors
and the obligation to diversify natural gas suppiies. The parties subjects to these obligations are defined
together the content of the same, the amount, form and location of these inventories, reporting
obligations and administrative competences relating to the inspection and control of these obligations.
Royal Decree 1716/2004 also governs the operation of Corporacion de Reservas Estratégicas de
Praductos Petroliferos {CORES) and shortages of fossil fuel supplies. '

In this respect, the subsidiary VIA Operador Petrolifero, S.L.U., as an oil production operator, and in
accordance with Royal Decree 1716,/2004, of 23 July 2004, is subject to the obligation to maintain
minimum inventory levels of oil products. Subsequently, under the Decision of 26 October 2007 of the
Directorate General for Energy and Mining Policy (Official State Gazette 31,/10,/2007), oil production
operators are required to maintain minimum inventory levels equivalent to 90 days' sales, of which
Corporacién de Reservas Estratégicas de Productos Petroliferos (CORES) covers 37 days and the
operators 53 days. Inspection and control of compliance with this obligation are handied by Corporacion
de Reservas Estratégicas (CORES]), which was set up on 7 July 19395,

In order to maintain these buffer stocks, the subsidiary VIA Operador Petrolifero, S.L.U. carries out,
when necessary, product exchanges {under repos} with other operators or with other operators at the
price agreed in the contract. These transactions are recorded at the amount resulting from the
settlement of the transaction as other operating income and expenses and apportioned, if appropriate,
over the contract term.

Additionally, Article 51 of Law 38/19392 on Special Taxes lays down a five- year exemption, which may
be extended further, for biofuel production projects.
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On 14 October 2008 the Official State Gazette published Order ITC/2877 /2008, of 9 Octocber 2008,
in which it established an arrangement for promoting the use of biofuels and other renewable fuels for
transport purposes. The arrangement for promoting the use of biofuels and other renewable fuels far
transport purposes, that is approved through this Order, will enable the overall target to be attained
with respect to 7% of the energy content of petrol and diesel marketed for such purposes. This Order
lays down the obligation for subject parties to evidence annually to the certifying entity ownership of the
minimum amount. of biofuel certificates that enable compliance with the objectives of the following table,
a certificate being understood as the document issued at the party's request, reporting that it has
evidenced sales or consumption of tons of oil equivalent (toe) of biofuels in a specific year:

2008 2009 2010
Biofuel objectives 1.9% 3.4% 2.83%

The Law defines a penalty for non-compliance with this obligation of 350 euro per biofuel certificate not
reached.

However, the procedures necessary to properly regulate the operation of the mechanism established
by that faw have not yet been implemented.

On 13 June 2008 the Official State Gazette published the increase in the special duty levied on fuels,
which rose by 29 euro/m?® to 307 euro/m°.

2. Summary of the main accounting policies applied

The main accounting policies adopted when preparing these consolidated annual accounts are
described below. These policies have been applied consistently for all the years presented.

2.1 Basis of presentation

The Group’s consolidated annual accounts at 31 December 2009 have been drawn up in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted for utilization in the European Union (IFRS-
EU} and approved under European Commission Regulations in force at 31 December 2008.

The consolidated annual accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial assets and liabilities (including derivatives)at fair value
through profit and loss.

EU-IFRS

The preparation of consolidated annual accounts under IFRS-EU requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. The application of IFRS also requires that management exercise judgment in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Note 4 discloses the areas that require a
higher level of judgment or entail greater complexity, and the areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant for the consolidated annual accounts.
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a) Standards adopted early
fn 2008 and 2009 no [FRS standards were adopted early.

b) Mandatory standards, amendments and interpretation for all years starting 1 January
2009

IFRS 8, "Operating segments”

[FRS 8 replaces IAS 14 and brings segment reporting into line with US SFAS 131 “Disclosures about
segments of an enterprise and related information”. The new standard requires segment information
be presented on the same basis used by management for internal purposes, i.e. segmented financial
information is presented in line with internal information prepared and supplied to the maximum
decision making body within the company.

The application of this standard has changed the number of segments reported, but it has not required
any substantial change in the manner of reporting in fine with the internal information prepared and
supplied to the maximum decision making bodies. It has not been necessary to reassign goodwili to
other segments.

The comparative figures for 2D08 have been restated in accordance with this change.

IAS 1 [Revised), “Presentation of financial statements”.

This revised standard requires revenues and expenses associated with non-shareholder third parties,
which are recognized directly under equity, and which had been presented in the statement of changes
in equity, are presented separately within the income statement. Companies may choose to present a
single statement ["Overall income statement”) or two statements, one that reflects the components of
profit and loss (separate "profit and loss account”) and a second statement based on results and
presenting the components of the other overall resuits ("Overall income statement'), and each must
reflect the associated tax effect and any reclassifications applied during the year to each statement,
either in the main statement or in the notes to the annual accounts. When a company re-expresses or
reclassifies the comparative information it must present a balance sheet re-expressed at the beginning
of the comparative period in its consolidated annual accounts, in addition to the balance sheet at the
end of the current year and the comparative period {i.e., three balance sheets).

The Group has chosen to present one profit and loss account and one overall income statement and as
a resuit has changed the presentation of 2008 accordingly.

IAS 23 [Revised]), “Borrowing costs”.

This Standard requires companies to capitalize borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction, production of a qualified asset {any which necessarily requires a substantial
period of time before being ready for use or for sale) as part of the cost of the asset. The option of
immediately recognizing these borrowing costs as an expense for the period is eliminated.

The Group has decided to apply the revised IAS 23 on a prospective basis as from 1 January 2008,
although it had already been capitalizing interest in line with the preceding standard.
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IFRS 7 [Revised} — "Financial instruments: Disclosures”

This revision requires further disclosures regarding the measurement of fair value and liquidity risk.
Specifically, the amendment requires that fair value measurements be disclosed in accordance with a
hierarchical order of fair value parameters and that disclosures regarding liquidity risk be broader in
scope.

The details and information required in the notes relating to these annual accounts have been included.

IFRS 2 [Revised), “Share-based payments - Conditions for irrevocability [or consolidation) of the
concession and cancellations”

This revision clarifies the conditions determining the irrevocable nature of the concession of rights, as
well as the determination of the treatment of unessential conditions and cancellations of share-based
payments. The conditions of service and performance determine the irrevocable nature of the
concession conditions. Other conditions (non-essentiallare not considered to be concession conditions
but will be taken into account for the purposes of calculating the fair value of the equity instruments
assigned. These other conditions do not have any effect on the number of rights that are expected to
be consolidated, or on the subsequent measurement at the concession date. The revision clarifies that
the failure to comply with a non-essential condition for irrevocability, either on the part of the company
or the other party, will be treated as a canceliation.

The Company does not recognize any share-based payments.

IAS 32 — [Revised) “Financial instruments: Presentation” and I1AS 1 [Revised] “Presentation of
financial statements™-"Puttable instruments and obligations arising on liquidation”,

These modifications require certain financial instruments issued by the company that had been
classified as liahilities, despite having characteristics that are similar to ordinary shares, be classified
as equity. The financial instruments that may be surrendered and instruments {or their components)
that give rise to a company obligation to provide a thirdparty with a fraction of its net assets in the
event of equity liquidation will be classified as equity, provided that the instruments have certain
characteristics and strictly meet certain conditions.

The Company does not recognize any financial instruments that have been affected by this standard.

Other revisions to IFRS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and meagurement” and IFRIC 9
"Reassessment of embedded derivatives” - "Embedded derivatives”

This amendment is mandatory for all years ending as from 31 December 2003. The amendments
clarify that when a financial asset leaves a category of "at fair value through changes in profit and loss”
due to reclassification, all embedded derivatives must be taken into consideration and, if necessary,
they must be recognized separately.

The Company does not recognize any financial instruments that have been affected by this standard.
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IFRS 1 [Revised}, "First time adoption of IFRS" and IAS 27 {Revised] " Consolidated and
separate financial statements” - Cost of an investment in a jointly controlled suhbsidiary or
associate”

The revised IFRS 1 allows first time adopters to use the fair value of investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates as the cost at the date of transition of IFRS, or the carrying value at that date
in accordance with the preceding accounting principles. The amendment also eliminates from 1AS 27
the definition of the cost method, and requires that dividends received from a subsidiary, jointly
controlled company or associate be recognized as revenue in the separate financial statements
prepared by the investor, even if the dividend is charged against reserves before the acquisition. Finally,
clarification is provided as to how to determine the cost of an investment when a parent reorganizes
the operating structure of its group by establishing a new company. These amendments only affect the
individual financial statements [not consolidated) prepared under IFRS-EU.

The Company does not recognize any situations that have been affected by this standard.

Improvement project (2008}

Improvement project published by the IASB in May 2008, which affects the following standards and
interpretations:

» IAS 1 [Revised), “Presentation of financial statements”. This revision clarifies that some, and
not all, financial instruments classified as held for trading, in accordance with 1AS 39 "Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” are examples of current assets and liabilities,
respectively. The Group has applied this revision as from 1 January 2009 and it has naot had any
effect an its annual accounts.

« IAS 16 [Revision) “Property, plant and equipment” [(and the relevant revision of IAS 7 "Cash
flow statement”). Those companies whose primary activity consists of leasing and subsequently
selling assets will present the amount received from those sales as revenues and assets must be
reclassified to inventories at the time that the asset becomes held-for-sale. As a result, IAS 7 is
amended indicating that cash flows that derive from the acquisition, rental and sale of those assets
will be classified as cash flows from operating activities. The Company does not recognize any
situations that have been affected by this standard.

» IAS 19 [Revised) “Employee benefits”:

~ This revision clarifies that improvements to a plan that give rise to a change to the extent that
the promised benefits will be affected by future salary increases and be considered a reduction,
whereas revisions that give rise to a change in benefits attributable to past services give rise to
a negative past service costs, provided that there is a decrease in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation.

— The definition for yields given by assets linked to the plan has been modified to indicate that plan
administration costs are deducted from the calculation of the yieid from linked assets only to
the extent that those costs have been excluded from the measurement of the defined benefit
obligation.
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— The distinction between short and long-term employee benefits is based on whether or not the
benefits will be settled within 12 months following the date on which the services have been
rendered, or after that time.

— IAS 37 “Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities” reguires that contingent liabilities be
broken down, and not only recognized, in the financial statements. 1AS 19 has been revised in
line with this standard.

The Group has applied this revision as from 1 January 2009 and it has not had any effect
whatsoever on its annual accounts.

« IAS 20 (Revised) “Accounting for government grants and disclosure of government
assistance”. The benefit of a foan at a lowerthan-market rate granted by a public entity is
measured at the difference between the carrying value in accordance with IAS 39 "Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’, and the amount received recognized in accordance
with 1AS 20. The Group has applied this revision since 1 January 2009 and the required details and
information is provided under Note 19.

« IAS 23 (Revised), “Borrowing costs”. The definition of borrowing costs has heen revised so that
interest is calculated in accordance with the effective interest rate defined under IAS 39 (Financial
Instruments: Recognition and measurement”. The terminological inconsistency between 1AS 39 and
IAS 23 is therefore eliminated. The Group has applied this revision as from 1 January 2009 and it
has not had any effect whatsoever on its annual accounts.

+ IAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and separate financial statements”. In those cases in which an
investment in a subsidiary is accounted for in accordance with IAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” as held-for-sale in accordance with IFRS S "Non-Current Assets held-
for-sale and discontinued operations”, tAS 39 will continue to be applicable. The business considered
to be heldforsale at the end of the year were not recognized in accordance with 1AS 39 and
therefore this revision does not affect the annual accounts.

« IAS 28 [Revised) "Investments in associates” (and the relevant amendments to IAS 32 "Financial
instruments: Presentation” and IFRS 7 "Financial instruments: Disclosures™). An investment in an
associate is considered to be a separate asset for the purposes of calculating value impairment. Any
impairment loss is not attributed to specific assets included under the investment, for example,
goodwill. Any reversal of impairment losses are recognized as an adjustment to the investment
balance to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment has increased. When an
investment in an associate is accounted for in accordance with IAS 39 "Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement”, only certain breakdowns established by IAS 28 must be included, in
addition to the requirements of IAS 32 and IFRS 7. The Group has applied this revision as from 1
January 2003 and it has not had any effect whatsoever on its annual accounts.

+ IAS 289 (Revised), “Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies”. The standard's

guidelines are revised to clarify that certain assets and liabilities must be measured at fair value
instead of at historic cost. The Company does not recognize any situations of this type.
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IAS 31 (Revised) "Investments in associates” (and the relevant amendments to [AS 32 "Financial
instruments: Presentation” and IFRS 7 "Financial instruments: Disciosures”). When an investment in
a combined business is accounted for in accordance with I1AS 39 "Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement”, only certain breakdowns established by IAS 31 must be included, in addition to
the reguirements of IAS 32 and IFRS 7. The Group has adapted its disclosures to apply this revision.

IAS 36 {[Revision]), “Impairment of asset values”. In cases where fair value, less seiling costs, is
calculated based on discounted cash flows equivalent breakdowns of value-in-use calculations must
be presented. The Group has applied this revision as from 1 January 2009 and it has not had any
effect whatsoever on its annual accounts.

tAS 38 [Revised), “Intangible assets”. An interim payment may only be recognized when made as
a prepayment to obtain a right to access certain assets or services. For this reason, the expense for
sending catalogs is recorded at the time that they become available and not at the time they are
distributed to customers. This revision eliminates the mention of "on rare occasion, or perhaps
never" to justify the use of a method that results in an amortization rate that is lower than the resuit
of applying the straightline method. The Group has applied this revision as from 1 January 2009
and it has not had any effect whatsoever on its annual accounts.

IAS 39 - [Revised) “Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement”.

— This revision clarifies that it is possible that there may be movements towards and from the
category of financial assets at fair value through changes in profit and loss in cases in which a
derivative starts [or ends) being classified as a hedging instrument in a hedge for cash flow or
net investments,

— The definition of a financial asset or liability at fair value through changes in profit and loss also
changes, to the extent that they refer to items held for trading. A financial asset or liability that
forms part of a financial instrument portfolio that is managed together, and for which there is
evidence of a recent shortterm profit, is included in that portfolio as from initial recognition.

— The current guidelines for designating and documenting hedging relationships stipulate that a
hedging instrument must involve a third-party outside the unit that is presenting financial
information and uses as an example a company segment. This means that in order to apply
hedge accounting at the segment level, the segment must meet hedge accounting
requirements. The revision eliminates examples of segments to make them coherent with IFRS
8 "Operating segments" which requires that segment reporting be based on the information
presented to the members of management responsible for taking decisions.

— When a debt instrument is again measured, once the hedge accounting at fair value has
ceased, the revision clarifies that the revised effective interest rate method must be used

The Group has applied this revision as from 1 January 2008 and it has not had any effect
whatsoever on its annual accounts.
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* JAS 40 (Revised) "Investment property” {and relevant amendments to IAS 16 "Property,
plant and equipment”). Buildings under construction or being developed for future use as rental
properties are included under the scope of IAS 40. Accordingly, when the fair value model is used
these properties must be recognized at fair value. However, when the fair value of investment
properties under construction cannot be reiiably determined, the property will be measured at cost
untii the date on which construction ends or the date on which the fair value may be reliably
determined, if earlier. The Company does not recognize any situations of this type.

+« IAS 41 {Revised), “Agriculture”. This revision requires a market discount rate be used in those
cases in which the fair value is calculated based on discounted cash flows and the prohibition against
considering biological transformation when calculating fair value is eliminated. The Company does not
recognize any significant situations of this type.

+ Other minor amendments to IAS 8, “Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors”; IAS 10, “Events after the reporting period”, IAS 34, “Interim financial reporting”
and IFRS 1, “First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”, also
included in the improvement project published by the IASB in May 2008 will not have an effect on
the Group's annual accounts for the reasons mentioned above.

IFRIC 13, “Custaomer loyaity programs”.

IFRIC 13 states that in those cases in which assets or services are rendered together with a loyalty
incentives (for example, loyalty points or free products), the agreement is considered to be a multiple
item contract and the amount received or to be received from the customer must be attributed amang
the components on a fair value basis. The Company does not recognize any situations of this type.

IFRIC 16 "Hedges of net investments in foreign businesses”

This interpretation is mandatory under IFRS-EU for all years commencing as from 1 October 20089,
IFRIC 16 addresses the accounting treatment to be applied to hedges of a net investment, including
the fact that the hedge of the net investment relates to differences in the functional currency and not
presentation, as well as the fact that the hedging instrument may be maintained anywhere within the
Group. The requirement of IAS 21 "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates" are applicable to the
hedged item.

The Group applied this revision in 2009 and it has not had any effect whatsoever on its annual
accounts.

c) Standards, amendments and interpretations that may be adopted before the start of
financial years commencing 1 January 2009

The standards and interpretations approved by the European Union for which the end of the first
financial year of application is 31 December 2010 or afterwards but which may be applied early in
2008 are as follows:
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IFRS 3 [Revised) “Business combinations”

IFRS 3 (Revised] has been adopted by the European Union and is mandatory for all years ending 31
December 2010 but it may be applied as from 1 July 2003. The revised standard maintains the
acquisition method for business combinations, although significant changes are introduced. For
example, all payments are recognized at fair value at the date of acquisition, and the contingent
payments that are classified as liabilities are measured at each closing date at fair value, and all
changes are recorded in the income statement. An accounting policy option is introduced at the
business combination level, consisting of measuring minority shareholdings at fair value or the
proportional value of the net assets and liabilities recorded by the acquired company. All transaction
costs are taken to expenses.

The Group will apply IFRS 3 {Revised) on a prospective basis to all business combinations as from 1
January 2010.

The new standard may have a significant effect on the Group's annual accounts with respect to possible
future business combinations.

IAS 27 [Revised) “Consolidated and separate financial statements”

IAS 27 (Revised] is mandatory for all years ending 31 December 2010 but it may be applied as from 1
July 2008, The revised standard requires that all transactions with minority shareholders be recorded
under equity, provided that there are no changes in control, such that these transactions no longer
have an effect on goodwill and do not iead to any profit or loss in the income statement. The revision
also covers the accounting treatment to be applied when control is lost. In this case, any minority
shareholding maintained must again be measured at fair value and the effect recorded in the income
statement.

The Group will apply IAS 27 (Revised) on a prospective basis to transactions with minority shareholders
as from 1 January 2010. This revised standard has been adopted by the European Union.

The new standard is not expected to have any effect on the Group's annual accounts.

JIAS 39 [Revised), "Hedges"

This amendment is mandatory for ali years ending 31 December 2010 but it may be applied as from 1
July 2008. This revision introduces two significant changes when it prohibits designating inflation as a
component that may be hedge on a fixed-rate debt and including the temporary value in the hedged risk
when options are designated to be hedges.

The new standard is not expected to have any effect on the Group's annual accounts,

Improvement_project [2008]

IFRS 5 [Revised) “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” (and relating
to the revision of IFRS 1 "First time adoption of IFRS") (in force for all years ended 31 December
2010, but was in force since 30 June 2008). This revision clarifies that all assets and liabilities at a
subsidiary must be classified as held for sale if contro! over the subsidiary is lost as a result of a partial
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plan covering its sale. In the event that it meets the conditions to be considered a discontinued
operation, the relevant breakdowns regarding the subsidiary must be included. As a result, IFRS 1 has
also been adapted to take into account this revision, such that its application is prospective as from the
date of transition to IFRS.

The Group will adopt IFRS 5 (Revised} on a prospective basis with respect to all partial sales of
subsidiaries that take place as from 1 January 2010.

IFRIC 12, “Service concession arrangements”

IFRIC 12 is mandatory under IFRS-EU for all years commencing as from 1 January 2010 although it
entered into force as from the start of the first year subsequent to 29 March 2003. This
interpretation applies to public-private service concession agreements under which the public authority
{assignor) controls the use of the infrastructure. The interpretation requires two different forms of
accounting based on the specific terms of the concession agreement (there may be mixed models}
although under both models ordinary revenues arising from the rendering of infrastructure construction
services are recognized in accordance with the requirements of IAS 11 "Construction contracts”.
Specifically:

+ When the concessionaire has an unconditional right to receive cash or other financial asset from the
assighor, this right is classified as a financial asset and is recognized in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 33 "Financial instruments”. Recognition and measurement’.

» When the concessionaire has a right {a license] to collect from the users of the public service, this
right is classified as an intangible asset and is recognized in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 3B "Intangible assets".

The Group has not adopted IFRIC 12 early and does not carry out any operations that could be affected
by this interpretation. -

IFRIC 15 “Agreements for the construction of real estate”

This interpretation is mandatory for all years ending 31 Oecember 2010 but it may be applied as from
31 December 2003, IFRIC 15 clarifies what type of transactions, and under what circumstances,
should result in a transaction being recognized in accordance with IAS 18 "Ordinary revenues” or IAS
11 "Construction contracts”.

The Group has not adopted IFRIC 15 early and does not carry out any operations that could be affected
hy this interpretation. :

IFRIC 17 “Distributions of non-Cash assets to owners”

IFRIC 17 is mandatory for all years ending 31 December 2010 but it may be applied as from 1 July
2009. This interpretation addresses how distributions of non-cash assets should be measured when a
company distributes dividends to shareholders. This interpretation demands that interim dividends be
recorded when they have been appropriately authorized, the dividend must be measured at the fair
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value of the net assets to be distributed and the difference between the fair value of the dividend paid
and the carrying value of the net assets distributed must be recognized in the income statement.

The Group has not adopted IFRIC 17 early and does not carry out any operations that could be affected
by this interpretation.

IFRIC 18, “Transfers of customer assets”

IFRIC 18 is mandatory for all years ending 31 December 2D10 but it may be applied as from 31
October 2008. This interpretation clarifies the manner in which to account for agreements under
which property, plant and agreement provided by customers is used to supply an on-going service.

The Group has not adopted IFRIC 18 early and does not carry out any aperations that could be affected
by this interpretation.

d) Standards, amendments and interpretations applied to existing standards that have not
been adopted to date by the European Union

At the date these consolidated annual accounts were prepared, the 1ASB and IFRIC had published the
following standards, amendments and interpretations that have not yet been approved by the European
Union. These standards, revisions and interpretations are mandatory for all financial years commencing
as from 1 January 2010, although they have not been adopted early by the Group.

The Group is analyzing the impact that the standards and interpretations may have on its annual
accounts should they be adopted by the European Union.

IFRIC 14 [Revised) "Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement” (applicable to years
commencing as from 1 January 2011).

IFRIC 19 "Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments” {applicable to years
commencing as from 1 July 2010).

IFRS 1 (Revised) "Additional exemptions for firsttime adoption” (applicable to vyears
commencing as from 1 January 2010).

IFRS 2 (Revised] “Share-based payments: Transactions involving Group share-based payments
settled in cash {applied to years commencing as from 1 January 2010]).

IFRS 9. “Financial Instruments"” [applicable to years commencing as from 1 January 2013]).

IAS 24 [Revised) "Related party disclosures” [applicable to years commencing as from 1
January 2011).

IAS 32 [Revised)] "Financial instrument presentation” (applicable to years commencing as from
1 January 2010)
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Improvement project [2009)

Improvement project published by the 1ASB in April 2009, which affects the following standards and
interpretations:

IFRS 2 (Revised) “Share-based payments” (in force as from 1 July 2009). This amendment
clarifies that IFRS 2 does not apply to business combinations that are under common control or the
contribution of a business to the creation of a joint venture.

IFRS 5 [Revised), "Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations” (in force as
from 1 January 2010). This amendment concerns breakdowns of non-current assets (or disposable
groups of items] classified as held-for-sale or discontinued operations. Unless specifically mentioned
in other standards, the requirements of IFRS 5 must be applied with respect to breakdowns of non-
current assets heldfor-sale and discontinued operations.

IFRS 8 (Revised), “Operating segments” (in force as from 1 January 2010). This amendment
involves the disclosure of information regarding segment assets. A company must report the
measurement of total assets in each segment that must be reported only if this amounts is regularly
reported to the maximum decision making body.

IAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of financial statements” (in force as from 1 January 2010]. This
amendment involves the classification of convertible instruments as current/non-current. If the
financial liability component of a convertible instrument may-be settled through the issue of equity
instruments at the choice of the counterparty, this component does not have to be classified as a
current liability.

IAS 7 [Revised), “Cash flow statement” (in force as from 1 January 2010). This amendment
involves the classification of expenses relating to unrecognized assets. Only the payments resulting in
the recognition of an asset on the balance sheet may be classified as investment activities in the
cash flow statement.

IAS 17 [Revised), “Leases” {in force as from 1 January 2010}. This amendment involves the
classification of land and building leases. When a land lease transfers the significant risks and
benefits inherent to the land to the lessee, even if ownership is not expected to be transferred to the
lessee at the end of the lease, the lease will be classified as a financial lease. Previously such a land
lease would have been classified as an operating lease.

IAS 18 [Revised), “Ordinary revenues” [in force as from 1 January 2010). This amendment
resuits in guidelines being included in I1AS 18 to determine when a company is operating as a
principal or as an agent.

IAS 36 (Revised), “Asset impairment” (in force as from 1T January 2010). This amendment
involves the accounting unit to be taken into consideration when applying impairment tests to
goodwill. A cash generating unit or a group of cash generating units among which goodwill is
distributed, may not be larger than a segment calculated in accordance with IFRS 8 "Operating
Segments”, before taking into consideration the aggregation criteria allowed by IFRS 8 [applicable to
operating segments with fong-term financial yields and similar financial characteristics).

IAS 38 (Revised), “Intangible assets” (in force as from 1 July 2009). This amendment involves
revisions deriving from IFRS 3, "Business Combinations" (Revised) as it relates to the calculation of
the fair value of an intangible asset acquired by a business combination.
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* IAS 39 - [(Revised] “Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement” (in force as from 1
January 2010}. This amendment clarifies the treatment of early payment penalties on loans as
highly related embedded derivatives, an exception to the scope refating to business combination
contracts and the accounting recognition of cash flow hedges.

s IFRIC 9 {Revised), “Nlew evaluation of embedded derivatives" (in force as from 1 January
2010j. This modification clarifies that IFRIC 9 does not apply to embedded derivatives in contracts
acquired by business combinations as defined hy IFRS 3 "Business combinations" (Revised), hy
business combinations under common control or the creation of a business combination in
accordance with IAS 31 "Shares in combined businesses”.

+ IFRIC 16 {Revised), “Hedges of a net investment in a foreign business” (in force as from 1
January 2010). According to this amendment, foreign businesses being hedged may maintain the
instrument, derivative or not, designated as a hedge instrument in a hedge of a net investment in a
foreign business. Previously any company within the Group, except the foreign business being
hedged, could maintain that hedging instrument.

2.2 Consolidation principles

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all those companies where the Group is able to manage the financial and operating
policies which is generally accompanied by a shareholding involving more than half of the vating rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent
of any minority interests. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the acquisition cost is less than the fair
value of net assets in the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized directly in the income
statement (Note 2.7.a).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The accompanying Appendix sets out the identification particulars of subsidiaries.

The annual accounts / financial statements used in the consolidation process are in all cases those for
the year ended 31 December each year. With the exception of the combined business created in
2009, RS Automaotive, B.V., which closes its financial year on 31 March. The Company appiies all
temporary adjustments that are necessary [Mote 1).
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b) Minority shareholders and transactions

Given the fact that the Group applies IFRS 3 (Revised) on a prospective basis as from 1 January 2010,
transactions with minority interests are considered to be transactions with third parties outside the
Group. The disposal of minority shareholdings gives rise to gains and/or losses for the Group that are
recognized in the income statement. The acquisition of minority shareholdings results in goodwill, which
is the difference between the price paid and the relevant carrying value of the net assets recognized by
the investee company.

c) Joint ventures

Shareholdings in combined businesses are consolidated using the proportionate method. The Group
comhines its shareholdings in the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as cash flows of
the jointly controlled company on a line by line basis together with those items in its accounts that are
similar in nature. The Group recognizes its share in the profits or loss deriving from the sale of Group
assets to jointly controlied entities in its consolidated annual accounts in the proportion corresponding
to other participants. The Group does not recognize its share in the profits or loss of a jointly controlled
entity deriving from the purchase by the Group of assets from the jointly controlled entity until the
assets are sold to an independent third party. A loss is recognized immediately on a transaction if it
reveals a reduction in the net realizable value of current assets, or any impairment loss.

See detailed information on these joint ventures in Note 37.

d} Associates

Associates (Note B.d} are all those entities over which the Group exercises significant influence but not
control, which is generally accompanied by a shareholding of 20 to 50% of voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially recognized at cost.
The Group’s investment in associates includes, where applicable, the goodwill [net of impairment)
identified on the acquisition {Note 2.7.a]). Note 2.8 indicates the impairment policy for nonfinancial
assets, including goodwill.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the income
statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s shares of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains or losses in associates are recognized in the income statement.
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2.3 Segment information

Operating segments are presented in a manner coherent with the internal information presented to the
highest decision-taking body. The highest decision-taking body is responsible for assigning resources to
operating segments and evaluating the performance of the segments. The Delegated Committee has
been identified as the maximum decision making body.

Segment information is'analyzed in Note 5.

2.4 Foreign currency transactions
a) Functional and presentation currency

The items included in the annual accounts of each of the Group companies are measured using the
currency of the principal economic environment in which the company operates («functional currency»].
All Group companies use the currency in their country as the functional currency, except for the
Mexican companies [Appendix) which uses the US dollar as their functional currency. The prospective
effect, as from 1 January 2008, of this change in the consclidated annual accounts for 2009 is not
significant.

The consolidated annual accounts are presented in euro, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency using the exchange rates in
force at the transaction dates. Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
transactions and translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currency are recognized in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges or gualifying net investment hedges.

Exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement under “Exchange differences net”,

Changes in the fair value of currency securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale are analyzed between exchange differences deriving from changes in the amortized cost of the
security and other changes in the security’s book value. Conversion differences are recognized in profit
and loss for the year and other changes in book value are recognized under equity.

Translation differences in respect of non-monetary items such as equity instruments at fair value
through profit or loss are presented as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences in
respect of non-monetary items such as equity instruments classed as available-for-sale financial assets
are included in equity in the revaluation reserve,

c) Group companies

Results and the financial situation of all Group companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) whose functional currency differs from the presentation currency are
translated to the presentation currency as follows:
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{i) The assets and liabilities on each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the balance sheet date;

{ii} The income and expenses in each income statement are translated at the average exchange rates
{unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
existing at the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
rates on the transaction dates); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, any exchange differences resulting from the translation of a net investment in foreign
companies and loans and other instruments in foreign currency designated as hedges of those
investments are taken to equity. When realized, or when the investment ceases to be classified as a
net investment in a foreign business, these differences are recognized in the income statement as part
of the profit or loss on the sale.

Adjustments to goodwill and fair value arising on the acquisition of a foreign company are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign company and translated at the year-end exchange rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eguipment is recognized at cost less depreciation and cumulative impairment
losses, except for land, which is presented net of impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenses directly attributable to purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset only
when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group
and the cost of the asset may be reliably determined. The book value of the replaced component is
eliminated from the accounts. All other repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the income
statement in the year in which they are incurred,

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is calculated on a straightine basis in order to
allocate costs to residual values based on the estimated useful lives of the assets in question:

Estimated useful

life
Buildings 20 - 50
Machinery 3-30
Vehicles 3-15
Furnishings, accessories and equipment 3-15

The asset’s residual values and useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.
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Group management systermatically determines the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment by applying the relevant depreciation rates. This estimate of useful lives is based on actual
production levels and considers the maximum useful life to be the residual life of the assets concerned,
Production levels in 2003 required a re-estimate of usefu! lives, resulting in a decrease in depreciation
of approximately €6 mitlion.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses an the sale of property, plant and equipment are calculated by comparing the revenue
obtained with the carrying value and are included in the income statement in “Other operating revenue”
(Note 28).

2.6 Interest costs

Interest costs incurred on the construction of any qualified asset are capitalized over the period of time
necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other interest costs are expensed in
the income statement.

2.7 Intangible assets

a) Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of acquisition cost over the fair value of the Group’s shareholding in the
identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired at the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to acquisitions
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and is carried
at cost less cumulative impairment losses. Gains and losses on the sale of a company include the
carrying amount of goodwill related to the company sold.

Goodwill is assigned to cash generating units [CGUs) in order to test for impairment losses. This
assignment may group together various legal entities if they benefit from synergies of the business
acquired, always in accordance with the operating segments [Note 2.8).

b) Research and development costs

Research expenditure is recognized as an expense as incurred. The costs incurred in development
projects [associated with the design and testing of new products or upgrades) are recognized as an
intangible asset when the project will probably be successful taking into account its technical and
commercial feasibility, management intends to complete the project and has the technical and financial
resources to do so, it has the capacity to use and sell the asset and generate potential economic
benefits and the costs involved may be reliably estimated. Other development expenditures are
recognized as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognized as an expense are not
recognized as an asset in a subsequent period. Development costs with a finite useful iife that have
been capitalized are amortized from the commencement of commercial production of the product on a
straight-line basis over the period of its expected benefit, not exceeding five years.

Development assets are subject to impairment testing under IAS 36.
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¢) Trademarks and licenses

Trademarks and licenses acquired from third parties are presented at cost. Those acquired through
business combinations are recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a defined useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amartization is calculated on a straightline
basis in order to assign the cost of the trademarks and licenses over their useful lives estimated at no
more than 5 years.

d) Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an
expense when incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unigque
software products controlled by the Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding
costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets. Direct costs include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer programs acquired from third parties or developed in-house are reccgnized as assets and
amortized over their estimated useful lives, which do not exceed 5 years.

2.8 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually far
impairment. The assets subject to depreciation are examined for impairment, provided that some event
or change in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value of an asset less selling costs and valug in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment losses, assets are grouped together at the lowest level
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows [Cash Generating Units).

Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that present an impairment loss are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether or not the loss has reversed.

2.9 Non-current assets [or disposal groups) held for sale

The Group classifies a non-current asset {or disposable group] as held-for-sale if the carrying value will
be recovered fundamentally through the sale transaction and the sale is considered to be highly likely.
Non-current assets {or disposable groups} classified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying value and their fair value, less the costs of sale, if the carrying value will be recovered primarily
through the sale instead of continuous use.
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2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1T Classification

The Group classifies these tems into the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and accounts receivable, investments that are to be held to maturity and available- for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of investments at the time of initial recognition.

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through changes in profit or loss are investments held for trading. A
financial asset is classified under this categary if it was acquired mainly for the purpose of being sold in
the shortterm. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets under this category are classified as current assets.

b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly
to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. They are included in current assets except for
assets maturing in more than 12 months of the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet [note
10).

c) Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed payments or payments
that may be calculated and maturing on a fixed date for which Group Management has the intention
and capacity to hold to maturity. If the Group disposes of a significant amount of the held-to-maturity
assets, the entire category would be reclassified as available-for-sale. Financial assets held to maturity
are included under non-current assets, except for those that mature within 12 months.

d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the halance sheet date. '

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Acquisitions and disposals of investments are recognized at the trading date, i.e., on the date the
Group undertakes to acquire or sell the asset. Investments are recognized initially at fair vaiue plus the
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss Financial assets
stated at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognized at their fair value and the transaction
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costs are expensed in the income statement. Investments are written off when the rights to receive
cash flows from them have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and advantages deriving from ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently recorded at their amortized cost in
accordance with the effective interest rate method.

Gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value with changes in
the income statement are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise under
“Profit/floss) on financial instruments at fair value”. Dividend income deriving from this type of financial
assets is recorded in the income statement under “other income" when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified as available for
sale are analyzed on the hasis of differences resulting from changes in the amaortized cost of the asset
and other changes in its carrying value. The conversion differences relating to monetary securities are
recognized in the income statement. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognized under equity.

Unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of non-monetary instruments
classified as available for sale are recognized in equity.

When instruments classified as available for sale are sold or are impaired, the cumulative fair value
adjustments are included in the income statement as losses or gains on the instruments in question,

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current purchase prices. If the market for a
financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
measurement techniques which include the use of recent transactions between knowledgeable willing
parties relating to other instruments which are substantially identical, the analysis of discounted cash
flows and upgraded models for setting option prices by making maximum use of market input and
relying as little as possible on the Company’s specific inputs.

2.10.3 Impairment losses on financial assets

At the balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment
losses with respect to a financial asset or group of financial assets. For equity instruments classified as
available for sale, in order to determine whether there are impairment losses, it will be necessary to
examine whether there is a significant or protracted decline in the fair value of the securities to below
cost. If there is any evidence of this type for availablefor-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
determined as the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment
loss in that financial asset previously recognized in results is eliminated from equity and recognized in
the income statement. Impairment losses recognized in the income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the income statement.

impairment loss tests for receivables are described in Note 2.13.

31.-



0J78397034

CLASE 87

CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2009 AND 2008
(Thousand euro)

2.11 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, on the nature of
the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

a) fair value hedges of recognized liabilities (fair value hedgingj;

b) hedges of a specific risk associated with a recognized liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction (cash flow hedging); or

c} Hedging of a net investment in a foreign operation” (hedging of a net investment).

At the start of the transaction the Group documents the relationship existing between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its evaluation from the start, and continuously
thereafter, as to whether the derivatives being used in the hedging transactlons are highly effective to
offset changes in fair value or in cash flows from hedged itemns.

The fair value of several instruments used for hedging purposes is set out under Note 8. Movements in
the hedge reserve within equity are reflected in Note 15. The total fair value of hedging derivatives is
classified as non-current assets or liabilities if the time remaining to maturity of the hedged item is
more than 12 months and as current assets or liabilities if the time remaining to maturity of the
hedged item is less than 12 months. Traded derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.

a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives which are designated and classified as fair value hedges are
accounted for in the income statement together with any change in the fair value of the asset or liability
hedged and which may be attributable to the risk hedged. The Group only applies fair value hedge
accounting in order to hedge the fixed interest rate risk on borrowings. The profit or loss on the
effective part of interest rate swaps which over fixed interest rate borrowings is recognized in the
income statement under “finance costs ”. The profit or loss on the inefficient part is recognized in the
income statement under “other gains / [(losses] - net”. Changes in the fair value of fixed interest rate
borrowings attributable to the interest rate risk are recognized in the income statement under “finance
costs”.

If the hedge ceases to comply with the criteria for carrying the hedge, the book adjustment for a
hedged item which is carried using the effective interest rate method is amor'tlzed through profit and
foss during the period untif maturity.

b) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognized in eqguity. The gain or loss relating to the inefficient part is recognized
immediately in the income statement.
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The accumulated amounts in equity are taken to the income statement in the years in which the
hedged item affects the gain or loss {e.g., when the forecast sale which is hedged takes place]. The
profit or loss on the effective part of interest rate swaps which over variable interest rate borrowings is
recognized in the income statement under “finance costs ”. The profit or loss on the effective part of
foreign currency forward contracts which cover exports is recognized in the income statement under
sales. However, when the forecast transaction which is hedged results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset (for example, inventories or a tangible asset), the gains or losses previously deferred in
equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial cost measurement of the asset. or liability
involved. The amounts deferred are ultimately recognized in cost of sales for inventories, or
depreciation for Property, plant and equipment.

When a hedge instrument expires, is sold, or when it no longer meets the requirements or carrying
the hedge, any accumuiated gain or loss in equity up until that moment remains in equity and is
recognized when the planned transaction is finally recognized in the income statement. When the
forecast transaction is expected not to take place, the profit or loss accumulated in equity is taken
immediately to the income statement.

¢) Net investment hedges

Net investment hedges of foreign operations are recorded in a manner similar to cash flow hedges.
Any profit or loss on the hedge related to the efficient part of the hedge is recognized in equity. The
profit or loss on the inefficient part is recognized immediately in the income statement under “other
gains / {losses) - net”.

The profit or loss accumulated in equity is included in the income statement when the fareign operation
is sold. :

d) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivatives are classed as hedge accounting and are recognized as at fair value through profit
or loss. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument which does not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognized immediately in the income statement.,

2.12 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is basically calculated as

follows:

- ltems purchased for resale: at acquisition cost, including certain direct costs incurred on the
purchase.

- Raw materials and other supplies: at the average weighted acquisition price.

- Finished products and work in progress: at pre-set costs, which do not differ significantly from
real costs incurred. These costs include raw materials, direct labor and direct and indirect
manufacturing expenses (based on normal operational capacity). They do not include interest
expense.

Obsolete or slow-maving items are written down to their realizable value.
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The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable costs of sales.

The Group company Via Operador Petrolifero, S.L.U. {Note 1.2) has been entered in the operator
register in order to carry out the wholesale distribution of petroleum products and as a petroleum
product operator and, in accordance with Boyal Decree 1716,/2004, of 23 July 2004, the Company
is required at all times to keep minimum buffer stocks equivalent to 80 days of annual diesel sales, of
which 40 days are held by Corporacién de Beservas Estratégicas de Productos Petralifersos (CORES].
CORES maintains an additional 35 days beyond the strategic inventory obligation falling to Via Operador
Petrolifero, S.L.U. agreed under the lease agreement concluded by both parties. The remaining 15
days of the obligation are maintained by Via Operador Petrolifero, S.L.U. In order to maintain these
buffer stocks, the Company carries out, when necessary, product leases with other operators or with
the group company, Bionor Berantevilla, S.L.U. These transactions are recognized as operating [eases
(Note 2.23).

In accordance with Transitional Provision Two of Royal Decree 1766,/2007 (28 December), as from 1
January 2010 the minimum inventory requirement will be 92 days, of which 77 will be maintained by
CORES, 42 on an obligatory basis and 35 under a lease agreement. The remaining 15 days will be
maintained by Via Operador Petrolifero, S.L.U.

2.13 Trade receivahles

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The existence of significant financial
difficulties on the part of the debtor, the probability that the debtor wilt enter into bankruptcy or
financial reorganization and the default or delay in payments are considered to indicate that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The carrying value of the asset is reduced as and when the provision is used and the loss is recognized

- in the income statement. When a receivable cannot be collected it is written off against the provision

for receivables. Any subsequent recovery of previously written-off amounts is recognized in the income
statement.

Financing through the discounting of bills of exchange is not written off from trade receivables until they
are collected and is reflected as bank financing. In order to hedge certain customer collection risks,
collection insurance contracts are arranged that include the risk of default through the payment of
insurance premiums.

Financing through factoring without recourse, or the sale of trade receivables, enables the receivable to
be written off because all associated risks have been transferred to the financial institution.
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2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, demand deposits at credit institutions, other short-term highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are presented in equity as
a deduction, net of taxes, from the revenue obtained. incremental costs, directly attributed to the issue
of new shares or options for the acquisition of a business, are deducted from the amount obtained on
the issue of capital.

When a Group company acquires Company shares [treasury shares], the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental cost (net of income tax] is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholders through to redemption, reissue or disposal. When these shares are sold or
subsequently reissued, any amount received, net of any incremental cost on the transaction which is
directly attributable and the corresponding income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholder.

2,16 Government grants

Government grants are recognized at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be collected and the Group will comply with all established terms and conditions.

Government grants related to costs are deferred and recognized in the income statement over the
necessary period to match them to the costs which it is intended to cover.

Government grants for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are included in deferred income
as deferred government grants and credited to the income statement on a straightline basis over the
expected lives of the corresponding assets.

The benefit of a loan at a lowerthan-market rate granted by a public entity is measured at the
difference between the carrying value in accordance with IAS 39 "Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement’ and the amount received, recognizing a subsidy for that difference, which is
recorded in the income statement or under liabilities as an official deferred capital grant depending on
whether it finances expenses for the year or investments in property, plant and eguipment.

2.17 Trade payables

Suppliers are initially recognized at their fair value and subsequently they are stated at their amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.
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2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially carried at fair value net of transaction costs. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any differences between the funds obtained [net of necessary costs} and
their repayment value are recognized in the income statement over the life of the debt applying the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months as from the balance sheet date.

The commissions paid for obtaining lines of credit are recognized as loan transaction costs to the
extent that it is likely that some or ali of the line of credit will be used. In these cases the commissions
are deferred until the line of credit is accessed. insofar as there is no evidence that it is probable that
the credit line will be used, the commission is capitalized as an advance payment for liquidity services
and amortized over the period during which the credit line is available.

2.19 Current and deferred taxes
a) Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax expense for the year includes current and deferred tax and is caiculated based
on profits before taxes, as adjusted for any permanent and/or temporary differences envisaged in tax
legislation in effect or about to be approved relating to the calcuiation of the corporate income tax base
in the countries where the subsidiaries operate. The tax is recognized in the income statement, except
insofar as it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case, it is also recognized in equity.

Tax credits and deductions and the tax effect of applying taxdoss carryforwards that have not been
capitalized are treated as a reduction in the corporate income tax expense for the year in which they
are applied or offset. :

The parent company is taxed under the tax consolidation system together with the subsidiaries listed
below:; '

- CIE Azkaitia, S.L. [merged with Grupo Recyde, S.L. in 2009}
- CiE Bérriz, S.L.

- CIE Inversiones e Inmuebles, S.L., Sociedad Unipersonal
- CIE Automotive Bioenergia, S.L.

- Autokomp Ingenieria, S5.A.

- CIE Legazpia, S.A.

- CIE Mecauto, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal

- CIE Udalhide, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal

- Egafia 2, 5.L.

- Gameko Fabricacion de Componentes, S.A.

- Inyectametal, 5. A,

- Leaz Valorizacién, S.L.

- Orbelan Plasticos, S.A.
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- Transformaciones Metalirgicas Norma, S5.A.

- Alfa Deco, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal [incorporated in 2008)

- Alurecy, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal (incorporated in 2008)

- Componentes de Automocién Recytec, S.L., Sociedad Unipersonal [incorporated in 2008)

- Nova Recyd, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal (incorporated in 2008])

- Recyde, 5.A., Scciedad Unipersenal (incorporated in 2008)

- Tarabusi, S5.A. [incorporated in 2008])

- Fundicion Alcasting, S.L. (incorporated in 2009 and wound up on 13 July 2009 due to its
merger into Tarabusi, 5.A.]

- Alcasting Legutiano, 5.L., Sociedad Unipersonal (incorporated in 2009)

The vertical merger of the wholly-owned subsidiaries CIE Azkoitia, S.L. and Grupc Recyde, S.L.
(Appendix] took place in 2008, the latter disappearing and the subsidiaries of the tax group previously
fed by the Recyde Group being included in the group led by CIE Azkeitia, S.L.

Similarly, for 2008 the companies of the Group resident in Mexico, except for Pintura y Ensambles de
México, 5.A, de C.V., opted to apply the tax consolidation regime as companies controfled by the KUO
Group fpreviously Desc) {(Note 37). In 2009 Group companies residing in Mexico are taxed under an
individual tax system.

Other companies of the CIE group file individual returns.

b) Deferred taxes

Deferred income tax is calculated, using the [fability method, based on the balance sheet, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated annual accounts. However, if the deferred taxes arise from the initial recognition of a
fiability or an asset on a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction has no effect on the tax gain or loss, they are not accounted for. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred taxes on temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures are recognized, except where the Group may
contral the date on which the temporary differences reverse and such temporary differences are
unlikely to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets deriving from tax credits in respect of losses available for offset and corporate
income tax allowances and deductions to which the company is entitled are recognized to the extent
that there will be sufficient taxable profits in the future against which to offset the temporary
differences. For investment deductions, the amount is recorded as a decrease in the expense over the
time during which depreciation is charged on the property, plant and equipment that generated the tax
credits [Note 2.5], the right being recognized by credit to deferred income [Note 19].
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2.20 Employee benefits

a) Pension obligations

Plans are funded through payments to insurance companies or externally administered funds,
determined by regular actuarial calculations. The Group has defined benefit plans. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan under which the amount of the benefit that will be received by an employee at the
time of retirement is defined, normally on the basis of one or more factors such as age, years or
service or remuneration.

A defined benefit plan is a pensinn“plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to a fund and is
required to pay additional contributions if the fund does not have sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits related to the services provided in the current year and previous years.

The liability recognized in the balance sheet with respect to defined benefit pension plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of the plan assets,
together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and past service costs. Defined
benefit obligations are calculated on an annual basis by independent actuaries using the projected
credit unit method. The present value of the obligation is calculated by discounting the outgoing
effective future cash flows estimated at interest rates applied to government bonds in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid and applying maturity dates similar to those of the relevant bonds.

Actuarial gains and losses resuiting from adjustments due to experience and changes in actuarial
assumptions are credited or debited to the income statement over employees’ expected remaining
average working life.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in the income statement unless changes in the pension
plan are conditional on the employees continuing in employment for a specific time period {consolidation
period). In this case, past service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the consolidation
period.

b) Severance indemnities

Severance payments are paid to employees as a result of the Company's decision to terminate their
employment contract before normal retirement age or when the employee voluntarily accepts leaving
the Company in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is
demanstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits which are not going to be paid within 12
months of the balance sheet date are discounted at present value.

¢) Profit-sharing and honus plans

The Group recognizes a liability and a bonus expense based on a farmula which takes into account the
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders following certain adjustments. The Group recognizes
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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2.21 Provisions

The provisions for specific liabilities and charges are recognized when:
(i} The Group has a present fegal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
(i} It is likely resources must be applied to settle the obligations; and

(i} The amount has been reliably estimated.

The pravisions for restructuring include employee severance payments. Provisions are not recognized
for future operating losses.

When there is a number of similar obligations, the probable need for an outflow to settle them is
determined taking into account the type of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the
probability of an outflow with respect to any item included in the same class of obligations may be
regarded as remote.

Provisions are carried at the present value of the payments that are expected to be necessary to settle
the obligation, using a rate before taxes that reflects the evaluation of the current market for the
temporary value of money and the specific risks relating to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenues include the fair value of the consideration received or to be received for sales of assets and
services in the ordinary course of group’s business, net of VAT, refunds and discounts, following the
glimination of intragroup sales. The Group recognizes income when the amount concerned may be
reliably measured, it is Fkely that future financial benefits will flow to the company and the specific
requirements for each of the Group’s activities are met. It is understood.that the amount of income
cannot be reliably determined until all contingencies related to the sale have been resolved. Ordinary
revenues are recognized as follows:

a) Sales of assets on a wholesale basis

Sales of assets are recognized when a Group company has delivered the products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to
the Entity. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for such returns at the time of
sale.

b) $Sales of services

Sales of services are recognized in the accounting period in which the services are provided by
reference to the completion of the specific transaction, assessed based on the actual service provided
as a percentage of the total service to be provided. This type of transactions are residual in the
Group’s operations.

39.-



0J7897042

CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2009 AND 2008
(Thousand eura)

c) Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized either as cash is collected
or on a cost-recovery basis as conditions warrant. :

d) Royalty revenues

Royalty revenues are recognized on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

e]) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is estabiished.

2.23 Leases
Finance leases

Leases of property, piant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are recognized at the start of the contract
at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease
installiments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve
a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding lease obligation, net of finance
charges, is included in long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated
over their usefu!l lives at the rates applied to property, plant and equipment.

DOperating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor} are charged to the income statement on a straight- line basis over the period
of the lease. '

2.24 Dividend distribution

The payment of dividends to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Group’s
consolidated annual accounts in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

2.25 Environment

Expenses deriving from business action taken to protect and improve the environment are recorded as
an expense in the year incurred. When such expenses lead to additions of property, plant and
equipment with the purpose of minimizing the environmental impact and improving the environment,
they are capitalized as an increase in the value of fixed assets.
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2.26 Short- and long-term balances

Long-term balances under both assets and fiabilities are amounts maturing in more than 12 months as
from the end of the accounting period.

3. Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

In the broadest sense, the management of financial risks aims to control the incidents generated by
fluctuations in the exchange and interest rates and the price of raw materials. Management, which is
the responsibility of Group Finance Management, is through the arrangement of financial instruments
which enable as far as possible participation in favorable environments relating to movements in the
exchange and interest rates to be compatible with the limitation in part or in whole of the adverse
effects due to an unfavorable environment.

a) Market risk
(i} Foreign exchange risk

The presence of the CIE Automaotive group in the international market requires the Group to arrange an
exchange rate risk management policy. The basic objective is to reduce the negative impact on
operations in general and on the income statement in particular of the variation in interest rates such
that it is possible to protect against adverse movements and, if appropriate, leverage a favorable
development. '

In order to arrange such a policy, the CIE Automaotive, group uses the concept of Management Scope.
This concept encompasses all those flows for collection / payment in a currency other than the euro,
which will arise over a specific time period. The Management Scope includes the assets and liabilities in
foreign currency and firm or highly probable commitments for purchases or sales in a currency other
than the euro. Assets and liabilities in foreign currency are subject to management, irrespective of
timing scope, while firm commitments for purchases or sales that form part of the management scope
will be subject to the same if their forecast inclusion in the balance sheet takes place in not more than
18 months.

in this respect, an internal review document is prepared at least monthly setting out each section of
the Management. Scope.

Following the definition of Management Scope, the CIE Automctive, S.A. group uses, in order to
manage risks, a series of financial instruments that in some cases permit a certain degree of flexibility.
These ihstruments will basically be as follows:

- Forward currency purchases/sales: An exchange rate known at a specific date is fixed which
may, moreover, be subject to timing adjustments in order to adapt and apply it to cash flow.
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- Other instruments: Other hedging derivatives may also be used, the arrangement of which will
require specific approval by the relevant management body. This body will have to be informed
beforehand as to whether or not it complies with the necessary requirements to be regarded as
a hedging instrument, therefore qualifying for the application of the rule on hedge accounting.

In order to carry out an analysis of sensitivity to exchange rate fluctuations of equity in investee
companies, denominated in a currency other than the functional currency, the Group uses Value at
Risk methodology, in order to estimate the maximum statistical loss which could be incurred owing to
the depreciation of the currencies in which investee equity is denominated. To date, the Group has not
applied any specific exchange risk management. However, in light of the current instability in the
exchange rate, it is analyzing various alternatives in this respect. Protection against impairment owing
to the exchange rate on investments in countries with currencies other than the euro is covered,
provided that it is possible, through borrowings in the currency of the actual countries if the market is
sufficiently deep or in a strong currency such as the dollar, where the correlation with the local
currency is significantly higher than with the euro. Correlation, estimated cost and depth of the debt
and derivative market determine the policy in each country.

If at 31 December 2003, the value of the euro had decreased/ increased by 10% with respect to all
other functional currencies, all other variables remaining consistent, equity would have
increased/decreased €22,122 thousand (2008, €21,265 thousand) owing to the effect of the assets
contributed by the subsidiaries operating in a functional currency different from the euro.

If the average exchange rate of the eurc in 2008 had falien / increased by a further 10% with respect
to all functional currencies other than the euro, all other variables being equal, profits after tax for the
year would have been €3,260 thousand (2008, €4,121 thousand) higher / lower, mainly as a result of
the exchange gains / losses on the translation of accounts receivable denominated in currencies other
than the euro.

(i} Price risk

The Group’s exposure to the price risk relating to equity securities due to investments held by the
Group and classified in the consolidated balance sheet as available for sale or at fair value through
profit or loss is not significant because of the limited significance of these investments with respect to
the Group’s total assets and equity.

(iii} Interest rates

The existence in the CIE Automotive group of variable interest bank borrowings means that the CIE
Automative group is exposed to interest rate variations with a direct effect on the income statement.
The general objective of the strategy will be to reduce the negative impact of interest rate rises and to
leverage as far as possible the positive impact of potential interest rate cuts.

In order to attain this objective, the management strategy will be arranged through financial
instruments that enable such flexibility. The possibility is expressly envisaged of arranging hedges for
identifiable and measurable portions of flows, which enables, if appropriate, the compietion of the
efficiency test evidencing that the hedging instrument reduces the risk of the hedged compohent in the
part assigned and is not incompatible with the established strategy and objectives.
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The Scope of Management covers the debentures reflected in the balance sheet of the group or any of
its companies. Circumstances may occasionally arise in which the hedges arranged cover the loans
already committed in the final stage of formalization and where the principal should be protected
against an increase in the interest rate.

In order to manage this risk, the CIE Automotive group will use financial derivatives that may be
considered hedging instruments and therefore the rules confined to accounting for such instruments
may be applied. The relevant accounting standard (IAS 39) does not specify the type of derivatives that
may be considered hedging instruments except for options issued or sold. However, the necessary
conditions to be met in order to be considered such are specified. As with respect to the management
of the exchange rate risk, the arrangement of any financial derivative which is suspected not to comply
with the necessary conditions to be regarded as a hedge will require the express approval of the
relevant management body. For reference, the basic hedging instruments will be the following:

- Interest rate swaps: Through these derivatives, the CIE Automotive group converts the variable
interest rate reference of a loan to a fixed reference with respect to either the entire or part of
the amount of the loan, affecting all or part of the life of the loan.

- Interest rate swaps: Through this derivative, the CIE Automotive Group converts a variable
interest rate into a rate linked to a range, which will not exceed a cap. In this way we limit the
negative impact of an unfavorable development.

- Other instruments: As discussed in the section relating to exchange rates, other hedging
derivatives may also be used, the arrangement of which will require the specific approval of the
relevant management body. [t wif have been previously reported whether the necessary
requirements to consider them hedging instruments have been met and therefore whether the
rule on accounting for hedges may be applied.

If during 2009 the average interest rate on borrowings denominated in euro had been 10 base points
higher / lower, all other variables being equal, profits after tax for the year would have been €364
thousand (2008, €492 thousand) lower / higher, largely as a result of an increase/ decrease in the
interest expense owing to interest on variable interest rate loans.

b) Liquidity risk

The prudent management of the liquidity risk entails maintaining sufficient cash and available financing
through sufficient credit facilities. In this respect, the strategy of the CE Automotive group is to
maintain through the Group’s Treasury department the necessary financing flexibility through
committed credit lines. Additionally, and on the basis of its liquidity needs, the Group uses liquidity
financial instruments (factoring without recourse and the sale of financial assets representing
receivables, through which the risks and rewards on accounts receivable are transferred] that, in
accordance with Group policy, do not exceed 30% of overdue trade receivable balances in order to
maintain liquidity levels and the structure of working capital required under its business pians.
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Management follows up the Group’s liquidity reserve forecasts together with the development of the
Net Financial Debt, which at 31 December 2009 and 2008 is calculated as follow:

2009 2008
Cagh and other cash equivalents (Note 12) 124,413 92,091
Other current financial assets (Note 8) 23,075 22,201
Avaitable lines of credit {Note 20) 96,276 52,673
Liquidity reserve 243,764 166,865
Borrowings from credit institutions (Note 20) 676,268 642,546
Other current financial liabilities (Note 8} 8,823 6,579
Cash and other cash equivalents (Note 12) (124,413) (92,091)
DOther current financial assets [Note 8) (23,0737) (22,201}
MNet financial debt 537,603 534,833
Non-current borrowings from credit institutions (Note 20} (363,360) (430,412)
Current net financial deht 174,243 104,421

The Group's Cash Department believes that the action in progress will allow illiquid situations to be
avoided. The forecast for the generation of cash in 2010 indicates payments for the year will be met
without the need to increase net financial debt.

It should be noted that on 23 December 2008 the Group concluded an agreement with the European
investment Bank [EIB] for an initial amount of €60 million that will be drawn down in 2010.

There are no restrictions over the use of cash / cash equivalents.

The Company actively manages working capital through net operating capital and net financial debt in
the short and longterm, although the working capital figure taken into consideration on an isolated
basis is not a key factor for understanding its financial statements. Based on the actions described
below, there are no relevant risks regarding the company's liquidity situation in accordance with its
solid, stable and quality relationships with customers and suppliers, as well as exhaustive monitoring of
its situation with financial institutions which frequently automatically renew current loans.

We attach below a table setting out a breakdown of the working capital presented in the consolidated

balance sheet of the CIE Automotive group at 31 Oecember 2009, on a comparative basis with that at
31 December 2008, indicating the relative significance of each of the headings that comprise it:
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2009 2008 Change
Inventories 138,335 176,044 (37.,709)
Trade and other receivables 180,193 166,836 13,357
Other current assets 2,560 1,522 1,038
Current tax assets £9,033 38,095 (8,062)
Operating current assets 350,121 382,497 [32,376)
Other current financial assets 23,075 22,201 874
Cash and other liguid assets 124,413 82,091 32,322
CURRENT ASSETS 497,609 496,789 820
Trade and other payables. 290,013 268,749 {20,264)
Current tax liabilities 29,687 23.821 (5,866)
Current provisions 14,550 10,168 {4,382]
Other current liabilities 73,433 60,7189 12,714)
Current operating liabilities 407,683 364.457 (43,226)
Short-term bank borrowings 312,808 212,134 (100,774)
Other financial liabilities B,823 6,579 (2,244)
CURRENT LIABILITIES 729,414 583,170 (146,244)
TOTAL WORKING CAPITAL (231,805) {86,381) {145,424}
OPERATING WORKING CAPITAL (57,562) 18,040 [(75,602)

The main reasons for the reduction in working capital at 31 December 2008 compared with last year
was the Group's on-going examination of the management of its net operating capital within its strategy
to optimize resources.

One of the Group’s strategic lines is to ensure the optimization and maximum saturation of the
resources devoted to the business. The Group therefore pays special attention to the net working
capital invested in the business. In keeping with this and as in previous years, in 2008 a major effort
was made to control and reduce the collection periods of customers and other debtors and minimum
inventories thanks to an excellent logistics and industrial management that enables us to supply
customers on a JIT basis. In this way we constantly optimize supplier payment periods and unify policies
and conditions throughout the Group, which has allowed this parameter to improve, as is shown in the
preceding tabie.

As regards the Company's financing situation, it is currently implementing action intended to improve its
"long-term financial debt", such as the aforementioned EIB loan, which had yet to be drawn down at 31
December 2009, and the negotiations with financial institutions to extend debt deadlines and move
debt into the long-term category.

The Club Deal concluded in 2008 allowed a significant portion of bank debt to be restructured,
integrating it into a bank syndicate.
Amounts payable to credit institutions in the short term include recurring loans:

- €63.9 million deriving from the recurring discount of our customers’ commercial paper.

- €39,8 million deriving from the financing of recurring imports.
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In any event, although both components of bank debt (€103.7 million] appear as current liabilities for
accounting purposes, the normal operation of the business show that they are stable and therefore
provide financing that is similar to non-current debt {31 December 2008, €31.4 million).

Noteworthy once again is the existence at 31 December 2009 of €96.3 million in unused credit lines
(31 December 2008, €52.5 million)}.

The table below sets out an analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities that will be settled, grouped
together by maturity, in accordance with the time at the balance sheet date to maturity stipulated in
the contract. The amounts shown in the tahle relate to the cash flows {including the interest that will he
paid) stipulated in the contract without discounting. Balances payable in the coming 12 months equal
their carrying value, given that the effect of discounting is not significant.

Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2 More than 5
year and 2 years and 5 years years

At 31 December 2009
Bank borrowings {Note 20] 312,908 226,826 173,273 -
Trade and othar payables 416,507 11,199 28,083 20,1684
At 31 December 2009
Bank borrowings (Note 20) 212,134 160,134 306,284 37,497
Trade and other payables . 371,038 13,887 23,062 12,872

Derivative financial instruments classed as hedging are settied at the net amount involved and
maturities are detailed in Note 20 for interest rate swaps. Cash flow hedge derivatives are expected to
be settled mainly in the short term [Note 8.b]].

e] Credit risk

Credit risks are not managed by customer groups. The credit risk deriving from cash and cash
equivalents, derivative financial instruments and bank deposits is considered immaterial in view of the
credit standing of the banks with which the Group works.

In order to minimize this risk in trade receivable balances, the CIE Automotive group’s strategy is based
on the arrangement of customer credit insurance policies and the setting of customer credit limits.
With respect to the customer credit limit, it should be noted that the Group’s policy is to avoid a
concentration of operations of more than 1D0% of business in individual customers or manufacturing
platforms.

Historically, it has been borne in mind that given the characteristics of the Group’s customers,
particularly, in the automotive segment, balances receivable due in less than 60 days entail no credit
risk. Despite the difficulties facing the industry, the Group continues to consider the credit quality of
these outstanding balances good.
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d) Raw material price risk

The results of the biofuel segment are subject to the volatility of oil prices and the prices of the raw
materials necessary to produce biofuels. To reduce exposure to this risk the Group has applied a
management policy based on the simuitaneous closing of acquisition and sale transactions involving
these products, thereby avoiding the risk of open operations. '

3.2 Hedge accounting

[AS 39 is very strict as regards the need for documentation that makes it possible to establish that an
instrument meets the necessary conditions to be regarded as a hedge.

Therefore, in the CIE Automotive group, clear and specific guidance has been estabiished in order to
prepare the documentation setting out all the necessary aspects for identifying and following up hedging
relations under this rule. At inception, formal documentation is prepared of the hedging relation, the
scope affected, its objective, while identifying the hedging instrument, the component or transaction
hedged and the nature of the risk covered and including an explanation of how the hedge efficiency will
be assessed. A hedge will be effective if at inception and over the life of the hedge the changes in cash
flows from the hedged component attributable to the risk covered may be expected to be almost totally
offset by changes in the cash flows of the hedge and the resuits are in the accepted gap of BO% -
125%.

The treatment and classification of the Group’s hedging transactions are described below:
a) Fair value hedges of assets and liabilities recognized or with a firm commitment

Changes in the fair value of these derivatives are recognized in the income statement together with any
change in the fair value of the assets or liabilities hedged which is attributable to the hedged risk.

b) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognized in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized
immediately in the income statement. '

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the period when the hedged
itern will affect profit or loss (for instance, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). However,
when the forecast transaction which is hedged results in the recognition of a nondfinancial asset or
liability, the gains or losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the
initial cost measurement of the asset or fability involved.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge

accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognized when the forecast transaction is uitimately recognized in the income statement.
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Occasionally, and even taking into account the perfect hedging of flows, there may be mismatches
between the characteristics of the hedges and the debts hedged. As from the time it is detected and
provided that this does not entail disproportionate readjustment costs, the precise modification of the
derivative is sought in order to adapt it to the new characteristics of the underlying.

This circumstance may arise in the event of the existence of a hedge arranged in anticipation of a highly
probable underlying and that requires at the time of its confirmation a readjustment of the derivative to
adapt it to the underlying to which it is assigned. This situation may arise both if the derivative is not
designated as a hedge at inception and in the opposite case, i.e, if the underlying has been defined as a
highly probable transaction.

c¢) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognized immediately in the income statement.

d)} Test of effectiveness and estimate of the fair value of derivative hedging instruments

Effectiveness testing: The measurement method adopted by the CIE Automotive group relates to its risk
management strategy. If the principal terms of the hedging instrument and hedged underlying agree,
the changes in cash flows attributable to the risk hedged may be entirely offset.

CIE Automotive Group uses one of three available methods to measure the effectiveness of hedges. The
most comman is the offset method (dollar offset] to measure the effectiveness of cash flow hedging on
both a retrospective and prospective basis.

Based on the underlying asset and the type of hedge, CIE Automotive also uses the Variance Reduction
Method and the Linear Regression method. The only condition is that the method applied to each
hedge to measure its effectiveness must be maintained throughout the life of the hedge.

Measurement of the hedging derivative: The Group uses various tools to measure and management its
risk in derivatives. |f appropriate, the measurement of derivative instruments is carried out internally
and is reinforced through the contribution of an independent advisors not related to any financial
institution. For these valuations professional market tools are used provided by licensed platforms by
Reuters and Bloomberg, and book stores specializing in financial calcutations such as “Financiaicad™.

3.3 Measurement method {fair value estimate)

Effective 1 January 2009 the Group has adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 regarding financial
instruments measured at fair value. This modification requires disclosures regarding fair value by level
in accordance with the following hierarchy:

- Listed price [not adjusted} on active markets for similar assets and liabilities {Tier 1).

- Inputs other than the listed prices in Tier 1, which must be either directly observable (for
example, prices of reference) or indirectly observable (for example, price derivatives] (Tier 2).
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- Inputs regarding the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data [non-
observable data) {Tier 3)}.

The foilowing table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2009 [(Note 8.b)):

Total

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 31.12.09
ASSETS
Assets at fair value through profit or foss:
- Derivatives - - - -
Fedging derivatives - 506 - 506
TOTAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE - 506 - 506
LIABILITIES
Lighilities at fair vaiue through changes in profit or loss:
- Derivatives - (243) - (243)
Hedging derivatives - (8,580) - {8.580)
TOTAL UABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE - (8,823) - (8,823)

The fair value of the financial instruments that are marked on active markets is based on market. prices
at the balance sheet date. The listed market price used for financial assets is the ordinary buy price.
These instruments are included in Tier 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
measurement techniques. The Company uses a variety of methods such as estimated discounted cash
flows and makes assumptions based on existing market conditions at each balance sheet date. The fair
value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows. The fair
value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using listed forward exchange market rates
at the balance sheet date. The carrying amounts of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair value. The fair value of financial liabilities for financial reporting purposes is
estimated by discounting future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Company for similar financial instruments.

If all the inputs for measuring a financial instrument at fair value are observable in the market, the
financial instrument is included in Tier 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on data observable in the market, the financial
instrument is included in Tier 3.

At 31 December 20083 and 2008 the Company did not record any financial assets in Tier 3.
3.4 Capital risk management

The Group’s equity management objectives are to safeguard its capacity to continue operating on a
going-concern basis in order to obtain a return for shareholders and profits for other equity holders
and maintain an optimal equity structure by reducing its cost.
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In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group could adjust the amount of dividends
payable to shareholders, refunding capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt,

The Group follows up capital in accordance with the gearing ratio in line with industry practice. This
ratio is calculated as the net financial debt divided into total capital employed in the business. Net
financial debt is calculated as total borrowings, plus current financial liabilities, less cash and cash
equivalents and less current financial assets, as each of these headings is shown in the consclidated
accounts, Total capitai employed in the business is calculated as equity, as shown in the consolidated
accounts, plus the net financial debt.

In 2003 the Group’s strategy which has not varied since 2008 has consisted of maintaining a gearing
ratio of approximately D.50. Leveraging indexes at 371 December 2008 and 2003 were as foliows:

2009 2008

Borrowings [Note 20] 676,268 542,546
Current financial liabitities [Note 8] 8,823 6,579
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and current financial assets (Notes B and 12] (147,488} (114,292}
Net. financial debt (Note 3.1.b)) 537,603 534,833
Equity £89,135 254,866
Total capitat employed in the business B26,738 789,699
Leveraging index 0.65 0.68

The Company has obtained a Syndicated Loan which includes obligations regarding compliance with
certain financial ratios. Net financial debt / EBITDA, EBITDA / Financial expense, Net financial debt/

Equity.

Furthermore, on 20 July 2009 the Group concluded a commercial foan agreement with a syndicate of
creditors intended to repay and cancel the financing agreements that the Group maintained with
several financial institutions, to finance production investments and R&0+i, and to finance the Group's
cash needs. This contract requires compliance with certain financial ratios: Net financial debt /
EBITDA, EBITDA / Financial expense, Net financial debt/ Equity and a maximum Capex (investments in
fixed assets and acquisitions of shareholdings).

On 23 December 2009 the Group obtained financing from the European Investment Bank to finance
R&D+ projects that also requires compliance with certain financial ratios, basically the same as the
preceding loan. However, no amount had been drawn down from this loan at 31 December 2008.

Note 20 sets out a detailed description of these obligations.
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4. Accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are evaluated continually and they are based on historical experience and
other factors, including the expectation of future events that are helieved to be reasonabie under the
circumstances at hand.

4.1 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The Group makes estimates and judgments concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and judgments that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

a) Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group verifies annually whether there is an impairment loss in respect of goodwill, in accordance
with the accounting policy in Note 2.7. The amounts recoverable from cash generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates (Note
7).

If the revised estimated discount rate which is applied to discounted cash flows were 10% higher than
management’s estimates, the Group would continue not to need to reduce the carrying value of
goodwill.

With respect to the assumptions used to determine EBITDA {operating profit plus depreciation and
amortization, basic to calculate the free cash flow] of the CGUs, the most conservative scenario has
been used such that negative variations in the gross margin are uniikely to arise.

b) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. A significant level of judgment is
required to determine the worldwide provision for income tax. The Group recognizes deferred taxes
which, in accordance with legislation effective in different tax administrations, result from muitiple
temporary differences in assets and fiabilities. Nonetheless, there are certain transactions and
calculations with respect to which the uitimate calculation of the tax is uncertain in the ordinary course
of business. Until 2007, inclusive, the Group recognized liabilities for possible tax contingencies brought
forward on the basis of estimates of whether additional taxes will be necessary. In 2008 and 2009
resolutions were received from various competent tax authorities which adjusted the self-assessments
previously presented by group companies. The assessments raised by the tax administrations do not
entail a significant outflow of funds from the Group. Therefore, it has been understood that at the year
end the assessments raised by the tax administrations represent the best estimate of the risk related
to Community legislation and therefore the liabilities that would cover the aforementioned contingencies
have been eliminated.
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The calculation of income tax has not required making significant estimates except in the figure relating
to the recognition of tax credits in the year. Had the premises used in this estimate changed by 10%,
the effect on results for the year would not exceed (+/-) approximately 3% in both 2008 and 2009.

c¢)] Product warranty

Warranty product risks are recognized when there is a firm claim not covered by the relevant
insurance policy.

4.2 Significant judgments when applying accounting policies

The most significant judgments and estimates that have been taken into account when applying the
accounting policies described in Note 2 relate to:

- Premises and calculations required in the analysis of the impairment of goodwill, as described in
Notes 2.7.a}, 4.1.a)and 7.

- Estimate of the recognition and application of tax credits, as described in Notes 2.18.b], 4.1.b]),
23 and 30.

- Estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment {Note 2.5].

- In order to evaluate financial derivatives and other assets, CIE Automotive applies methods
commonly used in financial markets. In general, the measurement of any financial derivative is
based on the discounting of cash flows, a method which is based on the interest rate curve and
from which the zero coupon curve is obtained together with the discount factors and the
embedded forward rates. In those cases in which optional elements are inciuded, the implicit
volatility affecting markets is used and option measurement methods are used such as Black-
Scholes for plain vanilla options or Vanna-Volga when concerning options that inciude activating or
deactivating conditions. Professional market applications are used in this respect and an
independent external advisor is used when necessary. '

5. Segment information

The Delegate Committee, consisting of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and
the Managing Director, has been identified as the maximum decision making body within the Group.
This Delegate Committee reviews the (Group's internal financial information for the purposes of
evaluating performance and assigning resources to segments.

Management has determined operating segments based on the structure of the reports examined by
the Deiegate Committee.

The Committee analyzes the business of CIE Automotive Group from both a geographical and product
point of view.
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The Group operates in two operating segments:

- Automotive
- Biofuels

Automotive segment

This segment relates to the production of parts and components for the automotive industry, operating
as a TIER 2 in most cases. Although the group supplies certain automobile manufacturers directly
[OEM) on some occasions, CIE normally acts as a TIER 2 since the role of TIER 1 is taken on by the
OEMs,

The CIE Automotive group’s model is based on two strategic focal points: multi-technology and the
global market, which entails capacity to supply technology woridwide.

Muiti-technology: command of different technologies and processes enables complex high value-added
products to be offered. The CIE Automotive Group has the capacity to design and manufacture
products using alternative or complementary technologies.

Global market: Worldwide industrialization and supply capacity. The Group has global customers and
the CIE Automotive Group has the capacity to supply customers from different geographical areas.

This operating segment is also analyzed based on geographic criteria (Basically Europe and America,
since the rest of the geographic areas, grouped with Europe, are not significant).

Biofuel segment

CIE Automotive Group has an integral management strategy for the value chain in the biofuels sector.

This segment engages in supplying raw materials and producing and distributing biofuels.

¢ Raw materials: the intent is to add activities that guarantee the competitive supply of all raw
materials, both those deriving from Agriculture (virgin oil), and recycled oil, animal fats, oleine and
other waste.

¢ Production: production of biofuels from recycled oils and virgin oils.
+ Distribution: sales, logistics and distribution network, both nationally and internationally.

The Delegate Committee manages operating segments based mainly on the development of the main
financial figures such as sales, EBITDA (operating profit plus depreciation) and EBIT [operating profit].
The information received by the Delegate Committee also includes financial income and expense, tax
issues, although these items are analyzed at the group level since they are managed in a centralized
manner.

There are no sales between the two segments.
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a} Segment information

Results by segment are as follows:

0J7897056

2009 2008
Automotive Automotive
Europe America Biofuels Total Europe Bmeriza Biofuels Total

Revenues 510,204 458,830 179,979 1,149,013 687,604 470,512 287,194 1,455,310
Other aperating
income/{expense) {except
depreciation/amortization) (466,942]  [381,923) (183,774} {1,032,639) (588,777} (378,036) (307,8600 (%,274,673)
Oepreciation/amortization _ [41,620) (20,098) £2,000% (63,718} (55,790) (19,288) (1,899} (76,977]
Operating profit 1,642 56,809 {6,795) 52,656 43,037 73,188 [12,5B65) 103,660
EBITOA (Operating profit
plus depraciation) 43,262 76,907 [3,795) 116,374 98,827 92,476 {10,666) 180,637

Other segment items included in the income statement are as follows:

2009 2008
Automotive Automotive
Europe America Biofuels Total Eurcpe America Biofuels Total

Amort/Oeprec.; [41,620) (20,098) (2,000) (63,71B) (55,790) {18,998) (1,899) (76,977}
- Proparty, plant and

equipment [Note B} (34,056} (18,875) {1,578) {54,509) (50,609; {17421} (1.788) (69,818}
Antangible assets {Note

7] [7.564) [1.223) (422) {9,209) [B,258} {790) (11 (7.159)

The reconciliation of operating profits and profits attributable to the parent company is set out below:

2009 2008
Operating profit 52,656 103,660
- Other financial income /[expense) (24,253) [34,938]
- Gains/ losses financial instruments at fair value 171 (870}
- Share in resuits obtained hy associates consolidated using the equity method (1,589)] (100}
- Corporate Income Tex {(11,664) (16,05D0)
- Besults efter taxes on discontinued operetions {8,948}' -
- Minority shareholders (attributed loss] 3,087 2,126
Profit /(loss) attributahle to the parent company 11,120 53,823
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Segment assets and liabilities and investments in the year are as follows:

2009 2008

Automaotive Automotive
Area / location Europe America Biofuels Total Europe America Biofuels Total
Taotal assets (*} 757,754 592,099 188,062 1,537,915 793,488 414,025 189,487 1,387,000
Total kabiities 562,037 372,902 183,103 1,218,042 718,363 237,777 162,792 4,118,932
Fixed asset
adcitions [Notes B
and 7) 43,781 J2,846 15,334 92,031 74,541 34,471 52,692 161,704
Asset disposals
{Notes 6 and 7) [B,536) (2,683) (158) (9,377]) (21,501) {2.638) (B09) (24,948)
Net investments
during the year
[Notes 6 and 7]
[**) 37.215 30,263 15,176 82,654 53,040 31,8343 51,883 136,756

{*) Does not include investments included in the scope of consolidation
{**] Excludes movemnents in goodwill.

Segment assets mainly include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, accounts
receivable and operating cash. Investments in investees inciuded in the consolidated are excluded.

Segment liabilities include operating liabilities and long-term financing, exclud:ng those pertaining to the
Group which are eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in assets include additions of property, plant and equipment (Note 6} and intangible assets

(Note 7).

Transfers or transactions between segments are conducted under ordinary business terms and
conditions that should also be available to non-related third parties.

b) Customer information

The group is at limited risk due to its sales policy. Maximum invoicing per customer or platform does
not reach 10% or 6%, respectively, of total ordinary revenues.

55.-



0J7897058

CLASE 8"’

CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2009 AND 2008
{Thousand eura)

6. Property, plant and equipment

Set out below is a breakdown of property, plant and equipment showing movements:

Inclusion due
to changes

in scope of
consolidation
Balance at [Notes 1, 35 [*] Other Balance at
31.12.07 and 37) Additions Disposals Transfers movements 31.12.08
Cost
Land and buildings 215,862 18,634 10,7890 [6.448] - [17.731) 221,107
Plant and machinery 666,495 27,303 36,464 (2,019 1,005 [28,822)] 700,428
Other assets 154,086 2,795 30,815 (13,707} 2,601 (4,586] 172,004
Prepayments and PPE in
course of conskruction 56,841 248 68,325 (698) (6,824) {4,6089) 113,282
1.093,284 48,980 146,394 -(22,873) [3.218) [65,748) 1,706,813
Depreciation
Land and buildings 45,281 3.806 5,252 (5.485) - (3,580) 45,284
Plant and machinery 393,474 7,001 45,719 [6,243) - [25.,364) 414,587
Other assets 113,828 2,022 18,847 [3.371) - (1,891) 129,435
562,693 12,829 59,818 £15,099) - [30.,835) 588,308
Provisions
Plant and machinery ' 3,068 - 76 (**)(1.868) - [7) 1,269
3,068 - 76 [1.B68) - (7] 1,269
Net carrying value 537,623 616,244

(*] Basically inciudes the effect of exchange fluctuations of PPE in the currency of foreign subsidiaries.
(* *} Provision relating to tand and a building sold in 2008.
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Inclusion due
to changes

in scope of
consalidation
Balance at (Maotes 1, 35 *) [*) Other Balance at
31.12.08 and 37) Additions Disposals Transfers movements 31.12.09
Cost
Land and buitdings 221,107 16,474 3,618 (2,138) 14,415 10,801 264,279
Plant and machinery 700,426 45,664 28,389 (B,938) 6,873 36,3894 808,708
Other assets 172,004 11,725 11.260 (2,408) 4,190 4614 201,385
Prepayments and PPE in
course of construction 113,282 - 41,728 (2,239} (38,191} 5,685 120,199
1,206,818 73,753 84,8899 (15,721} (12,713) 57,434 1,394,571
Depreciation
Land and buldings 45,284 10,015 5,082 211 - 1,774 61,944
Plant and machinery 414,587 26,498 38,636 {4,497) [4.214) 22,489 493,459
Other assets 129,435 6,046 10,791 {2,038) [402) 1,061 144,893
589,306 42,559 54,509 [B,74B) [4,616) 25,324 700,336
Provisions ]
Plant and machinery 1,269 - - [1,032] - - 237
1,269 - - [1,032) - - 237
Net carrying value 616,244 593,998
™) Basically includes the effect of exchange fluctuations of PPE in the currency of foreign subsidiaries.

[(**]  Includes both transfers of property, plent and equipment under construction to completed assets and the reclassification of
assets relating to assets associated with businesses classed as held-for-saie in 2009 (Note 13).

a)] Restatements

The amount of the net restatements accumulated at the end of 2009 in accordance with commercial
law in force in the various countries in which the subsidiaries are located totals approximately €12,317
thousand (2008, €16,570 thousand). The effect of these revaluations amounted to €149 thousand in
depreciation (€134 thousand in 2008]. '

b) Property, plant and equipment by geographical area

Set out below is a breakdown of Praoperty, plant and equipment by geographical location at 31
December 2008 and 2009:

Miillion euro

2009 2008
Accumulate Net Accumulate Net
d carrying d carrying
Cost depreciatian value Cost depreciation value
America 413 (208) 207 270 (129} 141
Europe a8z (495} 487 936 (461} 475
1,395 (701} 694 1,206 (590} 616
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c) Property, plant and equipment not used in operations

At 31 December 2009 and 2008 there are no material assets not used in operations.

d) Impairment losses

Foliowing the addition of the Recyde Group in 2007, a provision amounting to €1,211 thousand was
included in the consolidated figures for the impairment of certain machinery which were no longer in
use. At 31 December 2009 €210 thousand remained in that provision.

e) Fully depreciated assets

At 31 December 2008 there is fullydepreciated property, plant and equipment with a cost of
€322,484 thousand still in use (2008, €226,272 thousand].

f] Property, plant and equipment subject to guarantees

At 31 December 2009 there is property, plant and eguipment {land and buildings] pledged to
guarantee debts with public administrations totaling €10.5 million, which are pending payment at 31
December 20083 (€4.4 million in 2008]) (Note 22].

g)l Insurance

The consolidated Group has taken out a number of insurance policies to cover risks relating to
property, plant and equipment, The coverage provided by these policies is considered to be sufficient.

h) Finance leases

Plant and eguipment include the following amounts in respect of finance leases under which the Group
is the Lessee: ,

2009 2008
Capitalized finance lease cost 12,868 11,442
Accumulated amortization (7,578) {5,844)
MNet book value 5,280 5,498

The amounts payable under finance leases are carried under Other liabilities (Note 22].
i) Capitalization of interest

Borrowing costs capitalized during the year amount to €2,891 thousand (2008: €2,223 thousand).
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7. Intangible assets

Set out below is an analysis of the main intangible asset classes showing movements in assets
generated internally and other intangible assets:

2008
Computer Prepayment

Goodwill R&D software s and other Total
Cost
Balathce at 31.12.07 184,588 27.472 15,836 4,171 232,068
Additions /disposals due to change in )
consaolidation scope 5.684 5,414 83 819 13,012
Additions ’ - [*1(11,507) 4789 3,324 15,310
Disposals - {1.650) {429) - (2.075]
Transfers - 1.817 1,401 - 3,218
Other movements [* *) [17.983] {394) f227) [9786) {19,580])
Balance st 31.12.08 173,300 44,166 17,153 7,334 241,853
Depreciation
Balance at 31.12.07 - 11,933 9,241 1,118 22,286
Inclusion due to change in the scope of
consolidation - 72 26 444 542
Additions - 5,232 1,861 266 7,159
Oisposals - (1,290} (292} {148) {1,730)
Transfers - - - - -
Other maovements (* *) - (562} (27) {484) {1.073)
Balance at 31.12.08 - 15,385 10,609 1,180 27,184
Net carrying value .
At 31 December 2009 184,588 15,538 5,585 3.059 203,782
At 31 Decernber 2009 173,300 28,781 8,544 6,144 214,769
™ Oeriving from the industrialization of new projects launched during the year.

{**] Basically includes the effect of exchange fluctuations in the currencies in which intangible assets of foreign subsidiaries

are denominated.
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2009
Computer Prepayment

Goodwill R&D software s and other Total
Cost
Balance at 31.12.08 173,300 44,166 17,153 7,334 241,853
Additions /disposals due to change in
consolidation scope 16,472 §.,324 - - 22,796
Additions - 6,154 208 670 7,03P
Disposals - {352) - {50) (402}
Transfers [* *] [2,053) [647) 3,005 (6.482) [B8,1771
Other movements {*} 22,348 1,400 1680 2,273 28,181
Batance at 31.12.09 210,067 57,045 20,526 3,745 281,383
Depreciation
Baiance at 31.12.08 - 15,385 10,608 1,190 27.184
Inzlusion due to change in the scope of
consalidation - 2,597 - - 2,597
Additions - 7,084 2,040 75 9,209
Disposals - - - - -
Transfers (* *) E [13B) 49 (615} {704)
Other movements (*) - (207) 40 774 607
Balance at 31.12.09 - 24,731 12,738 1,424 38,893
Net carrying value
At 31 Becember 2009 173,300 28,781 6,544 6,144 214,769
At 31 December 2009 210,067 32,314 7,788 2,321 252,480

£*] Basically includes the effect of exchange fluctuations in the currencies in which intangible assets of foreign subsidiaries are
denominated. ‘

{**] Includes both transfers of property, plant and equipment undar construction to completed assets and the reclassification of
assels relating to assels associated with businesses classed as held-forsale i 20089 [Note 13).
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The variations in goodwill resuiting from changes in consolidation are as follows (Note 35):

Automotive segment

Shanghai Sandum Auto Parts Manufacture Co., Ltd.

CIE Praga Louny, a.s.

Fundicion Alcasting, S.1L.U,

Pintura y Ensambles de México, 5.4, de C.V.
CIE Celaya, S.A.P.L. de C.V.

Pintura, Estampado y Montaje S.A.P.|. de C.V.
CIE Joamar, s.r.o,

Joamar Maroc, S.A.R.L. d’A.L.

Biofuel segment

Gestion de Aceites Vegetales, 5.1. [G.AV.E.}
Naturoif Combustiveis Renovaveis, S.A.
Heciclado de Residuos Grasos, 5.L.U. (Resigras)
Bionor Tecnologta, S.L.U.

Bionor Transformacién, S.A.U.

a) Goodwill impairment testing

2009 2008
(722) 478
- 1,024
- 1,307
- 4,063
5,202 -
3,695 -
119 -
705 -
- 566
- (764)
1,558 -
182 -
5,733 -
16,472 6.694

Goodwill has been assigned to the Group’s cash generating units on the basis of the criterion of
grouping together under each CGU all the Group’s assets and liabilities that jointly and indivisibly
generate cash flows in an area of the business from a technology and / or geographical and / or

customer viewpoint, on the basis of the synergies and risks shared.
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Set out below is goodwill allocation at CGU level [production company or group of production
companies);

2009 2008
Fair value Fair value

Individual company or group assigned to assigned to
Group of companies of companies [Appendix} Goodwill assets [*) Goodwill assets [*)
Automotive segment
Metal Europe Egafia 2, CIE Udalbide, CIE

Unitoals,

T.M. Norma, CIE Metal 9,247 2,356 5,150 2,388
Aluminium Europe G.C. Vilanova, Talleres

Matrimold, Fabricacién de

Componentes de Motor,

GSB-TBK, Tarabusi,

Inyectametat, CIE Matricon,

Fundicién Alcasting 8,073 4,263 7,844 4,564
Brazil Brazil Sub-Group 83,974 17,441 64,212 12,768
Plastic Europe Plasfil, CIE Plasty, Orbelan,

CIE Joamar, doamar Maroc 8,684 " 7.872 -
Machining Europe Gamako, CIE Meceuto,

Mecasur, CIE Praga Louny,

CIE Compiegne, Subgrupo

Recyde 47,848 16,914 47,974 18,234
Others in Europe Advanced Comfort Systems

sub-group 1,607 B B -
Mexico CIE-OESC subgroup, CIE

Berriz de Mexico subgroup 28,574 1,208 18,725 1,174
Forging Eurape UAB CEE LT Forge, Galfor, .

Legazpi 272 1,811 277 1,848
China CIE Automotiva Parts

subgroupfShanghai} - . 713 2,083
Biofuel segment '
Biofuels CIE Automotive Bioanergia

subgroup 24,787 - 19,431 -

210,067 43,993 173,300 43,060

{*1 Net of depreciation/amortization

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash- flow projections based on five year financial budgets approved by management. Cash flows
for periods over five years are extrapolated on the basis of a prudent assumption concerning the
estimated growth rates that are always lower than the average longterm growth rate for the
automotive business in which each of the CGUs operates.
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b) Key assumptions used in the calculation of value in use

The discount rate applied to cash flow projections amounts to:

Automaotive
Metal Europe
Aluminium Europe
Brazil

Plastic Europe
Mechining Europe
Others in Europa
Mexico

Forging Europe
China

Biofuels

Spain

Europe
Guatemala

2009

2008

7.41% - 7.47%
7.41% - 7.47%
9.95%
7.36%-7.47%
7.33% -7.47%
7.31%
8.27%
7.47%-8B.21%
8.68%

8.33%-8.47%
8.31%
12.02%

7.24% - 7.27%
6.75% - 7.27%
10.29%
7.14% - 7.27%
7.07%-7.27%
8.80%
B8.71%-7.87%
6.88%

7.07%-7.14%
6.90%
10.29%

The discount rate is after tax and reflects the specific risk related to significant segments and has been
applied in the analysis of 2008 and 2009.

Budgeted EBITOA (operating profit plus depreciation/ amortization) is determined by Company
management in their strategic plans, taking into account operations with a similar structure to the
current structure and based on prior year experience. These EBITDAs (operating profit pfus
amortization/ depreciation} vary between 10% and 20% of revenues in 2009. Other net movements
forecast in cash and flows related to taxes are added to these EBITDAs until free cash ievels after tax
generated in each year are reached.

The result of using cash flows before tax and a discount rate before tax does not differ significantly
from the result of using cash flows after tax and a discount rate after tax.
c] Results of the analysis

The Group has verified that in 2009 and 2008 there is no impairment loss on goodwiill. Note 4
includes a sensitivity analysis of the calculation of the impairment loss on goodwill.

d) Fully depreciated assets

At 31 December 2008 there are fully-amortized intangible assets, basically computer applications, with
a cost of €9.9 million still in use (2008, €8.1 million).
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8. Financial assets

At 31 Decemher 2007
Additions to consolidation (Notes B.d} and
35]

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Fair value adjustrments

- Results

- Equity

At 31 December 2008
2003

Non-current

Current
Investments in associated companies

Held-to- Depasits,
maturity Derivative guarantees Investments in
financial financial and securities associated
assets instruments portfalio companies Total
43,934 1,132 7,549 2,218 54,833
- - 380 - 380
18,745 - 70 - 18,815
{36,955) (7) [1.647) (250 (38,8591
- (8701 - (*1 (100 (870
- {6,782) - - [B.782)
25,724 (*) 16,527) 6,352 1,868 27,417
4,000 - 5,827 - 9,827
21,724 52 425 - 22,201
- - - 1,868 1,868

(*1 €6,579 thousand classified as financial liabilities in Current liabilities on the balance sheet at 31 Oecemnber 2008 [Note 8

b]3.

Held-ta- Deposits,
maturity Derivative guarantees Investments in
financial financial and securities assaciated
assets instruments portfolio companies Tatal
At 31 December 2008 25,724 (6,527} 6,352 1,868 27,417
Additions - - - 1,348 627 1,875
Disposals {708B) - [1,23B) - £1.944)
Fair value adjustments
- Resuits - [56] - (1,589) (1,645}
- Equity - {1,734} - - (1.734)
At 31 Decemher 2009 25,018 [*}{8,317) 6,462 [(**1806 [*)**)24,069
2009
MNon-current 2,667 - 6,244 - 8,911
Current 22,351 506 218 - 23,075
Investments in associated companies - - - 1,738 1,739
[*) Of this amount €506 thousand relate to derivative financial assets and €8,823 thousand relates to derivative financial
tiabilities, recorded under liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.
*" Of this amount €833 thousand is recorded as a non-current provision under liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet

in order to prevent the cost of the shareholding being a negative amount. The valug of shareholdings in associated
companies on the asset. side of the balance sheet therefore totels €1,739 thousand.
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a) Held-to-maturity financial assets

2009 2008
Thousand euro Interest rate Thousand euro Interest rate
Fixed income 5,833 Euribor - 0.5 7,125 Euribor - 0.5
Short-term loans (*](18,968) Euribor + 2.5 18,179 Euribor + 2.5
Other 219 420
25,018 25,724

(*)  Includes €17,800 thousand (€15,237 thousand in 2008) relating to the purchase option held by CIE Bérriz
de México, S.A. de C.V. at the end of the year over the shares in the “Joint Venture” CIE DESC Automotive,
S.A.P.lL de C.V. [Notes 1 and 35) and which were exercised in January 2010, This amount is considered to
be a payment on account of potential future acquisitions (Note 39).

These securities have suffered no impairment losses and nor have any financial assets held to maturity
been reclassified.

Maximum -credit risk exposure at the reporting date is the carrying vailue of assets.

b) Derivative financial instruments

2009 2008
Assets Liahilities Assets Liabilities
Interest rate swaps:
- cash flow hedges 41 (8,580) - (5.857)
- not hedged - [243) - [195)
Exchange forwards — cash fiow hedges 465 - 52 (427)
Total 506 (8,823) 52 (6,579)

. Interest rate swaps (variabie to fixed]

The notional principal on interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2009 amounted to
€291,182 thousand [2008: €202,758 thousand), of which €281,139 thousand is classified as
hedging (2008, €190,417 thousand).

At 31 December 2009 fixed interest rates vary between 1.24% and 4.73% (2008: 2.91% and
4.73%) and the principal variable interest rate is the EURIBOR.

. Foreign currency cash flow hedges
At 31 Oecember 2009 foreign currency forwards amounted to:
- Purchase of US doltars: USD235 thousand (2008: USO7 10 thousand).
- Sale of US dollars: USD 12,000 thousand (2008: USDB0,000 thousandy).
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Highly probable hedged foreign currency future transactions are expected to take place on
different dates in the next 12 months. Profit and losses recognized in the equity hedging reserve
(Note 15} on foreign currency forward contracts at 31 December 2003 are recognized in the
income statement in the period that is affected by the open transaction. Gains and losses in
equity in respect of currency forwards at 31 December 2009 will be transferred to the income
statement over the next 12 months (similar maturities in 2008].

c) Deposits, guarantees and securities portfolio

The amount of this heading at 31 December 2009 basically includes deposits and guarantees and €60
thousand relates to the investment in Fundacion CIE i+D+i in 2008.

d) Investments in associated companies

Except for the companies set out below, all subsidiaries have been consolidated under the full
consolidation method.

The companies consolidated under the equity method are as follows:

Total

Shareholding
value Share in profita [100%) Assets [100%)] Liabifities

% effective % effective
shareholding shareholding 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Biocombustibles de

Zierbana, S.A. 20% 16.1% - 655 [1.480) 97} 48,938 41,125 53,085 39,621
Biocombustibles La

Sede, 5.1, 40% 32.2% 1,125 1,200 (75] - 2,813 3.012 100 24
Giycoleo, s.r.l. 20% 32.2% - 5 - 2 .- 14 - 14
Belgium Forge, N.V. 100% 100% - - (34) - - 55 - 1011
ClE-Avtocom Kaluga,

LLG 1] 35% 35% 1 - - - - - _ _
CIE-Avtocormp, LLG 35% 35% 600 . - . - . . .
Other - - 13 a8 - - - - - _

1,738 ‘1,868 [1,589) [99)

The value of investments in associates does not include goodwill.

e) Credit quality of financial assets
All financial assets maintained by the Company at 31 December 2009 that have not fallsn due or

suffered impairment during the year are considered to be of high guality and do not present any
indication of impairment.
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9. Other non-current assets

This balance sheet heading records the following items and amounts:

2009 2008
Loans to personnel {Note 36) 7,123 6,507
Loans to non-consolidated group companies and associates 1.761 1,982
Loans to third parties 5,348 6,801
Other balances 668 621
14,898 15,911

Loans to personnel hasically include the amortized cost of loans maturing in 2013.

Loans to group companies include the following balances:

Thousand euro

2009 2008
Biocombustibles de Zierbana, 5.A. [Nate 1.1 and 8d)) 1,761 1,710
Other - 272
1,761 1,982

On 15 December 2007, all shareholders of the associate Biocombustibles de Zierbana, S.A. sighed a
subordinate loan agreement for a total of €53,7 million distributed in proportion to each shareholder’s
shareholding and they are subject to the obligations entered into by the investee with credit institutions.
The repayment of the amount of the principal relating to the Company, €1,140 thousand, is
subordinated to the repayment of all the amounts due by Biocombustibles de Zierbana, S.A. to the
credit institutions with which it has entered into a financing agreement. The interest rate agreed for the
operation is Euribor +3%, payable annually.

The breakdown by maturity of the loans to third parties is follows:

2009 2008
Between 1 and 2 years 3894 4,503
Between 3 and 5 years 4,952 2.2898
5,346 6,801
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10. Trade and other receivables

2009 2008
Trade receivables : 172,063 161,551
Less: Prﬁvision for impairment losses on receivables (3,308} {3,514]
Trade receivables — Net 168,755 158,037
Other receivables 11,438 8,799
Total 180,193 166,836

Trade receivable and debtor balances do not vary from fair value on the basis of the relevant cash flows
discounted at market rates.

At 31 December 2008 trade receivable balances and accounts receivable discounted and advanced at
financial institutions amount to €63,966 thousand [€55,840 thousand in 2008]. Transactions have
been accounted for as a bank loan{Note 20).

The amounts covered by factoring, or the sale of trade receivables at the yearend have been written off
from trade receivables as they meet the conditions to be considered factoring without resource and
ownership of the associated risks has therefore been transferred to the relevant financial institutions.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group has a large
number of customers, internationally dispersed [Note 5).

Histarically, it has been borne in mind that given the characteristics of the Group’s customers,
particularly, in the automotive segment, balances receivable due in less than 60 days entail no credit
risk due to being within the normal collection period in the sector. Despite the difficulties facing the
sector, the Group continues to consider that the credit quality of these outstanding balances is good
and understands that there is no impairment or default. They mostly relate to payments associated
with business disagreements that are set to be resolved in the short term.

At 31 December 2008 accounts receivable amounting to €12.3 million {€13.5 million in 2008) were
more than B0 days past due although most of them had suffered no impairment since they refate to
independent customers with no record of bad debts and that operate in the automative industry, where
many payments relate to milestones in project industrialization.
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An aging analysis of these accounts is as follows:

2009 2008
Between 2 and 4 months 3,021 5,544
Between 4 months and 12 months 3,736 4,313
Over 12 months 5,575 3,603
12,332 13,466
[Provision} (3,308) (3,514}
9,024 9,952

Accounts receivable that have suffered impairment and have therefore been provided for mainly relate
to balances that are more than 18 months old. Part of these accounts receivable for which a provision
has been refiected is expected to be recovered. Other accounts included in receivables contain no
assets that have suffered impairment.

The credit quality of trade receivable balances not due or impaired may be classed as high and with no
credit risk.

The Group has arranged credit insurance for most sales concerning de facto insolvency, legal
insolvency and the business and political risk. Credit insurance contracts are arranged through two
leading national insurance companies and the guarantee percentage varies from 85% to 99% (in both
2009 and 2008).

Maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting date is the carrying value of each account receivable, as
broken down abave.

The movement in the impairment provisions in 2008 and 2009 relates to the following amounts and
items: '

At 31 Decemher 2009 : 6,352
Inclusion /(exclusion from} consolidation 131
Altlocations (Note 27) 1,493
Recoveries {Note 27) (177}
Balance write-offs ‘ ' (4,285])
At 31 December 2009 3,514
thclusion /[exclusion from) consolidation -
Allocations (Note 271 2,048
Recoveries [Note 27} £1,509)]
Balance write-offs (748)
At 31 December 2009 3,308
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The carrying value of the Group’s accounts receivable is denominated in the following currencies

[thousand euro):

US dollar

Czech koruna

Mexican peso
Brazilian real

Chinese yuan renminbi
Ramanian Lei

Euro

11. Inventories

Goods purchased for resale

Raw materials and supplies

Work in progress and semifinished goods
Finished products

Prepayments to suppliers

2009 2008

25,715 27.333
1,777 1,144

3,250 403
24,820 21,578
2,358 1,042
435 212
113,708 109,838
172.063 161,551

2009 2008
13,270 20,737
68,546 68,5663
20,236 32,545
35,852 53,616
431 483
138,335 176,044

Since the Group company Via Operador Petrolifero, S.L., is an oil operator, it is legally required to hold
minimum buffer stocks [Note 1.2 and 2 12). In order to maintain such buffer stocks, at 31 December
2008, it was not necessary to lease m? of diesel from third parties (24, QDD m3 of diesel leased from

a non-Group third party in 2008).

The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in the cost of goods sold breaks down

as follows:
2008
Goods purchased Work in
for resale, raw progress and
materials and finished
supplies goods Total

Opening balance 88,6846 64,055 152,701
Inclusion /[exclusion from) consolidation 3,875 2,071 5,946
Acquisitions 948,093 8,130 956,229
Other movements [*] [5.288) {2,954) (8,242)
Closing balance (89,400] (B6,161) {175,561)
Cost of sales 945,932 (14,859]) 931,073

{*] Basically includes the effect of exchange fluctuations of currency of foreign subsidiaries.
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2009
Goods purchased Work in
for resale, raw progress and
materials and finished
supplies goods Total

Opening balance 89,400 86,161 175,561
Inclusion /{exclusion from) consolidation 4,779 2,386 7,165
Purchases /Changes in provisions 628,776 5,653 634,429
Transfers (* *} 8.249 (8,2186) {(BG7)
Other movements (*} 7,052 2,161 9,213
Closing balance (81,816} {66,088)] (137,904}
Cost of sales 656,440 31,357 687,797

{*) Basically includes the effect of exchange fluctuations of currency of foreign subsidiaries.
{**) Includes the reclassification of business inventories classified as held-for-sale to assets (Note 13}

The value of work in progress and finished products includes the value of the following provisions for
obsclescence, maovements in which are presented below:

At 31 December 2007 1,670
Allocations [Note 27) 3,866
Balance write-offs [(532]
At 31 December 2008 5,004
Allocations (Note 27 1,173
Balance write-offs {4,201)
At 31 December 2009 1,976

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and other cash equivalents at 31 December 2008 and 2009 break down as follows:

2009 2008
Cash and bank deposits 80,163 50,737
Short-term bank daposits 34,250 41,354

124,413 92,081

Short-term deposits at credit institutions relate to investments of cash surplus maturing in less than 3
months.

The effective interest rate on these shortterm deposits has been the market rate varying between
0.14% and 0.41% in 2008 and between 3.70% and 4.07% in 2008.
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The carrying amount. of cash at Group companies is denominated in the following currencies:

2009 2008
Brazilian raal 61,344 27,966
US dollars 5,475 3,488
Mexican paso 549 1,012
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 5,820 752
Czech koruna 3,213 5,704
Euro 48,012 53,188

124,413 82,091

13. Disposal groups of assets classified as held-for-sale and discontinued operations

Assets and liabilities of certain companies pertaining to the biofuel segment in Brazil and Europe have
been presented as held-for-sale after group management and the Board of Directors have made a firm
decision to sell these items. The transaction is expected to be completed by the end of 2010.

Disposal groups of assets classified as held-for-sale

2009
Praperty, plant and equipment 4,734
Intangible assels 3,147
Inventories 517
Cther current assets 1,138
Total 8,534

Estimated impairment losses have been included at the recoverable value of each asset.

Disposal groups of liahilities classified as held-for-sale

2009
Borrowings 252
Payahles 1,842
Other current liabilities 86
Provisions 1,338
Total 3,618
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The analysis of the results obtained by discontinued operations and the results recognized on the
restatement of assets or disposable groups, is as follows:;

2009
Revenuas 7,505
Expenses {9,515
Asset kmpairment {6,659}
Profit / [loss) hefore taxes on discontinued activities {8,669}
Taxes (1,723}
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIDNS (6,946)
Cash flows generated by these discontinued operations are as follows:

2009
Cash flows from operating activitias 1,887
Cash flows from investment companies 418)
Cash flows from financing activities -
Total cash flows ’ 1,468

Other consolidated cash flows from operating activities break down as follows:

. 2009

Profit before income tax (8,669)
Taxes paid -
Adjustments to profits:
- Impairment adjustments - 56,659
- Depreciation/amortization 584
Changes in warking capital : 3,313
Cash flows from operating activities 1,887
14. Share capital and share premium

No. shares Share Treasury

{thousand]) Share capital premium shares Total
At 31 December 2007 114,000 28,500 33,762 (2,108] 80,144
Acquisition of treasury shares - - - [1,640) {1,840Q)
At 31 December 2008 114,000 28,500 33,752 (3,748) 58,504
Acquisition/sale of treasury shares - - - (455) {455]
At 31 Decembker 2009 114,000 28,500 33,752 [4,203) 538,049
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a) Share capital

At 31 December 2008 and 2008 the parent company’s share capital is represented by
114,000,000 fully paid ordinary bearer shares with a par value of €0.25 each, all listed on the
Spanish stock market. The companies that hold a direct or indirect interest of more than 10% are as
follows:

% interest

2009 2008
Instituto Sectorial de Promocison y Gestion de Empresas, S.A.- INSSEC 51.767% 51.767%
Saltec, S.L., Sociedad Unipersonal [*) 12.885% 12.985%

(*)  The Single Shareholder of Saltec, 5.L. Sociedad Unipersonal is Instituto Sectorial de Promocion y Gestion de
Empresas, 5.A., and therefare the direct and indirect interests held by this company means that it controls
©64.752% of Gk Automotive, S.A. (64.752% in 2008).

On the date of these accounts, the direct or indirect percentage holding of INSSEGC remains consistent
with the 2008 closing.

b) Share premium account

This reserve is freely available for distribution.

c) Treasury shares

At 31 December 2008 the Company held 1,005,671 treasury shares (851,897 shares in 2008).

The movement in treasury shares in 2008 and 2009 breaks down as follows:

2009 2008
Amount ) Amount
Number of {Thousand Number of (Thousand
shares euro) shares eura)
Opening balance 851,897 3,748 541,681 2,108
Acquisitions 153,774 455 1,210,216 5,840
Sales - - (900,000) (4,200}
Closing balance 1,005,671 4,203 851,897 3,748

During 2009 the Company acquired a total of 153,774 shares and sold no treasury shares. Therefore
the balance of treasury shares of CiE Automotive, S.A. at the 2008 year end amounted to 1,005,671
shares, representing 0.88% of share capital {851,897 shares and 0.747% at 31 Oecember 2008),
with a listed value at 31 December 2009 of €3.329 thousand [€2,982 thousand at 31 December
2008}.
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Similarly, the mandate conferred by the General Shareholders® Meeting of 22 April 2009 is in effect
until 22 October 2010, whereby the Company’s Board of Directors is empowered to buy at any time
and as often as is considered appropriate shares in CIE Automotive, S.A., through any legal means,
including profits for the year and / or freely available reserves, and to subsequently dispose of or
redeem such shares, in accordance with Article 75 et seq. of the Spanish Companies Act.

15. Reserves and retained earnings

Movements in Reserves and retained earnings are as follows:

Retained earnings and first —conversion reserves
Consolidated

company

reserve and

firat Acgcumulated
conversion differences on
Legal Other reserve Profit and exchange Interim
reserve reserves {Note 17) loss Subtotal [Mote 18) dividend Total

At 31 December 2009 5,366 14,233 142,893 50,672 210,170 8,467 [B.811 211,828
Net revenues/{expense)
recognized directly under equity - - (4.884) 53,823 48,939 (65,648) - (16,709)
Distribution of 2007 profit 334 (7.975) 43,527 (50,672) [14,788) - 6,811 (7,979)
Other movements (*) - - (12,8948)] - [12,898) - - [12.898)
At 31 Decemher 2009 5,700 3,258 168,644 53,823 231,425 [57,181) - 174,244
MNet revenues/[expense]
recognized directly under equity - - {1.,384) 11.120 8,738 26,238 - 35,975
Distribution of 2008 profit - B,735 47,088 [63,823) - - - -
Other movements (*) - - {3,582) - {3,582)] - - {3,682)
At 31 December 20089 5,700 9,893 210,766 11,120 237,579 {30,942) - 206,637

[*) This basically relates to the distribution of reserves agreed in 2008 and 2009 in certain Group cornpanies (GIE Autometat and Ourametal,
Appendix), paid to minority interests in those companies.

a) Legal reserve

In accordance with the Spanish Companies Act, 10% of profits must be transferred to the legal
reserve each year until it represents at least 20% of share capital. At 31 December 2009 the balance
of this reserve has already reached the minimum limit required.

The legal reserve may be used to increase capital in an amount equal to the portion of the balance that
exceeds 10% of capital after the increase.

Otherwise, until it exceeds 20% of share capital and provided there are no sufficient available reserves,
the legal reserve may only be used to offset losses.

b) Dividends paid

On 22 April 2009 Shareholders at a General Meeting adopted a Resolution to distribute individual
profits for 2009 entirely to voluntary reserves and therefore no dividend whatsoever was paid.
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On 23 April 2008 the Parent Company’s shareholders at a General Meeting resoclved to distribute the
individual profit for 2007, stipulating the payment of a gross complementary dividend of 0.07 euro per
share amounting to €7,975 thousand, that was paid on 8 May 2008.

c) Proposal for the distribution of results

The proposal for distributing the parent company’s 2009 results that will be presented to shareholders
at the General Meeting and the approved distribution for 2008 is as follows:

Under GAAP
2009 2008

Available for distribution
Profit/floss) for the year 2,527 6,736
Distribution
Voluntary reserves 2,527 56,736

2,527 6,736
16. Cumulative exchange differences
31 December 2007 8,467
Differences on exchange:
- Group (65,648]
31 December 2008 (57,181)
Differences on exchange:
~ Group . 26,239
31 December 2009 (30,942)
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The breakdown of the cumulative translation difference by company / subgroup at the 2009 and 2008

year ends is as follows:

Company or subgroup

Automotive segment

Brazil (Subgroup)

CIE Plasty CZ, s.r.o.

CIE Unitools Press CZ, a.s.

CIE Metal CZ, s.r.o.

CIE Joamar, s.r.o.

CIE Praga Louny, a.s.

CIE Matricon, 5.A.

CIE Automotive Parts (Shanghai) Co., Itd.

CIE DESC Automotive, S.A.P.I. de C.V. and
CIE Bérriz de Meéxico, S.A. de C.V. (Subgroups)

CiE Zdanice, s.r.o.

UAB CIE LT Forge

Joamar Maroc, S.A.R.L. d’A.U.

Biofuel segment

CIE Automative Bioenergia, S.L. (subgroup)

2009 2008
(5.010) (28,431)
a7/8 552
1,815 1,920
809 733
(5) (7}
257 {371)
(4,113} (2,818)
337 522
(25,804) (28,365])
a6 17
(3] (4]
(8] -
51 (929)
(30,942) (57,181)

17. Reserves in consolidated companies and effect of first conversion

The amount of the reserve in consolidated companies and the effect of first conversion total €210,766
thousand and €168,648 thousand at 31 December 2009 and 2008, respectively. -

This heading records, in addition to the reserves in consolidated companies, the effects of the
adjustments of the conversion to IFRS on the date of first-time application, 1 January 2005, and the
effect of valuing certain financial assets /liabilities at market price [Note 8).
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Reserves and retained earnings pertaining to fully-consolidated companies, the distribution of which is
subject to legal requirements, relate to:

»

2009 2008
Legal reserve (Nate 15.a) 25,883 24,219
Reserves for asset restatements 2,694 2,703
Unavailable reserves in Brazil 2,000 1,517

30,587 28,439

Asset restatement reserves are basically unavailable other than to offset losses or increase capital in
individual companies.

18. Minority shareholdings

Movements in Minority interests are as follows:

2009 2008
Opening balance ‘ 22,118 24,931
Tatal recognized income 2,004 {5,653)
Dividends paid (530 (752)
Business combinations [Note 35) 592 {627]
Other movements {*) _ 265 4,219
Closing balance 24,449 22,118

(*] Basically includes the effect of exchange fluctuations in the currencies of foreign subsidiaries. In 2008 these
movements also include the delivery of preferred shares in CIE Autometal, S.A. and the acquisition of
minority interests in the Bioauto subgroup {Appendix].

In 2008 and 20039, as indicated in the consolidated statement of chaﬁges in equity, it was resolved to
distribute reserves in certain Brazilian companies of the Group to minority interests in an amount of
€12,898 thousand and €3,628 thousand, respectively.
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The distribution by company is set out below:

Company/ subgroup

Automotive segment

G5B-TBK Automotive Components, S.L.

CIE Galfar, S5.A.

RS Automotive, B.V, (*)
COurametal, S.A.

CiE Joamar, s.r.o,

CIE Autometal, S.A.
Bioauto Participagées, S.A.
Biofuel segment

CIE Automotive Bioenergia,

Bionor Transfarmacisn, S.A.U.

Comiube, s.r.l.
Bionor Tecnelogia, S.L.U.

Reciclado de Besiduos Grasos, S.L.U.

Naturoil Combustiveis Renovaveis, S.L. (Nota 34)
Biocumbustibles de Guatemala, S.A.
Gestién de Aceites Vegetales, S.L.

19. Deferred revenues

The movement in deferred income is as follows:

Tax credits in respect of
investment deductions (Note
2.19b)

Capital grants
Other deferred revenues

2009 20038

355 480

816 756

2,350 -

15,538 10,732

- 107

3,988 3,030

2,024 1,732

S.L (1.271) 870
- 666

(735] 1,124

- 336

- 454

1,159 1,561

225 270

24,449 22,118

(*} Share premium assigned to the joint venture partner (Note 37)
Inclusion in /
exclusion

Balance at from Taken to profit  Balance at
31.12.07 consolidation Additions Disposals and ioss 31.12.08
6,385 - - {1,028} 5,363
17,449 - 2,959 {3,281} 17,127
1,145 - - {433} 712
24,979 - 2,959 (4,736} 23,202
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2009
Inclusion in /
exclusion

Balance at from Taken to profit  Balance at

31.12.08 consolidation Additions Disposals and loss 31.12.09
Tax credits in respect of
investment deductions
{(Note 2.19.b} 5,363 - - - (1.093) 4,270
Capital grants 17,127 307 10,378 £1.143] (2,.864] 23,805
Other deferred revenues 712 - 2,118 - (168} 2,663

' 23,202 307 12,497 £1,143) {4,125} 30,738

The conditions relating to tax credits and grants have been met and therefore the Group does not
expect to return them.

In 2009 the Group received grants totaling €22.8 million within the competitiveness plan for strategic
industrial sectors prepared by the Ministry of Industry, Tourism and Commerce in Spain, the objectives
of which are to encourage the optimization of processes and the redirecting of production towards
higher added value products.

Of the aid provided to CIE Automotive Group, €20.9 million relates to the Automotive sector
Competitiveness Plan. The remaining €1.9 million relates to the biofuel sector competitiveness plan.
This assistance consists of an interest-free loan totaling €20.9 million, repayable in 15 years and with a
S-year grace period. An operating grant that does not have to be repaid was received in the amount of
€1.8 million.

The assistance received is summarized in the following table:

Interest free Embedded subsidy in Total
Direct subsidy loan interest-free foans subsidy
Automative 1,936 19,078 11,444 13,380
Biofuel - 1,882 1,154 1,154
1,936 20,960 12,538 14,534

The accounting treatment of this aid, both calculated by restating loans using a market discount rate
and taking into consideration subsidized expenses and investments, gave rise to an operating subsidy
recorded directly in the income statement for the year totaling €6.7 million and a capital grant totaling
€7.8 million.
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20. Borrowings

2009 2008
Non-current
Bank loans and credit facilities [*} 363,360 430,412
363,360 430,412
Current
Bank loans and credit facilities {*) 896,141 78,295
Short-term portion of long-term loans (*) 113,051 42 360
Financing of imports {*) 39,750 35,638
Bills discounted pending maturity and export advances [Nota 10) 63,968 55,840
312,808 212,134
676,268 642,546

There is no loan/ credit risk concentration with respect to balances with banks since the Group works
with varigus institutions.

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings (*) to interest rate fluctuations is as follows:
Balance at 31

December At 6 months At 1 year At 5 years
At 31 December 2008
Total borrowings 586,706 478,245 430,415 28,701
Effect of interest rate swaps (Note 8) ~ (202,759] (196.572] (191.821]1 -
Risk 383,947 279,673 238,584 28,701
At 31 December 2009
Total borrowings 612,234 485,423 - 383,378 -
Effect of interest rate swaps (Note 8] {281,182} {275.843) f229,211) -

Risk 321,052 208,580 134,168 -

Non-current borrowings have the following maturities:

20089 2008
Between 1 and 2 years 213,987 147,766
Between 3 and 5 years 149,373 253,945
More than 5 years - 28,701
363,360 430,412

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were the usual market rates (Euribor + a market
mark-up) and there were no significant differences with respect to other companies of a similar size
and with similar risks and borrowing levels. Leans and credits with credit institutions bear interest at a
weighted annual rate of 3.8% to 4.8% [(2008: 3.8% to 7.0%)].
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The carrying amounts and fair values of current and non-current borrowings do not differ significantly,
since all amounts accrue interest at market rates,

The carrying value of the group’s borrowings is denominated in the following currencies:

2009 2008
Eura ' 611,659 600,980
Brazilian real 64,609 41,566
676,268 642,546

At 31 December 2009 the Group records balances drawn down from credit lines with financial
institutions amounting to €193 milion {2008: €338 million). The total limit on such credit lines amounts
to €289 million [2008: €391 million).

The Group has the foliowing unused credit lines:

2009 2008
Variable rate;
— maturing in less than one year 29,336 41,157
— maturing in mare than one year 66,940 11,416
96,276 52,573

On 16 December 2005 the Company obtained a Multicurrency Business Credit Agreement in the amount
of €250 million from several financial institutions and for which certain subsidiaries serve as guarantars.

The loan will be repaid in tranches. Tranche A (€175 million) will be repaid in 9 six-monthly equal and
consecutive installments to be paid in December and June over the term of the contract, starting in
December 2008 and ending in December 2012. Tranche B (€75 millien] should be reduced each
December in the period 2008 to 2012 by 20% each year. The repayments for December 2009 for both
tranches have been duly made.

The interest rate for the loan is linked to Euribor plus an applicable margin that will be calculated annually
based on the Net Financial Debt to EBITDA ratic calculated cn the basis of the audited aggregate annual
accounts of the borrower at 31 December of each year. '

In 2009 €53,889 thousand of this multi-currency loan was repaid [2008: €34,444 thousand).

The financial ratios that the company undertakes to comply with and which are calculated on the basis of
the audited consolidated financial statements of the CIE Automctive Group together with levels of
compliance are as follows:

2007 and

subsequent
Ratio years
Net financial debt/ / EBITDA < 3.00
EBITDA / Financial expenses > 5.00
Net Financial Debt / Equity < 1.40
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On 4 December 2009 permission was requested to possibly fail to comply with the financing contract in
20083, and only at this time, in terms of the financial ratios up to a certain point. On 23 December this
request was authorized and at 31 December the financial ratios were within the new authorized limits.

On 20 July 2009 the Group ohtained a commercial loan from a syndicate of creditors with a maximum
initial amount of €182.5 million, which was extended on 5 November 2009 to €187.5 million and may be
further extended to €190 million if other entities enter the syndicate within 8 months after the signing
date, and this amount will become part of the company’s permanent long-term borrowings

The amount of €187.5 million is divided into two tranches, Tranche A in the amount of €145.8 million,
which is further divided into two subtranches of €83.3 million and €62.5 million, and Tranche B in the
amount of €41.7 million.

Tranche A must be applied to the full repayment of the financing contracts that CIE Automotive Group
maintains with several financial institutions and to finance production investments and R/D+i.

Tranche B will be used to finance the cash needs of CIE Automotive Group.
The contract is in force until 15 Oecember 2012 and will be repaid as follows:

- Subtranche A1 in.the amount of €83.3 milion will be repaid in four equal half-yearly payments
starting on 15 June 2011,

- Subtranche A2 in the amount of €62.5 million will be repaid 12 months after the contract date, i.e.
20 July 2010 and Tranche B will be repaid with a single lump sum payment at final maturity on 15
December 2012.

The interest rate for the loan is linked to Euribor plus an applicable margin that will be calculated annually
based on the Net Financial Debt to EBITDA ratio calculated on the basis of the audited aggregate annusl
accounts of the borrower at 31 December of each year.

The financial ratios that the company undertakes to comply with and which are calculated on the basis of
the audited consolidated financial statements of the CIE Automotive Group together with levels of
compliance are as follows:

Ratio 2009 2010 2011 2012

Net financial debt / EBITDA <3 <3 <3 <3
EBITDA / Financial expenses >5 =5 =5 >5
Net Financial Debt / Equity < 1.4 < 1.4 <14 < 1.4
Maximum CAPEX level [million suro) 110 86 57 59
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The maximum CAPEX level [investments in fixed assets and acquisitions of shareholdings) may be
exceeded by €37.5 million per year when CIE Automotive Group obtained revenues at least equal to
barrowings from public entities or similar entities during the year concerned or in prior years.

The partion of the CAPEX for a year not used in that year will increase the maximum levels allowed in
SUCCESSIve years.

On 4 December 2003 permission was requested to possibly fail to comply with the financing contract in
20009, and only at this time, in terms of the financial ratios up to a certain point. On 23 December this
request was authorized and at 31 December the financial ratios were within the new authorized limits.

On 23 December 2009 the Group concluded an agreement with the Eurcpean Investment Bank for an
initial amount of €60 million which will start to be repaid on 23 December 2011 and payment will be
completed on 23 December 2016. At 31 December 2009 the Group had not drawn down any amount
with respect to this contract.

The interest rate for the loan is linked to Euribor plus an applicable margin that will be calculated annually
based on the Net Financial Debt to EBITDA ratio calculated on the basis of the audited aggregate annual
accounts of the barrower at 31 December of each year.

The financial ratios that the Company must meet are basically the same as those required under the
preceding financing.

This financing will be drawn down once confirmation has been obtained from the auditors of compliance
with the financial obligations at 31 December 20083 with respect to this financing and the two syndicated
loans mentioned previously. These obligations have been fully met and therefore this loan amount is
deemed to be available,

As is described in the contract concluded on 23 December 20089, the European Investment Bank is
wiling to study the granting of additional financing up to a maximum of €25 million which, if finally
approved by the bank, will be covered by another finance contract in accordance with the terms and
conditions agreed by the parties.

21. Trade and other payables

7 2009 2008
Trade payables 258,719 246,034
Other payabies 31,294 23,715
290,013 269,749

The fair value of these amounts payable does not differ from carrying value.
During 2009 purchases have been made in US dollars with an equivalent value in euro of €63,324

thousand (2008:€59,538 thousand]. At 31 December 20089 balances denominated in foreign
currency yet to be paid totaled €63,684 thousand (€50,200 thousand in 2008].
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22. Other habilities

2009 2008
Non-current
Fixed asset suppliers 8,076 11,802
Long-term payables to Public Administrations 15,179 3,688
Other non-current liabilities 23,546 33,648

47,801 48,938
Current
Fixed asset suppliers 27,505 40,275
Current tax liabilities 28,532 21,045
Deferred short-term payables to Public Administrations 1,155 2,776
Accrued wages and salfaries 21,797 17796
Accruals and deferred income 1,853 2,448
Other current liabilities 22 078 200

103,120 84,540

The fair value of these assets does not differ significantly from carrying value.

The balances included under “Other longterm payables to Public Administrations”, €15,178 thousand
(63,688 thousand in 2008) reflect payables to the Brazilian and Portuguese Administrations in respect
of various items {legal deposits and other) and the deferral of social security payments.

“Other non-current payables” includes €3,665 thousand (€18,373 thousand in 2008], that relate to
amounts payable on the acquisitions carried out in 2009 by the CIE Automeotive Group (Note 35). This
amount falls due in 2011.

In addition, the balance under this heading includes creditor balances relating to the externalization of
pensions arranged with the insurance company Biharko by various group eompanies (€357 thousand)
{Note 24). Moreover, this heading includes investment project financing loans of public financing
institutions, €15,459 thousand (€8,502 thousand in 2008) and €2,500 thousand relating to legal
deposits relating to the Brazilian subsidiaries. '

The balance of “Other current liabilities” amounting to €22,278 thousand (€200 thousand in 2008]
relates to the amount payable on the acquisitions made by CIE Automotive (Notes 35 and 37).

Other non-current liabilities have the following maturities:

2009 2008
Between 1 and 2 years 10,482 14,298
Between 2 and 5 years 22,540 23,149
More than 5 years 14,779 11,491

47,801 48,938
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23. Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the right to offset assets and liabilities against taxes is
recognized by law and deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority. Deferred taxes are as follows:

2009 2008
Deferred tax assats:
- Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 37,048 28,023
- Deferred tax assets to be recoverad after more than 12 months 21,688 13,469

58,736 41,492
Deferred tax liabilities;
- Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more than 12 months 44,306 28,511
- Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within 12 months 1,396 1,795

45,9D2 3D,306
Net 12,834 11,186
The overall movernent in the deferred tax account is as follows:

2009 2008
Opening balance 11,186 19,811
{Charged) against/credit to the income staterment (Note 30) (2,.616) (4,669)
[Charged) against/credit to equity 719 1,898
Tax effect of discontinued operations [net} {Note 13) 1,723 -
Changes/additions to consolidation (280) (6,059)
Differences on exchange 2,102 105
Closing balance 12,834 11,186

Movements during the year in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Nan- _
deductible ’ Non-current
Hedging provisions . assets held
Deferred tax aasets - instruments 1*] Tax | Tax credits for sale Total

At 31 December 2007 - 10,938 14,268 23.063 - 48,267
Changes /additions to consolidation
(Charged) against,/credited to profit and loss - 635 (561]) [8.747] - (8,673)
Charged against,/(credited) to equity 1,898 - - - - 1,888
At 31 December 2008 1,898 11,571 13,707 14,316 - 41,492
{Charged) against,/credited to profit and loss - 2,700 8,089 [3.378) - B,410
Charged against/(credited) to equity 7189 - - - - 719
Oiscontinued operakicns - - - [325) 2,008 1.683
Oifferences on exchange - 1,646 832 - - 2,578
Changes/ additions to consolidation - 1.474% 2,383 - .- 3,854
At 31 December 2009 2,617 17,388 26,111 10,612 2,008 58,738
(*) Includes the temporary differences deriving from non-deductible provisions and others deriving from the different treatment of expenses

from foreign companies for reporting and tax purposes.
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Accel. Tax Fair walue gains Azset
Deferred tax liabilities depreciation [*) restatement Other Total
At 31 December 2007 717 16,374 1.613 9,652 28,356
Charged against/(credited] to profit and loss [331) - [40) [3,633) {4.004)
Changes/additions to consolidation - 6,059 - - 6,059
Differences on exchange - - - (105] (105}
At 31 December 2008 386 22,433 1,573 5,914 30,306
Charged against/(cradited) to profit and loss 286 222 (31 10,549 11,026
Oiscontinued operations - - - (403} {40
Differences on exchange - - - 476 476
Changes/additions to conselidation - 864 3.170 4,134
At 31 December 2009 672 22,655 2,606 20,069 45,902
{*] Includes tha fair value effect on assets deriving from first conversion and the assignment of capital gains on the

acquisition of subsidiaries.

Deferred tax liabilities /(assets) debited /(credited) to equity in the year are as follows:

2009 2008
Reserves for fair value in equity:
- Reserve for hedging operations (719} (1,898}
{719) (1,898)

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses available far offset are recognized insofar as the realization
of the relevant tax benefit through future tax profits is probable. The Group has not recognized deferred
tax assets totaling €31.105 thousand (2008; €27.786 thousand] relating to losses at certain Spanish
and Mexican plants totaling €108,734 thousand [2008: €99,240 thousand) to be offset in future
years (between 5 years and unlimited, depending on the legislation appllcable to the Group company
concerned)] against taxable profits.

Additionally, there are tax credits for deductions which are pending application that have not been
recognized amounting to €35,039 thousand [2008: €34,534 thousand)

24. Retirement benefit commitments

2009 2008
Commitments in the balance sheet in respect of:
Retirement benefits 742 1,123
Charges in the income statement in respect of (Note 28):
Retirement benefits 4 30
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Several group companies have externalized the pension liability relating to certain retired and pre-
retired employees (in 2008 28 people; in 2008, 33 people} with the insurance company Biharko.
Payments to this company in 20039 amounted to €385 thousand (€380 thousand in 2008). The
Company records €357 thousand in respect of this item on a long-term basis (2008: €739 thousand).

a} Retirement benefits

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet have been calculated as follows:

2009 2008
Present value of the abligations financed 2,001 2,196
Fair value of plan assets {1,259} (1,073)
Liabilities in the balance sheet 742 1.123
The movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as follows:

2009 2008
Opening halance 1,123 1,483
Expense debited to the income statement (note 28) 4 30
Contributions paid . (385] (390]
Closing halance 742 1,123
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

2009 2008
Technical interest rate ' 3% 3%
Expected annual return an plan assets 3% 4.30%
Expected annuel return on reimbursements recegnized as assets 3% 4.30%
Future annuel salary increase 0-0.8% 0-2.4%

Pension plan assets relate to the amounts contributed to the insurance company with which obligations
are externalized.

The real return on plan assets amounted to 2.77% (3% in 2008},
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25. Provisions

Movements in the Company’s provisions in 2008 and 2008 are as follows:

At 31 December 2007

- Appropriations

- Additions to the consolidation
- Reversals

- Applications/Transfers

At 31 December 2008

- Appropriations

- Additions to the consolidation
- Applications

- Transfers and other movements {*]
At 31 December 2009

[* Mainly relates to the exchange rate effect.

MNon-current provisions mainly include the following:

. A €15.2 million provision (2008; €7.4 million} which basically relates to the amount of tax
deductions applied in accordance with current tax legislation and to tax contingencies, both

originating from Brazilian companies.

. Provision of €1.4 million established as a guarantee on the sale of assets and closure and
winding up of companies (€6.6 million in 2008).

. Provision for other personnel liabilities amounting to €4.4 million (€6.1 million in 2008).

) Provision amounting to €6.8 million (€6 million in 2008} relating to the hedging of business

operational risks considered to fall due in the [ong-term.

The balance of current provisions at 31 December 2008 relates basically to risks relating to tax
contingencies and customer claims at the Brazilian subsidiaries (€8.7 million) and the guarantee, €1.9
miltion [€4.3 million and €1.9 million in 2008, respectively). Simitarly, it includes €2 million in provisions
in order to adapt the production structures of companies in Spain and another €2 million to hedge the

Non-current Current
21,523 2,363
255 2,099
2,166 2,023
(1.,426) -
3.588 3,683
26,106 10,168
7.301 5,900
2,008 -
(10,050) (3.211]
2,682 1,693
27,947 14,550

husiness operational risks in various Group companies, considered to fall due in the shortterm.

BS.-




CLASE 8

4

CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

0J7897092

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2009 AND 2008
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26. Operating income

MNet revenues

Changes in inventories of {inished products and work in progress
Gain /[loss} on the sale of assets {Note 33)

Gain /{loss) on the sale of investae companies (Note 1}
Reversal of asset impairment [Note B}

Other operating revenue

2009 2008
1,148,013 1,455,310
{31,357] 14,858
170 11,105
461 -
1.032 -
38.144 52,535
1,157,463 1,533,809

Other operating revenues include operating grants, the release to income of capital grants and sales of

scrap.

Of revenues from asset sales, the amounts involved in currencies other than the euro, reflected in

thousand euro, are as follows:

US dollar

Czech koruna

Pound sterfing

Mexican peso

Brazilian real

Chinese Yuan Renminhi
Other

27. Other operating expenses

Supplies

Transport

Repairs

Typical biofuel sector expenses
Operating leases

Transfer or provision for impairment of accounts receivable [Note 10)
Transfer or provision for obsclescence [Note 11)

Other operating expenses

2009 2008
158,304 118,786
7,755 5,640
- 17
- 25,473
314,088 333,388
4,236 2,572
1.228 2,737
485,612 489,624

2009 2008
32,8958 36,580
14,624 24,424
15,671 23,433
4,484 6,824
8,370 5,676
540 1.316
1,173 3,866
55,495 59,053
133,316 161,172
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{Thousand euro)

28. Employee benefit expenses

2009 =008
Salaries and wages 167,517 168,374
Social Security expense 40,468 49,703
Cther staff welfare expenses 28,304 28,427
Pension cost — defined benefit. plans [Note 24) 4 30
Personnel restructuring costs 22,363 8,107
Less: Application of restructuring provisions (3,B18]) -
254,840 254,641
The average number of grou;ﬁ employees by category is as follows:
Number
2009 2008
Joint Consolidated Jaint Consolidated
Category ventures (*) Group Total ventures [*) Group Total
Executives 27 257 284 25 261 286
University graduates,
specialists and
administrative employees 211 2,570 2,781 [0y 2.247 3,156
Semi-skilled workers 544 8,278 8,926 2,038 7,852 8,891
886 11,105 11,991 2,873 10,360 13,333

{*) 100% included

The distribution of personnel and Board members at 31 December 2008 and 2008 by gender is as

follows:
2009 2008

Category Men Women Total Men Women Total
Members of the Board of
Directors 10 2 12 9 3 12
Executives 246 42 288 225 47 272
University graduates,
specialists and
administrative employees 2,301 555 2,856 2477 665 3,142
Semi-skilled workers 7,485 1.422 8,907 7,855 1,572 9,427

10,042 2,021 12,063 10,566 2,287 12,853
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29. Financial income and expense

2009 2008

Interest costs;
- Bank borrowings {*) (56,796) (55,201}
Interest income:
- Other interest and financial income 11,862 17.647
Gains /(losses) net in respect of transactions in foreign currency 20,691 2,616
Fair value gains on financial instruments:
- Interest rate swaps: (171) (870}

(24,424) (35,808)

(*] This figure is raftacted net at an amount of €2,891 thousand [2008: €2,223 thousand] relating to finance
costs on the financing of investments capitalized as an increase in PPE financed (Note 6.i]}.

30. Income tax

2009 2008
Current income tax 9,048 11,386
Net variation deferred tax assets (Note 23} f2,700] (635)
Net variation deferred tax liabilities [Note 23} 11,026 [4.,004)
Net variation tax credits recognized (Note 23) {5,710} 9,308
Tax expense 11,664 16,055

The reconciliation of reported consolidated profit and the aggregate corporate income tax base is as

follows: :
2009 2008

Consolidated profit/(loss) 11,120 53,823
Minority shareholdings {3,087) (2,126}
Corporate income tax faggregate of individual corporate income tax] ‘ 13,418 6,480
Consolidated book profit for the year before taxes 21,451 B8.177
Consolidation adjustments 103,763 15,456
Aggregate profit before taxes in consolidated companies 125,214 73,633
Non-computable revenues and expenses [*] (67.022) [46,348)
Net temporary differences in individual companies [* *) (18.840) 18,911
Offset of tax-loss carryforwards {5,350) (14,497)
Aggregate corporate income tax base 34,002 31,699

{*) Dividends paid between Group companies, provisions for shareholdings written off and permanent
differences.

(**] Net temporary differences in the individual companies basicaily includa adjustments in relation to the
restructuring of the workforce and differences between the accounting records and taxes on timing
allocation of revenues and expenses and the appropriation and reversal of provisions.
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The Group’s income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would have been obtained had the
weighted average tax rate applicable to the consolidated companies’ profits been used, as follows:

2009 2008
Aggregate profit before taxes in consolidated companies 125,214 73,833
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable to profits in the relevant countries 42,955 37,288
Profits not subject to tax (22,991) (23,471)
Non-tax deductible expenses/ (income] (B,804) 4,848
Utilization of tax losses not previously recognized {1,496} (2,6101
Tax expense 11,664 16,055
Tax effacts of conversion to New Chart of Accounts for Spanish companies - (B,639)
Tax expense net of the effect of the New Chart of Accounts 11,664 7416 [*)

(*) Excluding the effect of conversion of individual companies to the new chart of accounts.

The applicable weighted average tax rate calculated as the tax expense on the aggregated tax base (tax
result]stands at 34.30% (2008: 23.40%).

As mentioned in note 2.19, the parent company CIE Automotive, S.A. is authorized to file consolidated
tax returns with certain subsidiaries:

Similarly, since 2007 the companies of the Group resident in Mexico, except for Pintura y Ensambie de
México, S.A. de C.V., opted to apply the tax consolidation regime as companies controfied by the KUO
Group [previously Desc) (Note 37). In 2008 Group companies residing in Mexico are taxed under an
individual tax system. ’

Other companies of the CIE group file individual returns,

In general terms, all tax returns for the years that have not lapsed in accordance with the various
bodies of tax legislation applicable to each group company are open to inspection.

Corporate income tax legislation for 2008 applicable to the parent company is that relating to
Provincial Regulation. 3,/1926 (26 June].

The Company’s Directors have calculated the amounts in respect of this tax for 2003 and those years
open to inspection pursuant to regional regulations in force at the end of each year, the view taken

being that the final outcome of the aforementioned appeals will not have a significant impact on the
annual accounts taken as a whole.

Ouring the year no non-current assets have been sold for which the capital gain was applied to a
reinvestment tax exemption.
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During the present year, certain group companies have sold PPE used in operations to third parties. Of
the total amount of sales made, approximately €7,800 thousand, generating capital gains of
approximately €7.240 thousand, has availed itself of the tax exemption for reinvestment which has
been entirely made in 2008.

31. Earnings per share
al] Basic
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the Company’s

shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in the year, excluding treasury shares
acquired by the Company [Note 14].

2009 2008
Profit attributable to the company’s shareholders (thousand euro) 11,120 53,823
Prafit/[loss} deriving from discontinued operations attributable to Company equity
holders (thousand euro} {*} (5,200} -
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares (thousand) 113,014 113,645
Basic earnings per share from continued operations (euro per share) 0.14 0.47
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations [euro per share) (0.046) -

(*] Of the loss deriving from discontinued operations, €6,946 thousand (Note 13), this amount relates to company
shareholders and minority interests,

b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of outstanding
ordinary shares to reflect the conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. The Company has no
potentially dilutive ordinary shares.

32. Dividends per share

The parent company did not pay any dividends relating to 2008 and 2008 (Note 15.b]).
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33. Cash generated from operations

Profit for year

Adjustments for:

- Taxes [Note 30)

- Deferred tax [Notes 23 and 30)

- Deferrad revenues taken to praofit and loss {Note 19)

- Depreciation of property, ptant and equipment (Note B)

- Amortization of intangible assets {Nata 7)

- Allocation /(Reversal] due to impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment (Note B)

- [Profit)/ loss on the sale of property, plant and equipment (see below)

- [Profit)/ luss on the sale of shareholdings

- Net movements in provisions (Note 25]

- Net [gains}/losses in fair value of financial derivatives {Note 8)

- Negative differences on consolidation [Note 35)

- Differences on exchange

- Interest revenue [Note 29]

- Interest costs [Note 29]

- Share in losses /(gains] in associates (Note 8)

Changes in working capital (excluding the effects of acquisitions and exchange

differences on consolidation]:

- Inventaries

- Trade and other receivables

- Trade and ather payables

Cash generated from continuing operations
Cash generated from discantinued operations

Cash generated from continuing and discontinued operations

2009 2008
8,033 51,687
9,048 14,386
2,618 4,669

(4,125} (4,736)

54,508 69.818
8,208 7,159

(1.032) 69

(170) {11,108)
{461) -
(167) 2417
56 870
(3,507} {8,573}
(20,691] -
{11.852) (17,647}

56,796 55,201
1,589 100

44,874 (7.8586]}

18,218 30,021

(5,183} (58,725]

155,761 124,765
1,887 -
157,648 124,785

in the cash flow statement, proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment include:

Carrying value (Note 6 and 7]
Gain /{loss) on the sale of property, plant and equipment [Note 26}
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

2009 2008
8,345 6,251
170 11,105
8,515 17,356
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34. Commitments
a) Asset acquisition commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows:

2009 2008
Property, plant and equipment 11,114 18,918

These investments will be funded through the generation of cash by the business and available
borrowings.

b) Operating lease commitments

As from 2008 the Group has leased various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable
operating lease contracts. These contracts are for terms ranging between 5 and 10 years, and
are mostly renewable at expiration under market conditions.

The Group also rents facilities and machinery under cancellabie operating lease contracts. The
Group is required to provide six months advance notice of the termination of these contracts. The

lease costs charged in the income statement during the year are included in Note 27.

Total minfmum future payments for non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2009 2008
Less than one year B,6B15 B,283
One to five years . 23,365 21,700
More than five years 2.674 12,710

32,654 40,683

35. Business combinations

2009

Automotive segment

In March 2009, in accordance with the options agreed between CIE Bérriz, S5.1.. and Kuo Automotriz,
S.A. de C.V. [Note 1), 100% of CIE Celaya S.A.P.Il. de C.V., was acquired, until then wholly owned by
CIE DESC Automotive, S.A.P.l. de C.V. [Notes 1 and 37).
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The business combination carried out by the group, in the part relating to the additional 50% acquired,
may be summarized as follows:

2009 (*)
Acquisition price 11,184
Fair value of the net assets acquired ' (5,982)
Goodwill 5,202

{*] Amounts in US dollars converted to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date (31 March 2003).

This goodwill has been attributed to the future profitability of the business acquired and the significant
synergies that are expected to arise following the acquisition by the Group.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

1*) (**) Fair
value of the net
assets acquired

Cash and cash equivalents 36
Assets 10,641
Inventories : 1,080
Receivables 2,507
Deferred taxes 466
Payables (B,758)
Net assets acquired 5.982

(*) Amounts in US dollars converted to eurc at the exchange rate on the transaction date (31 March 2009).
(**] Net assets relating to the 50% acquired in 20089.

The fair value of the net assets acquired does not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting
figures.

The movement in cash funds on the operation is as follows:

Total consideration relating to the acquisition 11,184
Cash and cash eguivalents in the subsidiary acquired (36}
Outflow of cash on the acquisition ) 11,148

In addition, in May 2009, the Group chose to acquire all of the shares in the company Pintura,
Estampado y Montaje, S.A.P.l. de C.V., also a subsidiary of “Joint Venture” CIE DESC Automotive,
S.AP.L de CV.
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The business combination carried out by the group, in the part relating to the additional 50% acquired,
may be summarized as follows:

2009 (*)
Acquisition price 24,300
Fair value of the net assets acquired [20,605]
Goodwill 3,695

[*] Amounts in US dollars converted to euro et the exchange rate on the transaction date (25 May 2008}
This goodwill has been attributed to the future profitability of the business acquired and the significant
synergies that are expected to arise following the acquisition by the Group.

The assets and fiabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

(*1(**) Fair
value of the net
assets acquired

Cesh and cash equivalents 39
Assets 15,272
Inventories 3,668
Receivables 13,367
Deferred taxes (B19)
Payables ' (11,126}
Net assets acquired 20,605

(*]  Amounts in US dollars converted to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date {25 May 20083].
(**} Net assets relating to the 50% acquired in 2009,

The fair value of the net assets acquired does not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting
figures.

The movement in cash funds on the operation is as follows:

Tatal consideration refating to the acquisition 24,300
Amount pending payment (3.217]
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired {(39)
Outflow of cash on the acquisition 21,044

At 31 December 2009 the acquisition price for this business combination has been repaid except for
€3 million, which is recorded under the heading "Other current liabilities" in the balance sheet [Note
22).
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On 9 April 2009, the group subsidiary CIE Bérriz, S.L. acquired control over 100% of the shares in the
Czech company CIE Joamar s.r.o.

The business combination carried ocut by the group, in the part relating to the additional 49% acquired,
may be summarized as follows: '

2009 (*)
Acquisition price 200 -
Fair value of the net assels acquired {81
Goodwill 1189

Data in Gzech Koruna converted to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date (9 April 2009).

This goodwill has been attributed to the future profitability of the business acquired and the synergies
that are expected to arise following the acquisition by the Group.
The assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition were as follows:

(*) (**) Fair
value of the net
assets acquired

Cash and cash equivalents 23
Assets : 592
inventaries . 37
Receivables 16
Other payables (587]
Net assets acquired 81
*) Data in Czech Koruna converted to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date (3 April 2009).

[**] Net assets refating to the percentage acquired.

The fair value of the net assets does not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting figures.

Total consideration relating to the acquisition ‘ 200
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired 23
Qutflow of cash on the acquisition 177

On the same date the Group wholly acquired the Moroccan company Joamar Maroc, S.A.R.L., d’A.U.

The net assets acquired and goodwill break down as follows:

2008 (*)
Acquisition price 535
Fair value of the net assets acquired ' 170
Goadhwill 705
(*)  Amounts in Morocecan dirhams converted to eurc at the exchange rate on the transaction date (9 April

20043).
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This goodwill has been attributed to the future profitabifity of the business acquired and the synergies
that are expected to arise following the acquisition by the Group.

The assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition were as follows:

{*] Fair value of
the net assets

acquired
Cash and cash equivalents 24
Assets 4,088
Non-current financial assets 4
Inventories 124
Receivables 6391
Other payables (5,101)
Net assets acquired (170)

(*] Amounts in Moraccan dirhams converted to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date {3 April
2003).

The fair value of the net assets does not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting figures.

2009
Total consideration relating to the acquisition 535
Cash and cash aquivalents in the subsidiary acquired (24)
Outflow of cash on the acquisition 511

On 1 September 2009 the “Joint Venture” RS Automotive, B.V. was created, in which CIE
Automotive, S.A. holds 50% (Note 37), through Advanced Comfort Systems International BV (wholly
owned by RS Automotive), and its first corporate transaction consisted of the acquisition of 100% of
the Spanish company Wagon Automotive Ibérica S.L.U. {(now Advanced Comfort Systems Ibérica,
S.L.U.} and 100% of the French company Wagon S A.S. [now Advanced Comfort Systems France,
5.A.5.), which in turn owns 100% of the companies Wagon Autormotive S.R.L. (now Advanced Cornfort
Systems Romania, S.R.L.}, of Romanian nationality and VWagon Automotive Innovative Solutions
Shanghai Co, Ltd. (now Advanced Comfort Systems Shanghai Co, Ltd.), of Chinese nationality.

The net assets acquired and goodwill break down as follows:

Advanced Advanced
Comfort Comfort
Systems Systems lhérica, ,
France, S.A.S5. S.L.U. TOTAL 50%
Acquisition price - 1,350 1,320 B75
Fair value of the net assets acquired [3,565] (4,799) {8,364) (4,182])
Negative consolidation difference {3,565] (3,449} {7.014) (3,507)
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This negative difference on consolidation arising on the transaction has been accounted for under
“Other gains/(losses) net” in the income statement for the year.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Advanced Advanced
Comfort Comfort
Systems Systems lbérica,
France, S.A.S. S.L.U. TOTAL 50%
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 3,456 103 3,559 1,779
Assets 13,872 6,230 20,202 10,101
Deferred assets 1,667 - 1,867 834
Inventories 4,096 471 4,567 2,284
Receivables 5,318 4,708 10,024 5012
Payables {18,9939) (6,097) (25,09B) {12,548)
Provisions (4,018) [614) (4,630} (2,315}
Deferred liabilities (1,9239] - (1,929} {aB5]
Net assets acquired 3,565 4,789 8,364 4,18

The fair value of the net assets would not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting figures.

Advanced Advanced

Comfort Comfort

Systems Systems lbérica,

France, 5.A.5. S.L.U. TOTAL 50%

Total consideration relating to the
acquisition - 1,350 1,350 675
Cash and cash equivatents in the
subsidiary acquired [3,450] {103) [3.559} {1,780}
Outfiow of cash on the acquisition (3,456} 1,247 (2,209} {1.105]

Biofuel segment

In January 2009 the Group subsidiary CIE Automotive Bioenergia, S.L., acquired 14.823% of the
share capital of Bionar Transformaciéon, $.A. (as from that date, a single shareholder companyj
acquiring 4,252,963 shares and increasing its effective shareholding at the CIE Automnotive, S.A. level
by 12.01% to the current stake of 80.5%.

The business combination performed was summarized as follows:

2009
Acquisition price 6,217
Fair value of the net assets acquired (484)
Goodwill 5,733
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This goodwill is attributed to the future profitability of the business acquired.

The assets and liahilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value of the
net assets
acqguired [*)

Cash and cash equivalents 252
Assets 16,756
Oeferred taxes [0
MNon-current financial assets 36
Inventories 2,585
Receivables 13,548
Other current financial assets B5
Deferred revenues (2183
Provisions . (13)
Borrowings (10,228)
Payahles (21.,807)
Minarity shareholdings (592]
Net assets acquired 484

[*} Net assets relating to the percentage acquired.

The fair value of the net assets acquired does not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting
figures.

2009
Total consideration relating to the acquisition . 6,217
Amount pending payment ' {5,801}
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired (252}
Outflow of cash on the acquisition 164

The amount of this business combination pending payment at 31 December 2008 is recorded in the
balance sheet based on the maturity date under the headings "Other current labilities”, €2.2 million
and "Other non-current liabilities", €3.6 million (Note 22}

On 2 July 2009, through its subsidiary Bionor Transformacion, S.A.U. the Group formalized the
acquisition of the remaining 49% of the Madrid company Reciclado de Residuos Grasos, S.L. (as from
that date a single shareholder company] for €2.04 million. With this acquisition Bionor Transformacion,
S.A.U. became the owner of all the shares of Reciclado de Residuos Grasoes, S.L.U.
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The business combination performed was summarized as follows:

2009
Acquisition price 2,040
Fair value of the net assets acquired (482)
Goodwill 1,558

This goodwill has been attributed to the future profitability of the business acquired.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:
Fair value of the

net assets

acguired [*)
Cash and cash equivalents 152
Assets 362
Deferred taxes (40)
Inventaries 31
Receivables 189
Other current financial assets _ 147
Borrowings A (70)
Payables {289]
Net assets acqguired 482

(*] Net assets relating to the percentage acquired.

The fair value of the net assets acquired does not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting
figures.

2009
Total consideration relating to the acquisition 2,040
Amount pending payment - ' (1,380}
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquirad {152)
Outfiow of cash on the acquisition 528

The amount of this business combination pending payment at 31 December 2008 is recorded in the
balance sheet based on the maturity date under the headings "Other current liabilities”, €0.7 million
and "Other non-current liabilities”, €0.7 million [Note 22])

In addition, on 9 July the Group company Bionor Transformacion, S.A.U. acquired the remaining 30%
of the company Bionor Tecnologia, S.L. (as from that date a single shareholder company) for €250
thousand and the acquiring company therefore now wholly owns the shares in Bionor Tecnologia,
S.L.U.
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The business combination performed was summarized as follows:

2009
Acquisition price 2350
Fair value of the net assets acquired (6B}
Goadwill 182

This goodwill has been attributed to the future profitability of the business acquired.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value of the

net assets

acquired [*}
Assets 12
Non-current financial assets 1
Receivables 833
Borrowings . 1)
Payables (877)
Net assets acquired 68

{(*] Net assets refating to the percentage acquired.

The fair value of the net assets acquired does not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting
figures.

2009
Total consideration relating to the acquisition 250
Amount pending payment ' (150}
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired -
OQutflow of cash on the acquisition ' , 100

The amount of this business combination pending payment at 31 December 2009 is recorded in the
balance sheet based on the maturity date under the headings "Other current liabilities", €0.1 million
and "Other non-current fabilities", €0.1 million [Note 22}

The business combinations that took place in 2008 and mentioned above have yet to finally complete
the measurement of assets and liabilities although no significant changes are expected to arise.

These business combinations in 2003, in both segments, provided profits totaling €2,996 thousand
since they have formed part of the Group. If they had entered to Group at the start of the year the
profit figure would have been €4,125 thousand.
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2008

Automotive segment

Effective January 2008 full contro! was acquired of the shareholding in Fundicion Alcasting, S.L. In
2007, within the context of the acquisition of the Recyde Group, the CIE Automotive group signed a
reciprocal purchase and sale option contract for all shares in Fundicién Alcasting, S.L. initially valued at
€6.5 million. In 2008 the Group exercised that option through its investee Tarabusi, S.A. and the value
of the option was guantified at €7,315 thousand. Subsequently, in 2003 Tarabusi, S.A. (acquiring
company) merged with Fundicion Alcasting, S.L.U. (target company)] and the latter was wound up.

The net assets acquired and goodwill break down as follows:

2008

Acquisition price 7,315
Fair value of the net assets acquired (6.008)
Goodwill 1,307

The assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 1,643
Assets 3,141
Nan-gurrent financial assets 34
Deferred tax assets 393
Inventories 1,919
Receivables 6,338
Pravisions (2,048)
Barrowings {1,621]
Other payables (3,391}
6,008

The fair value of the net assets would not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting figures.

2008
Tatal cansideration relating to the acquisition 7.315
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired (1.,643]
Outflow of cash on the acquisition 5,672
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This goodwill was attributed to the high future profitability of the business acquired and the major
synergies that are expected to arise following the acquisition by the Group.

On 14 November 2007 CIE Automotive, S.A. was awarded certain assets at the time of the liquidation
of the finance company Layous. The Group created the company CIE Compitgne, S.A.S. (Note 1) in
order to hold these assets and the associated businesses.

tn 2008 the process of assigning market values to the assets acquired was completed. The net assets
acquired and the finally resulting goodwili break down as follows:

2008
Acquisition price 501
Fair value of the net assets acquired (9,074)
Goodwill (Negative difference on consolidation) (8.573)

This negative difference on consolidation arising on the transaction has been accounted for under
“Other gains/(losses) net” in the income statement for the year.

The assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition were as follows:

Carrying value
of the company

Fair value acquired
Assets ' 15,931 2,537
Inventories 2,767 2,767
Receivables - 100 100
Payables (1.245} {1.,245)]
Provisions o - [(4,059) {4,059]
Deferred taxes {4,420) -
Net assets acquired 9.074 100
2008
Total consideration relating to the acquisition 501
Cash and cash equivelents in the subsidiary acquired -
Outflow of cash on the acquisition 501

On 4 January 2008 the Group acquired through its subsidiary CIE Berriz, S.L., 100% of the share
capital of the Czech company CIE Praga Louny, a.s., (formerly Praga Louny, a.s.) and its subsidiary
Praga Service, s.r.o.
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The net assets acquired and goodwill break down as follows:

(*] (2008)
Acquisition price 4,204
Fair value of the net assets acquired (32,200)
Goodwill 1,024
The assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition were as follows:

(*) Carrying

value of the

company
{*) Fair value acquired

Cash and cash equivalents 424 424
Asseats 7,987 1,807
Inventories 7893 793
Receivables : 843 843
Payables (2,860] {2,860]
Borrowings £1.7894) £1.784)
Deferred taxes £1,297) -
Provisions (B96) (896)
Net assets acquired 3.200 (1,683)

(*) (2008)
Total consideration refating to the acquisition 4,224
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired ' (424]
Outflow of cash on the acquisition 3,800
(*] Data in Czech Koruna converted to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date (4 January 2008).

This goodwill was attributed to the high future profitability of the business acquired and the major
synergies that are expected to arise following the acquisition by the Group.

Concerning the acquisition of Shanghai Sandum Auto Parts Manufacture Co. Ltd., by CIE

Automotive Parts (Shanghai} Co. Ltd., in 2007, in 2008 the agreements have been definitively closed
such that the acquiring company has had to make an additional payment of €1.549 thousand (*].
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This additional purchase price has been assigned as follows:

(*) (2007)
Acquisition price 1,549
Assignment of values
- Land and buildings 1.378
- Deferred taxes (3D8)
Net assets acquired 1,070

This transaction has triggered an increase in goodwill of €478 thousand {*).

{*} Data in Chinese yuan Renminbi CNY converted to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction
date.

In 2009 this Company was sold {Naote 1).

In March 2008 CIE Berriz, S.L. and KUO Automotriz, S.A. de C.V., each holding a 50% interest in the
*Joint Venture” CIE DESC Automotive, S.A. de C.V., entered into an agreement under which GIE Berriz,
S.L., through wholly-owned investee CIE Berriz de México, S.A. de C.V., acquired 100% of the share
capital of Pintura y Ensambles de México, S.A. de C.V., which was until then fully owned 100% by
CIE DESC. [Notes 1 and 37].

The business combination performed by the CIE group, in the part relating to the additional 50%
acquired, may be summarized as follows:

(*] (2008)
Acquisition price 20,762
Fair value of the net assets acquired (16,699]
Goodwill 4,063

(*} Amounts in US doltars and pesos converted to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date.

The assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition were as follows:
(*) (**) Fair
value of the net
assets acquired

Cash and cash equivalents 1,898
Assets 13.427
Non-current. financial assets s 123
Inventaries 865
Receivables 4,600
Deferred taxes ([427]
Payables (3,787}
Net assets acquired 16,699

(*} Amounts in Mexican pesos converted to euro at the exchange rate on the transaction date {26 March
20D8).
(**) Net assets relating to the 50% acquired in 2008.
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The fair value of the net assets acquired does not differ from the Company’s accounting figures.

The movement in cash funds on the operation is as follows:

Total consideration relating to the acquisition 20,762
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired (1,888]
Outflow of cash on the acquisition 18,864
Biofuel segment

In October 2006, CIE Inversiones e Inmuebles, S.L,, BIONOR Inversiones e |nmuebles, S.L. and
Enercom Petroleo e Energia Ltda. entered into an Agreement for investing in the Brazilian cornpany
Naturoil Combustiveis Renovibeis S.A. As part of that Agreement, a Services Agreement was
similarly concluded between Enercom and Bionor Inversiones for the development of the Project to build
a Biofuel Manufacture Plant for Naturoil. This contract provides objectives and timelines and a penalty
for Enercom in the event of non-compliance with the same.

Under the Investment Agreement, CIE Inversiones e Inmuebles, S.L. acquired 80% of the share capital
of Naturoil through a capital increase, the remaining 20% being held by Enercom. Subsequently, on 13
December 2007, CIE Inversiones e Inmuebles, S.L. sold all its shares in Naturoil to Bionor Inversiones
e Inmuebles, 5.L.

On 28 January 2008 the objectives agreed under the Services Agreement were examined and it was
noted that they had not been met. Therefore the stipulated penalty was enforced and Enercom agreed
to deliver all shares in Naturoil as payment in kind of the debt resulting from the enforcement of the

penalty.

In accordance with the foregoing, at 31 December 2008 Bionor Inversiones e Inmuebles, S.L. holds
100% of the share capital of Naturoil Combustiveis Renovaveis S.A. [Naturcil} and as a result, has
cancelled €764 thousand in respect of minority interests at 31 December 2007 and therefore goodwili
on the transaction for the same amount.

On 18 June 2008, the Group acquired through its subsidiary Bionor Transformacion, S.A., 51% of the
share capital of the Spanish comapny Gestién de Aceites Vegetales, S.L. [G.A.V.E.), devoted to the
collection and processing of used vegetable oils for subsequent use as the raw material in biofuel
production.

The net assets acquired and goodwill break down as follows:

2008
Acquisition price 722
Fair value of the net assets acquired (1386)
Goodwili ' 586
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The assets and {iabilities arising on the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
Cash and cash eguivalents 169
Assets 66
Non-current financial assets 7
Inventaries 1
Receivables a3
Other current financial assets 216
Payables [(275]
Minority shareholdings [131)
Net assets acquired 136

The fair value of the net assets acquired would not differ significantly from the Company’s accounting
figures.

2008
Total consideration relating to the acqguisition 722
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired (169}
Outflow of cash on the acquisition 553

This goodwill was attributed to the high future profitability of the business acquired and the major
synergies that are expected to arise following the acquisition by the Group.

It should be noted that if all the above business combinations, of both segments, had been completed
at 1 January 2008, consolidated sales of the GIE Automotive Group and EBITDA would not have varied
significantly in view of the effective dates of the inclusion of the companies acquired in the consolidation.
These combinations contributed in 2008 a net profit of €8,895 thousand.

36. Related-party transactions

The Group is contralled by “Instituto Sectorial de Promocion y Gestion de Empresas, S.A.” [a company
set up in 1885), which directly and indirectly holds 64.752% of the Company’s shares (2008,
64.752%) (Note 1). The remaining 35.248% (2008, 35,248%) of the shares is held by other
shareholders none of which holds 10% or more of share capital.

The direct shareholders of the CIE Automotive Group [including minority shareholders}, the Oirectors
and key management staff and close family are considered related parties.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:
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a)] Senior management remuneration and loans

The total remuneration paid in 2009 to senior management personnel, excluding that included in
Compensation paid to the members of the Board of Directors amounts to €2,360 thousand [2008

€2,131 thousand).

The Company has entered into no commitments relating to pensions or other t,ypes of complementary
retirement remuneration with senior management persannel,

During 2008 and 2008 moverments in loans to senior management personnel included in “Other non-
current assets” (Note S)were as follows

2009 2008
Opening balance 6,500 2,129
Advances and loans granted - 4,361
Interest charged 259 10

6,753 6,500

b) Transactions in the year with related parties

2009 2008
Business operations:
- Purchasas 83 374
- Services received 505 1,087

The balances outstanding with respect to these transactions, which are not significant, are recorded
under Note 21.

Compensation paid to the Directors of the parent company

Compensation paid to member of the Board of Directors

Total compensation paid to the entire Board of Directors, consisting of salaries, per diems and other
remuneration during 2009 amounted to €552 thousand {2008; €611 thousand].

The members of the Board of Directors have received no compensation in respect of bonuses or profit
sharing. Nor have they received shares, or sold or exercised stock options or other rights reiated to
pension plans or insurance policies in their favor.

Prepayments and loans to members of the Board of Directors

In 2009 the €2,204 thousand loan granted in 20D8 to Instituto Sectorial de Promocion y GGestién de
Empresas, 5.A. [INSSEC] was repaid.
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c) Article 127.ter, paragraph 4, of the Spanish Companies Act

The members of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors are not affected by any of the situations
mentioned in that Article.

The individual representing the director “Instituto Sectorial de Promocién y Gestion de Empresas, S.A.”
is indirectly a shareholder and director of “Corporacién Gestamp, S.L.” and several companies in which
this company has a holding. “Corporacion Gestamp, S.L.” is the parent of an industrial group that
largely carries on operations in the iron and steel market through the manufacture and marketing of
metal parts for the automaotive industry and the promotion, construction and operation of solar energy,
wind and hiothermal energy plants. The manufacture and marketing of parts for the automotive
industry is carried on through a subgroup of companies, the parent of which is “Gestamp Automocian,
S.L.”, which is 65.00% owned by “Corporacion Gestamp, S.L.”. “Corporacion Gestamp, S.L.” is also a
major shareholder of “Instituto Sectorial de Promaocion y Gestién de Empresas, S.A.”.

None of the remaining members of the Board of Directors or the relevant individual’s representatives
and related persons has an interest in the share capital or holds positions or offices in any company
that carries out activities in the sectors in which the CIE Automaotive group conducts its business
activities.

Two members of the Company’s Board of Directors are directors or hold management positions in the
Company's subsidiaries. Detailed information concerning these positions at 31 December 2009 is as
follows:

Name of the Director Name of the group company Position

Antonia Maria Pradera Jauregui Biocormmbustibies de Zierbana, S.A. Director
Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui CIE Autometal, S.A. . Director
Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui CIE Automotive Bioenergia, S.L. Chairman
Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui CIE Azkoitia, S.L. Chairman
Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui - CIE Bérriz de México, S.A. de C.V. ' Chairman
Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui gIE Bérriz de México Participaciones Industriales, S.A. de Chairman
N
Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui CEE/E!érriz de México Servicios Administrativos, S.A. de Chairman
c.V.
Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui Maquinados Automotrices y Talleres Industriales de Chairman
Celaya, S.A. de C.V.
Antonio Maria Pradara Jauregui CIE Bérriz, S.L. Chairman
Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui CIE Desc Automnative, S.A.P.l. de C.V. Vice-Chairman
Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui CIE Inversiones e Inmuebles, S.L.U. . Chairman
Ignacio Martin San Vicente Biocormbustibles de Guaternala, S.A. Vice-Chairman
Ignacio Martin San Vicente Blanking, S.A. de C.V. Director
tgnacio Martin San Vicente CIE Autometal, S.A. Director
Ignacio Martin San Vicente CIE Autormnotive Bioenergia, S.L. Director
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Name of the Director Name of the group company Pasition
tgnacio Martin San Vicente CIE Automotive Parts [Shanghai} Co, Ltd Director
ignacio Martin San Vicente CIE Azkoitia, S.L. Director
Ignacio Martin San Vicente CIE Bérriz de México, S.A. de C.V. Director
Ignacio Martin San Vicente EIIE,Bérr‘iz de Méxica Participaciones industriales, S.A. de Director
C.
lgnacio Martin San Vicente CIE Bérriz de Meéxica Servicios Administrativos, 5.A. de Director
C.V.
Ignacio Martin San Vicente Maquinados Automotrices y Talleres Industriales de Directar
Celaya, 8.A, de C.V,
Ignacio Martin San Vicente CIE Bérriz, S.L. Director
Ignacio Martin San Vicente CIE Celaya, 5.AP.l. de C.V. Director
lgnacio Martin San Vicente CiE Desc Automtive, S.A.P.L de C.V. Director
lgnacio Martin San Vicente CIE Inversiones e inmuebles, S5.L.U. Director
Ignacio Martin San Vicente Nugar, S.A.P.l. de C.V. Director
Ignacio Martin San Vicente Drganizacion ADTEC, S.A. de C.V. Directar
Ignacio Martin San Vicente Parcaser de México, S.A. de C.V. Director
Ignacio Martin San Vicente Pesimex, S.A. de C.V. Directar
Ignacio Martin San Vicente Pintura y Ensambles de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Director
Ighacio Martin San Vicente Pintura, Estampadoe y Montaje, S.A. de C.V. Director
Ignacio Martin San Vicente Plasfil Plisticos Da Figueira, S.A. Chairman
lgnacio Martin San Vicente Servicat Servicios Contables, Administrativos y Técnicos, Director

S.A. de C.V.

37. Joint ventures

The CIE Automotive group, through its subsidiary CIE Berriz, S.L., set up in February 2006 a “Joint
Venture” together with its Mexican shareholder KUO Automotriz, S.A. [controlled by DESC, 5.A.] in which
each has a 50% stake and which engages in the manufacture and marketing of automotive parts and /
or part components.

The transaction materialized through share capital increases to make the contribution to the joint venture
company CIE DESC Automotive, S.AP.| de C.V. (company created by both shareholders (50%]) in
December 2004) of all the shares in the Mexican company Pintura, Estampado y Montaje S.A.P.l. de
C.V. {until then whally owned by OESC Group and all of the shares in the Mexican company CIE Celaya
S.A.P.I. de C.V. [until then wholly owned by CIE Automotive Group) and a cash contribution of $22.3
million.

The total equity contributed by the CIE Automaotive group which amounted to €46.1 million records the
equity value of its subsidiary CIE Celaya, S.A. de G.V. (€27.7 million) and an amount in cash amounting to
€18.9 million.

At the end of 2008 the joint venture acquired 10% of the shares of the company Steel Wheels de
México, S.A. de G.V. (now Pintura y Ensambles de México, S.A. de C.V.], a holding company that only held
the shares in the company Stamping & Wheels, S.A. de G.V., which had previously been acquired by the
combined business in November 2006. The total acquisition cost of both companies was USD4 million.
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Additionally, in 2007 the Joint Venture acquired 100% of Nugar, S.A.P.I. de C.V. and its subsidiaries and
the business of the Durcplast group.

In March 2008 CIE BERRIZ, S.L. and KUD AUTOMOTR!Z, S.A. de C.V., both holding 50% of the “joint
venture” CIE DESC AUTOMOTIVE, 5.A. de C.V., entered into an agreement under which:

CIE BERRIZ, S.L., through its wholly-owned newly-formed subsidiary, CIE BERRIZ DE MEXICO, S.A.
de C.V. acquired 100% of the share capital of PINTURA Y ENSAMBLES DE MEXICO, S.A. de
C.V.,until then wholly-owned by CIE BESC Autcmctive, S.A.P.l. de C.V.

Simitarly, KUO AUTOMOTRIZ, S.A. de C.V. has granted a purchase option in favor of CIE BERRIZ,
S.L. so that it may itself or through the company it may freely designate, acquire 50% of the share
capital of CIE DESC AUTOMOTIVE, S.AP.l. de C.V. (the remaining 50% already pertained to ClE
Automotive Group]. The purchase option for the remaining 50% of CIE DESC Automotive, S.A.P.I.
de C.V. may be executed during the first quarter of 2008 and during the first quarter of 2010.
Furthermore, and within this context, CIE Bérriz, S.L. itself, or through another company it may
freely designate, may make partial acquisitions of subsidiaries of CIE BESC Automotive S.A.P.l. de
C.V. during the first quarter of 2003.

Within this acquisition option process (up until 2010] covering 100% of the shares in the *“Joint Venture”
CIE DESC Automotive, S.A.P.I. de C.V. agreed on 4 March 2008, the CIE Automotive Group has chosen
to partially exercise options and carried out the following transactions during the first half of 2008:

On 31 March 2009, through its whally owned investee company CIE Bérriz de México, 5.A. de C\V.,
formalized the acquisition from its 50% owned investee joint venture CIE DESC Automotive, S.A.P.1.

de C.V. of all the shares representing the share capital of the Mexican company CIE Celaya S.A.P.1.
de C.V.

In addition, on 25 May 2009, CIE Bérriz de México S.A. de C.V. acquired 100% of the share
capital of Pintura, Estampado y Montaje, S.A.P.l. de C.V., which until then had been wholly owned
by the 50% investee company CIE DESC Automotive, S.A.P.l. de C.V.

These business combinations are discussed in Note 35.

The amounts set out below represented the Group’s 50% stake in the assets and liahilities and revenues
and profits of the joint venture and business combinations [Notes 1 and 35). These amounts have been
included in the balances sheet at 31 Decermber 2003 and 2008.

2009 2008
Assets:
Non-current assets 8,749 37.622
Goadwill 16,291 15,832
Current assets 8,362 34,202
33,402 87,656
Liabilities:
Lang-term liabilities 268 4,193
Current liabilities 2,987 57 582
8,255 31,775
Net assets 25,147 55,881
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Joint revenues, expenses and profits for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2008 for the 50%
stake in CIE Group are as follows:

2009 2008
Revenues ) 39,015 88,534
Expenses (38,334} (93,083)
Profit after taxes 681 5,451

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the joint venture or contingent
liabilities in the joint venture itself.

On 1 September 2009, together with the Dutch investment fund VEP Fund | Holding Cooperative W.A.,
which is administered by Value Enhancement Partners, the Group has incorporated RS Automotive
B.V., a Dutch joint venture in which both partners hold 50%.

Also in September 2009 this Joint Venture carried out its first corporate transaction involving the
acquisition of a group of companies. This business combination is discussed in Note 35.

The amounts set out below represented the Group’s 50% stake in the joint venture’s assets and
liabilites and revenues and profits. These amounts have been included in the consolidated balance
sheet at 31 December 2009 and the consolidated income statement for the year:

2009

Assets:
Non-current. assets 10,645
Current assets _ 8,132

19,777
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities ] : 3,339
Current liabilities 9,462

12,801
Net assets 6,976
Revenues 15,613
Expenses (11,380)
Profit after taxes 4,233
Proportional interest in the cormmitments of the joint venture 50%

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the joint venture or contingent
liahilities in the joint venture itself.
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38. Other information
a) Fees of the auditors and group or related companies

The fees charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. for auditing the annual accounts for
2009 total €1,037 thousand (€1,225 thousand in 2008). This amount includes the auditing of the
annual accounts of the subsidiaries audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers for 2009.

Dther services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. and other firms associated with
the PricewaterhouseCoopers trademark have amounted to €42 thousand (2008, €189 thousand).

The fees with other firms for audit services relating to the annual accounts of other investees amount
to €114 thousand in 20039 {2008, €78 thousand).

b) Environmental issues

i] The parent company and subsidiaries have adapted their production facilities to meet the
reguirements of environmental legislation in the countries in which they are located.

i) Property, plant and equipment record the investments made in assets intended to minimize
environmental impact and to protect and improve the environment.

iil] The expenses deriving from environmental action incurred during the year basically relate to
waste removal expenses.

The Group’s property, plant and equipment include facilities aimed at environmental protection and
improvement. The Group also carties out work with own employees and external specialist support, as
part of the environmental strategic plan which has been implemented to minimize the environmental
risks associated with its operations and improve environmental management. The amounts of both the
investments made and the expenses accrued in 2008 in relation to environmental protection and
improvement have totaled €8.3 million [€3,4 million in 2008) and are recorded under the relevant
headings in “Property, plant and equipment” under assets in the accompanying balance sheet and
“Dther operating expenses” in the accompanying income statement.
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39. Events after the balance sheet date

On 28 January 2010, the Mexican group company GIE Bérriz de México, S.A. de C.V. concluded an
agreement with KUO Automotriz, S.A. de C.V., which pertains to Grupo KUO S.A.B. de C.V., to acquire
50% of the company ClE Desc Automotive, S.A.P.1. de C.V. (now CIE Automotive de México, S.A.P.l. de
C.V.]). Through this acquisition CIE Automotive Group obtained full ownership of the Mexican business
as it wholly acquired the joint venture CIE Desc Automaotive, S.A.P.I. de C.V. [Note 37).

The transaction will give rise to a payment of USD54.5 million by CIE Automotive Group (approximately
€38.7 million), which will be financed by CIE Group resources in America {basically consisting of the
companies included within this scope of consolidation) and will be paid in 2010 and 2011.

At the date these consolidated annual accounts were prepared, the Group is reorganizing its corporate
structure in the automotive businesses in Brazil and Mexico. As a result, during the first quarter of
2010 a corporate group led by the Brazilian company Autometal, S.A. will be created through the
contribution of shares in several Brazilian and Mexican companies, all of which are owned by various
subsidiaries of CIE Automotive, S.A. and which will contribute their financial interest in several share
capital increases carried out by Autometal, S.A.

The contributing companies are CIE Autometal, S.A. [which will contribute its shares in Autometal SBC
Injegdo, Pintura e Cromagio de Plasticos, Ltda., Autometal Investimentos e Iméveis, Ltda. and
Durametal, S.A.), CIE Inversiones e Inmuebles, S.L.U. {which will contribute its shares in the Brazilina
companies Jardim Sistemas Automotivos e Industriais, S.A., Metalargica Nakayone, Ltda. and
Componentes Automotivos Taubaté, Ltda. and the Mexican company CIE Bérriz de México, S.A. de C.V.)
and CIE Bérriz, S.L. {which will contribute its shares in the Meaxican company CIE Bérriz de México, S.A.
de C.V.}.
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% interest subgroup

CIE Automuotive fLevel 1) [Level 2)
Company Activity Address Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Auditor
CIE Azkoitia, S.L. (*]) Holding company Guipuzcoa 100% - - - - - PwC
CIE Legazpi, 8.A. Manufacture of automobile Guipuzcoa - 100% 100% - - - PwG
cornponents :
CIE Galfor, S.A. Manufacture of automobile  Orense - 92.84% 92.84% - - - PwG
components
Belgium Forge, N.V. [in liguidation) Manufacture of eutomobile Belgium - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
CIE Udalbide, 5.A., Sociedad Unipersonal Manufacture of automotile Vizcaya - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
CIE Mecauto, S.A., Sociedad Unipersanal Manufactire of automobile Alava - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
Mecanizaciones del Sur-Mecasur, S.A. Manufecture of automobile Cadiz - 100% 100% - - - PwG
components
Garneke Fabricacion de Componentes, S.A. Manufacture of eutomobila Alava - 100% 100% - - - PwG
components
GSB-TBK Autormotive Cormponents, S.L. Manufecture of eutornobila Barcelona - 75% 75% - - - PwG
companents
Grupo Componentes Vilanava, S.L. (*) Manufacture of automobile Barcelona - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components '
Tafleres Matrimold, S.L. Manufacture of automobile Barcelona - 100% - 100% $00% - PwG
) components
Fabricacién de Componentes del Motor, 5.L, Manufactore of automobile Barcelona - 100% - 100% 100% - -
components
Alfa Daco, 5.A.U. Manufactura of automobila Guipuzcoa - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
Alurecy, S.A.U. Manufacture of automobile Vizcaya - 100% 100% - - - -
components
Componentes de Automacisn Meanufactura of automobile Alava - 100% 100% - - - PwC
Racytec, S.L.U. components
Componentos de Direccisn Manufacture of automobile Navarre - 100% 100% - - - PwC
Hecylan, S.L.U. components
Nova Reeyd, S.A.U, Manufacture of sutomobile  Alava - 100% 100% - - - PwWC
components
Recyde, 5.A.U. [*] Manufacture of automobile Guipuzcoa - 100% 100% - - - PwC
componants
Hecycomex, 5.A. de C.V, Manufacture of automobile Mexico - 100% - 100% 100% - PwC
components
Recyda CZ, s.r.o. Manufacture of eutomobile  Czech Rep. - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
ClE Zdénice, s.r.o. Manufacture of sutomobile Czech Rep. - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components ’
Investigacion, Innovacién y Desarrollo Grupo Services and installations Alava - 100% 100% - - - -
Recyde, A.LE,
Alcasting Legutiano, S.L.U. Manufacture of automobile Alava - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
UAB CIE Lt Forge Manufacture of sutomobile Lithuania - 100% 100% - - - UAB-AY
components Auditas
CIE Bérriz, S.L. |*) Haolding company Vizcaya 100% - - - - - PwC
Egafia 2, S.L. Manufacture of sutomobile Vizcaya - 100% 100% - - - PwC
componants
Inyectametat, 5.A. Manufactore of automobile Vizcaya - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
Orbelin Plsticos, S.A. Manufacture of eutomokbila Guipuzcoa - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
Transformaciones Metalirgicas Norma, 5.A. Manufactore of automobile Guipuzcoa - 100% 100% - - - PwC
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LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

% effective interast in

% interest subgroup

% interest subgroup

CIE Automotive {Level 1) (Levai 2)
Company Activity Addreas Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Auditor
camponents
Tarabusi, 5.A. Manufacture of automobile Vizcaya - 100% 100% - - - PwGC
components
CIE Matricon, S.A. Meanufacture of automobile Homania - 100% 100% - - - Evalex
components
Plasfil Plasticos do Figueira, S.A. Manufacture of autumobile Portugal - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
CIE Metal CZ, s.r.o. Meanufacture of eutomobile  Gzech Rep. - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
CIE Plasty CZ, s.r.o. Manufacture of autbmobile  Czech Rep.. - 100% 100% - - - PwC
componants
CIE Unitools Press CZ, a.s. Manufacture of automebile  Czech Rep. - 100% 100% - - - Pw(
componznts
CIE Joamar, s.r.o. Manufacture of sutomaobile Czech Rep. - 100% 100% - - - -
components
Joamar Meroc, s.a.r.l. D’AU (1} Manufacture of sutomobile Morocco - 100% 100% - - - -
camponents
CiE Praga Louny, a.s. [*) Manufacture of automokila Czach Rep. - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
Praga Service, s.r.o, Instaliations Czech Rep. - 100% - 100% 100% - PwC
CiE DESC Autormotive, S.A.P.I. Meanufacture of eutormobile Mexico - 50% 50% - - - PwC
de C.V. (*) components
Nugar, S APLde CV. [} Manufacture of autumobile Mexico - 50% - 100% 100% - PwC
carnponents
Blanking, 5.A. de G.V. Menufacture of automobie Mexico - 50% - 100% - 100% PwC
cormponents
Organizacisn ADTEC, S.A, de C.V, Services and instaflations Maxico - 50% - 100% - 100% PwC
Percaser de México, S.A. de C.V. Services and instakations Mexico - 50% - 100% - 100% PwC
Pesimex, S.A. de C.V, Services and instafiations Mexico - 50% - 100% - 100% PwC
Servicat 5. Cont., Adm. yJ Téchicos, 5.4, de Services and instaltations Mexico - 50% - 100% 100% - PwC
CIE Bérriz de México, S.A. de C.V. [*) Holding company Mexico - 100% 10026 - - - PwGC
Pirtura y Ensambles de México, S.A. de C. V. Meanufacture of automabile Maxico - 100% B 100% 100% - PwC
<cOMponents
CiE Celaya, SA.FL de C. V. Menufacture of automachbile Mexico - 100% - 100% 100% - PwC
* components
Pintura, Estampado y Manufacture of automebile Meaxico - 100% - 100% 100% - Pwi
Montafe, S.A.P.1 de C. V. componants
Maquinadas Automotrices y Talleres Manufacture of automobile  Mexico - 100% - 100% 100% - -
hdustniales e Celays, 5.A. de C V. (1} components
CYE Bérriz México Participaciones Industriales, Services and installations Mexico - 100% - 100% 100% - -
SA de V. (1)
CIE Bérriz México Servicios Adrministretives, Services and installatians Mexico - 100% - 100% 100% - -
SA deCV. (1] .
CiE Autornotive Parts (Shanghai) Manufacture of autamobile China - 100% 100% - - - Shenghet
Ca., Ltd. components Huiya
Autokomp Ingenieria, S.A. Services and instofletions Vizcaya - 100% 100% - - - PwC
CIE Deutschland, GrmbH Services and nstakations Germany - 100% 1005 - - - -
CIE Autornative USA, Inc. Services and instalations u.s.A. - 100% 100% - - - -
Lesz Valorizacisn, S.L. (dormant) Waste management. and Vizceya - 100% 100% - - - -
valuation
CIE Cornpidgne, 5.A.S. Manufacture of automobile  France - 100% 100% - - - PwC
components
CIE Inversiones e k bles, §.L. Sociedad Holding cormpany Vizcaya 100% - - - - - PwC
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LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

“% effective interest in

% interest subgroup

% interest subgraup

CIE Automotive [Levet 1) [Level 2}
Company Activity Address Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Auditor
Unipersonal (*)
CIE Autormetal, S/A. {*) Holding company Brazi - 100% 100% - - - PwC

Autometal, G7A. Manufacture of automabile Brazil - 100% - 100% 100% - PwC

components

DOurarmetal, S/A. Manufacture of automobile Brazil - 50% B 50% 50% - PwC

companents

Actometal SBC Injeciic, Pinturs & Manufacture of sutomabile Brazil - 100% - 100% 10056 - PwC

Cromagio de Phisticos, Ltda. components

Autometal nvestirmentos e Services and installations Brazil - 100% - 100% 1009 - PwG

Iméveis, Lida.

Hipautn Participacdas, G/A. {*} Holding company Brazi - 75% - 75% 55% - PwC
Biosuto 5P Indéstria e Comércio Collection, recovery and Brazil - 75% - 75% B 100% PwC
de Biodiesei, Ltda. recycling of usad cils
Biosuto MT Agroindustrial, Ltda, Agrobiotechnalogy Brazil - 75% - 78% - 100% PwC
Mutumn Alcoo! Cormbustiveis e Energia, Blofuel production and sale  Brazil - 75% - 75% - 100% PwC
Ltda, {dormant}

Bivjan MT Agroindustrial, Ltda. {dormant)  Agrobiotachnology Brazil - 38.25% - aB.25% - 51% PwC
Componentes Autemotivos Holding compeny Brazi - 100% 100% - - -
Taubaté, Ltda, (*]
Autoforfas, Lkda. Meanufacture of automabile Brazi - 100% - 100% 10086 - PwC
components
Jardim Sistermae Autumabivos e Industriais, S/A. Manufacture of automabilz Brazl - 100% 100% - - - PwC
comgonents
Metatirgica Nekayone, Ltda. Manufacture of automohila Brazi - 100% 100% - - - PwG
components
RS Automotive B.V. (*) [1) Holding company Netherlands 50% - - - - - -
Advanced Comfort Systemns International B.V. (*)  Holding company Netheriands - 100% 100% - - - -
[

Advanced Comfort Systems tbérice, S.L.U. (1) Manufacturs of automobile Orense - - - 100% 100% - Oeloitte

caomponents

Advanced Comfort Systoms France, 5.A.G. (1) Manufacture of automobile  France - - - 100% 100% - Local

componants auditer

Advanced Comiort Systems Romenia, S.A.L. Manufacture of automobite Homania - - - 100% 100% - Evalex

1) components

Advancad Comfort Systams Shanghai Co. Lid Manufacture of automahile Czech - 100% 100% - - - -

{1 components Republic

CIE-Avtocorn Kaluga, LLC (1) Holding company RAussia 36% - - - - - -
CIEAvtocarm, LLC {1} Holding company Hussia 35% - - - - - -
CIE Automotive Bioenergia, S.L. (*] Holding company Vizcaya 80.50% - - - - - -
Bionor Transformacion, 5.A.U. {*) Holding company Vizcaya - B0.50% 100% - - - PwC

Bionor Berantevills, 5.L.U. Biofuel production and sale Alava - BO.60% - 100% 100% - PwC

Biasur Transformackn, S.L.U Biofuel production and sale Barcelons - BD.50% - 1005% 100% - PwC

Biocormbustibles de Zierbana, 5.A. Biofuel production end sale Vizcaya - 16.10% - 20% 20% - -

Via Operador Petrofifero, S.L.U, Biofual production and sale Barcelona - B0.50% - 100% 100% - PwC
Via Credit Car, S.L.U. Biofuel production end sale  Barcelona - 80.50% - 100% - 100% -
Via Estaciones, S.L.U. Biofuel production and sala Barceiona - B0.50% - 100% - 100% -
Global Petréleos, S5.A.U. Biofuel production and sale Barcelona - B80.50% - 100% - 100% PwC

Corniube, s.rf [*} Bipfuel production and sale Iely - 64.40% - BO% 80% - PwC
Giycoleo, s.rl. ([dormmant] Giycerine production and Iely - 41.05% - 51% - 51% -

sale

Biocornbustibles { a Seda, 5.1, Glycarine production and Barcelona - 32.2% - 40% 40% - B

sale

120.-
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% intarest subgroup

CiE Automotiva [Level 1) (Level 2}
Company Activity Address Direct Indiract: Direct Indirect Direct Indirect Auditor
Bianar Inversiones e Halding company Vizeays - 80.5% 100% 100% - -
Inmuebles, S.L. {*]
Naturoil Combustiveis Biofuel production and sale  Brazil - 80.5% 100% - 100% -
Renoviveis, S5/A.
Biarior Tecriologia, 5.L.U. Sarvices and instaliations Madrid - 80.5% 100% 100% - -
Reciclado de Residuos Marketing of fatty oils Madrid - 80.5% 100% 100% - -
Grases, 8.L.U. [Rasigras)}
Biacormbustibles de Gustemala, 5.A. Agrobiotechnology Guatarmala - 41.05% 51% 51% - Herrera £
Asociados
Gestisn de Aceftes Vegetales, 5.L. (GAVE} Marketing of fatty oils Madrid - 41.065% 51% 51% - PwC

{1} New companies included in consolidation in 2008,

{*] Parent of all investee companies appearing subsequently in the table.

121.-
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The development of CIE Automotive Group in 20083 is as follows:

CONSOLIDATED GROUP
(Thousand euro] 2009 2008

Consolidated revenues 1,149,013 1,455,310
Adjusted consolidated revenues 1,018,013 1,261,085
EBITDA 116,374 180,637
EBIT : 52,656 103,680
EBT 26,643 67,752
Reported profit for year 14,979 51,697
Profit from discontinued operations [6,94B6) -
Profit attributable to parent company 11,120 53,823

(*) Proforma information excluding sales of diesel for mixing

Business trends:

a

a

Despite the significant fall in sales due to the crisis, EBITDA was in the double digits and
improved throughout the year.
The recovery of the market and margins was maintained in 4608.

The containment of investments and the improvement in working capital alfowed net debt to
remain at 2008 levels, despite the sharp faff in EBITDA.

Results include a restructuring charge totaling €22 mifion and a €7 million loss on
discontinued operations. Both effects have been offsel by non-recurring profits, primarily a
€74 miflion gain on exchange differences. '

The financial information of the CIE Automotive group is presented for the Automotive and Biofuel
segments. Set out below is the performance of the business, differentiating between both activities.
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AUTOMOTIVE:

Two consecutive gquarters of recovery that indicate a return to normaicy.

AUTOMOTIVE
(Thousand euro) 2009 2008
Consolidated revenues 969,034 1,158,116
EBITDA 120,169 191,303
% EBITDA / consolidated revenues 12.4% 16.85%
EBIT 58,451 116,225
% EBITDA / consolidated revenues 6.0% 10.0%

Development of the market

Q Throughout the year there has been an evident improvement in the market, driven by
incentives in Eurgpe, Brazil and the United States (July and August].

a The destockage effect seems to have ended in mast segments and markets.

Q CIE's sales touched bottom in January,/February and from there have trended upwards.

Development of the business:

Q  Double digit profits and EBITDA, despite the 16% drop in sales.

a Different behavior depending on the geographic ares, with emerging markets, particularly
Brazil and Eastern Europe, offsetting weakness in other areas, particularly Western Europe.

a Significant reduction in variable and fixed costs during the year, adapting them to new demand
fevels,

d Eliminating non-recurring effects (in 40089 there is a €6 milfion loss], recurring EBITDA in the
final guarter totaled €40.8 million and recurring monthly EBITDA is €75.7 miflion, with a
14.5% margin.

BIOFUELS:
BIOFUELS
(Thousand euro) 2009 2008
Consolidated revenues 179,978 297,194
Adjusted consolidated revenues [*) 46,979 102,969
EBITDA (3,795) [1D,666)
EBIT ' [5,785) (12,565)

(*] Proforma information excluding sales of diesel for mixing
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Business trends.

] Price weakness throughout Europe due to imports and the entry of capacity into the market.

a Focus on Biodiesel production in Spain, especially based on recycled oils and other waste, and
investments in other activities were reduced.

Q  After the significant reduction in fixed costs in G408 profits were near zero, as was the case
the preceding quarter. EBITDA for the period +€0.5 miflion

AUTOMOTIVE: Action plan given the market situation in 2009

Throughout 2009 an action plan against the crisis was implemented and included the following

components:
1.
2.
3.

4,

R&D+i activities

Sales activities

Cost adjustment activities
Financial strengthening activities

1. R&D+ activities

Process,/product area:

>
>
»

»

Focus on reduction of consumption and emissions

Weight reduction

Leadership in high performance products and processes: Crankshafts, EPS,
Common Rail and new materials and technologies under development

Orders obtained for sales growth totaling €100 million.

New applications Area: EGR, pumps, motor tubes, Antivibration, Common Rail, Rack & Pinion,

etc...

2. Sales activities:

O In this market context there are significant sales opportunities deriving from the recession,
especially from the worse financial situation and strategic position affecting competitors.

O Creation of a special committee for effectively managing all offers.

O The strategy for flexible investments and multi-technology maintained by CIE make rapid
response very attractive for customers.

3. Cost adjustment activities

O An ambitious plan has been launched to reduce variable and fixed costs to adapt demand, in
order to maintain contribution margins.

YVVY

Adaptation of the production structures to the new demand situation.
Strengthening of activities with higher added value, particularly R&D+i in Spain.
Presence in countries with higher growth potential.

Reinforcement of group synergies
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4. Financial strengthening activities

Q Plan to reduce operating capital: 15 day reduction in stocks and special attention to
payment and collection dates:

Q Reduction of investments The market situation and flexibility of assets aliows the use of
existing free capacity for new projects.

O No distribution of dividends charged against 2008 profits in order to reinforce the
company's equity.

Q Signing of the Club Deal totaling €187.5 million involving a loan syndicated by the Company's
main banks.

0 Signature of the BEl loan (European Investment Bank) totaling €60 miltion.

BIOFUELS

O  The Biofuel sector continues to be a key response to future energy needs:

» Due to the need to reduce the consumption of fossil fuels,
» Due to environmental benefits.

0 Given the strong dependence on the volatility of commaodities prices and the excess installed
capacity for virgin oils the business model has been adapted to give priority to the production
of biodiesel in Spain, especially from waste, and investments in other activities have been
curtailed.

4d The first stage of the Berantevilla expansion is completed and the plant is capable of operating
with different raw materials: recycled oils, animal fats, cleines and, in general, highly acid fatty
waste.

Q  The expected reform of biofuel use and manufacture legislation couid change the strategy
applied.

QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENT

Management model

In March 20083, as a result of internal reflection, the management model was revised with respect
to the mission, vision, values and strategies to continue with the commitment to sustainability.

From a design point of view, which states: "Ensure ecodesign, considering environmental impacts
from the source. Oriented towards the use of materials in an efficlent manner to guarantee
disassembly and recycling”.

To, “Become a paradigm of sustainable compsnies due to a commitment with pegple, the
environment and the creation of value”.
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Management tools

CIE Automaotive has an integrated computerized system it uses as a management tool. In 2009 the
implementation of a guality module started, which will aliow for the full integration of articles being
purchased and sold, their manufacturing route and a control plan to ensure proper traceability.

In coming years this area will be expanded through the "AMFE" (Modal analysis of failures and
effects)

Continuous improvement

Within the framework of the AVANZA Program, Recognition activities, which successfully started in
2008 with the BS awards, will continue to recognize the work done in 2008S.

For this reason the decision has been made for "Recognition of improvement projects” in order to
evaluate the projects that plants launched at the start of the year and implemented over the course
of the year.

in April 2010 a benchmarking process is expected to take place to share among Group companies
projects and experiences and to perform a final evaluation involving recognition of the best projects
that were carried out in 2009. ‘

Of all indicators of continuous improvement, the following is notable within the area of customer
satisfaction:

e Customer claims: 17% reduction
e External PPM [number of parts rejected by customers per million parts delivered] 45%
' reduction :

Certificates

Advances have been made to obtain triple certification for all of our plants. During the year the
following certification was obtained:

iI50/TS

In Mexico at the PEMSA plant in Saltillo
In Brazi at Autometat Dias Davilas

IS0 14000

In Spain at Galfor
In Lithuania at LT Forge
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OHSAS 18000

In Spain at Tarabusi and Alfadeco

In France at CIE Compiegne

The R&D+i office obtained the 1SO 166002 certificate

The accompanying table shows the global situation of CIE Automotive

A';‘;::::'e Certified plants| ° tﬁi’;‘;'/
IS0,/TS 49 A7* 96%*
iS014001 a6+ 35 70%
OHSAS 46 0 50%

* CIE Joamar will join Plasty's certificate in 2010,
CIE MATIC must be active for 1 year in order to become certified and this will take place in

2010.
**  Matrimold, FCM, and GSB TBK including C.Vilanova.

Waste management

The waste management report for 2002 will be filed using the e-connect system, directly
connecting with the Basque Government, CIE Automotive is a pioneer in electronic reporting.

As the Spanish government expands advances, this will extend to all other plants.
Raw materials
The use of recycled materials or the recycling of in-house waste continues to be a key activity at ClE.

The aluminium division recycled 27,000 Mt of aluminium waste.
The biofuel division used 20,000 Mt of used vegetable oil, oleines and fatty acids.

R&D ACTIVITIES

2009 has been a challenge for the capacity of any company to develop and innovate, especially for
companies in the automotive industry. The world crisis joined up with the trends identified in 2D08
and made mobility challenges and a reduction of dependence on fossil fuels and efforts to reduce
greenhouse gases markedly more difficult and extra efforts have been made to juggle all of these
actions while ensuring competitiveness and market position.

Given CIE's clear vocation for R&D+, extra efforts were made to maintain all research lines open,
despite the cost pressures deriving from the fall in the sale of automobiles.
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Advances were made in the area of emissions reduction through reducing vehicle weight and
seeking a position with respect to components associated with fuel, aspiration and vehicle emission
control modules. From a technological point of view, these new developments are demanding the
use of components that are capable of supporting higher specific power while weighing less and
operating in more demanding environments from a thermal-mechanical wear-and-tear point of view.
Outside of the motor environment, special emphasis has been placed on the use of light alloys that
optimize weight while increasing safety in the event of a crash, particularly with respect to
pedestrians and a drastic reduction in the injuries caused is being sought.

The new technology needs demanded by new hybrid vehicles, chargeable hybrids and electric cars
are notable, where new characteristics of energy management and thermal controls are being
developed to satisfy our customers' specifications, as well as to resolve new challenges surrounding
the protection of batteries in pre-crash, crash and post-crash scenarios.

While seeking an increase in competitiveness we have developed and launched new technologies
that maximize the productivity of processes linked to plastic injection molding and subsequent
decorative processes, advanced shaping of sheet metal and pipes, forging, high added value
mechanization, aluminium work and ferrous materials. All CIE Automotive locations seek innovations
that differentiate the company from the competition.

To this end we have worked on in-house development projects in various internal areas and with
partners on the local, regional, national and international level in which the entire value chain
participates, with a particular focus on the demands of final customers and OEM.

The efforts and clear focus of R&D+i as a motor driving the strategic business have, over the past

few years, caused CIE Automotive to have invested 2.2% of sales and in 2009 the same figure in
absolute terms was applied to this area.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON THE AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE’S
ACTIONS FOR 2009

In accordance with the provisions of Article 31 bis of the Companys bylaws
(included in accordance with the amendment to the bylaws approved by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting of 24 June 2003], the Company's Board of Directors relies
on the Audit and Compliance Committee (with respect to the functions set out in
Article 31 bis of the Company’s bylaws and Article 3 of the Regulations on the Audit
and Compliance Committee). This Committee has been arranged to serve the
Board of Directors.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of CIE Automotive, S.A. approved the
Regulations of the Audit and Compliance Committee and designated its members in
the meeting of 24 June 2003. On 26 April 2007 the Company's Board of
Directors appointed to said Committee the following directors: Mr Juan Luis
Ramirez Belaustegui (President], ADDVALIA CAPITAL, S.A. (represented by Ms
Maria Teresa Salegui Arbizu) and SALTEC PARTICIPADAS, S.L. {represented by Mr
Bernardino Diaz-Andreu Garcia), who continue to perform their functions at the
date of this report.

The Audit and Compliance Committee has met on 5 occasions during 2009 and on
one occasion in 2010 (25 February 2010) before the preparation of the annual
accounts for 20083.

The Audit and Compliance Committee has carried out all its functions and during
the meetings held this year addressed the issues set out below. The table sets out
the articles of the Audit and Compliance Committee’s Regulations which contain the
functions performed by it:

Audit and Compliance Commission main actions in 2009

Actions [Audit and Compliance

Commission functions) Art, Dates dd/mm/yy

Analysis of Annual Accounts 3w RP4/02/2008 25/02/2010

Carporate Governance Report 3x] 24/02/2004 2b/02/2010

Audit and Compliance Commission

Activities Report 3ix) R24/02/2008 25/02/2010

Regular Public Reporting 3vi) 24/02/2008 22/04/2009 21/07/2009 28/10,/2009

Audit Procedures ) e24/02/2009 22/04,/2009 21/07/2008 PB/10/2009 17/02/2009

Internal Cantral Plan 3tiii) 17,02/2009
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As may be observed, the Audit and Compliance Committee’s main actions in
relation to the year ended 31 December 2003 were as follows:

(a]

(b)

(c)

Analysis of Regular Public Reporting, prior to its sending to the National
Securities Market Commission and the governing companies of the
Bilbac and Madrid Stock Exchanges for the second half of 2008
[(meeting of 24 February 2003), first quarter of 2009 {22 April
2009), first half of 2008 (21 July 2009), and third quarter of 2008
(28 October 2009).

Following the analysis performed, and in all instances, the Audit and
Compliance Committee approved the mandatory report relating to Regular
Public Reporting which was at all times submitted to the Board of Directors
together with the aforementioned information for approval and reporting to
the Stock Markets.

On 25 February 2010, the Committee analyzed the information relating to the
Annual Financial Report for 2008 (there being no need to specifically analyze
the information for the second half of 2009 in accordance with  Article 11 of
Royal Decree 1362,/2007, of 19 October 2007).

Analysis of the annual accounts (balance sheet, income statement,
cash flow statement and statement of changes in eguity and notes)
and Directors’ report of CIE Automotive, S.A. and its consolidated group
for the year ended 31 December 2008 (meeting of 24 February
20049], and the proposed distribution of results.

Following the analysis performed, the Audit and Compliance Committee
approved the mandatory report relating to said annual accounts (balance
sheet, income statement and notes]) and Directors’ Report which was
submitted to the Board of Directors prior to their preparation.

During its first meeting of 2010, the Committee analyzed the annual accounts
and directors’ report (that includes the special report laid down in  Article
116bis of Law 24,/1988 on the Securities Market and Annual Corporate
Governance Report), for the year ended 31 December 20039 and issued the
mandatory report on the same.

Follow-up of external audit procedures: Meetings have been held with the
external auditors of CiE Automotive, S.A. and subsidiaries in order to plan and
analyze the procedures and results (both preliminary and final) of the external
audit of the year ended 31 December 2008, as well as the planning and
analysis of the preliminary procedures and resuits of the external audit of the
year ended 31 December 2009. The Audit and Compiiance Committee has
also reviewed the recommendations made by the external auditors with
respect to accounting issues and the situation of systems and procedures for

Audit and Complisnce Committee
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preparing and managing financial information by each company forming part of
CIE Automotive Group.

(d) Preparation of an “INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN" for 2010-2012, determining its
content, objectives and priorities, organization and support structure and, in
particular, the work plan for 2010. This was the purpose of the meeting held
on 17 December 2008.

Similarly, external auditors have been designated in various subsidiaries, their
fees approved and their independence safeguarded.

In Bilbao, on 25 February 2010

Audit and Control Committee
of the Board of Directors of CIE Automotive, S.A.

Audit and Compliance Commmittee
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EXPLANATORY REPORT ON THE ASPECTS ENVISAGED IN ARTICLE 116 OF
THE LAW ON THE SECURITIES MARKET FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2009

In accordance with Article 116 bis of Law 24,/1988, of 28 July 1998 on the
Securities Market, introduced by Law 6/2007, of 12 April 2009, the Board of
Directors of CIE Automotive, S. A. (hereinafter “CIE Automotive” or the
“Company ”] agreed, in the meeting of 26 February 2010, to make avaitable to the
shareholders the present explanatory report that, in accordance with said provision,

are included in the Directors’ Reports complementary to the annual accounts for
2009.

The capital structure, including securities traded on a Community regulated
market, indicating, where appropriate, the different classes of shares and for
each class of shares, the rights and obligations granted and percentage of
capital represented.

At 31 December 2009 the share capital of CIE Automotive, S.A. consists of
114,000,000 shares with a par value of 0.2b euro each, fully subscribed and paid
in, of a single class and series and conferring the same rights and obligations to all
shareholders.

b} Restriction on the transfer of shares.
There are no statutory restrictions on the transfer of the stock representing capital.

Nonetheless, and as a listed company, the acquisition of significant holdings must be
reported to the issuer and National Securities Market Commission, in accordance
with Article 53 of Law 24,/1988 governing the Securities Market, contained in
Royal Decree 1362/2007, of 19 October 2007 and National Securities Market
Circular 2/2007, of 18 December 2007, under which 3% of capital or voting rights
is envisaged as the first notification ceiling.

Lastly, and also as a listed company, the acquisition of a shareholding or voting rights
of 30% or more in the Company triggers the obligation to prepare a Public Offering in
the terms contained in Article 60 of Securities Market Law 24 ,/1988.
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Number of shares 114,000,000
Par value: 0,25 Euros per share
Share capital: 28,500,000 (Euros)

st
SALTEC, S.L.U 14,082,680 0O 44,802,690 12.985% 3,700,672,50
INSSEC PARTICIPADAS, 51U, . ) 10 D 10 0.000% 2,50
INSTITUTD SECTORIAL [JE PROMOCION Y GESTION OE EMPRESAS, 5.A. (*] 59,014,305 14,802,700 73,817,005 64.752% 18,454.251,25
GMC DEVELDPMENT GAPITAL FUND, Fic 5,758,264 D 5,758,264 5.051% 1,439,566,00
AODVALIA CAPITAL, S.A, 5,723,491 o 5,723,481 5.021% 1.430,872,75
COMPARIA ANDALUZA OE RENTAS E INVERSIONES, S.A. 5,700,000 0 5,700,000 5.000% 1,425,000,00
IBERIAN CARITAL (GP) ILTD u] 5,688,536 5,686,536 4.997% 1.424,134,00
BESTINVER GESTION, S.A,, S.G..I.C. u] 3,974,898 3,874,888 3.487% 893,724,560

[*] The indirect hoiding of INSTITUTO SECTORIAL DE PAOMOCCION Y GESTION DE EMPRESAS, S.A. (INSSEC) is fully owned through SALTEC, S.L. and INSSEC
PARTICIPADAS, S.L,U, both owned at 100% by INSSEG

d} Restrictions on voting rights

There are no restrictions to voting rights.
e} Non-business agreements.

The Company has no knowledge of the existence of any quasi-corporate pacts in CIE
Automotive, S.A.

f] Rules applicable to the appointment and replacement of members of the
Board of Directors and the amendment of the Company's bylaws.

Appointment of the members of the Board of Directors

The appointment of the members of the Board of Directors is the responsibility of the
General Shareholders’ Meeting, without prejudice to the power of the Board to
designate members by co-option in the event of vacancies.

To this effect, Article 23 of the Bylaws lays down that:

‘2. In order to be appointed a member of the administrative body, it is not
required to be a shareholder.

3. The members of the administrative body shall hold office for five years and
may be re-elected once or more times for equivalent periods.

4. The members of the administrative body designated by co-option shall hold
their position untif the first General Shareholders’ Meeting.
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5. The members of the administrative body shalf cease to hold office when so
decided by the General Shareholders’ Meesting, when they report their
resignation to the Company and when the period of their appointment elapses.
In this latter case, their resignation shall be take effect on the day on which the
following General Shareholders WMeeting is held or once the legal term for
holding the Meeting to approve the previous year's annual accounts elapses.”

Similarly, Article 18 of the regulations of the Board of Directors lays down the
following:

‘Article 18. Appointment of Directors.

1.- The Directors shall be designated by the General Shareholders’ Mesting or
by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Spanish Companies Act.

2.- The proposal for the appointment of Directors submitted by the Board of
Directors to the General Shareholders’ Meeting for consideration and the
resolutions concerning appointments adopted by that body by virtue of the
powers of co-option legally attributed to it shall be preceded by the relevant
report from the Appointment and Rermuneration Committee. \When the Board
disagrees with said report, it shall set out the reasons for its decision and place
them on record.”

Removal of Members of the Board of Directors:

Article 22 of the Board of Directors Regulations governs the instances of resignation
of the Board members of CIE Automotive, S.A.

“Article 85. Removal of Directors

1.- The resignation of the Directors or any of them shall take place in the terms
of applicable legislation.

2.- The Directors shall offer their resignation to the HBoard of Directors and
formalize it , if deemed advisable by the same, in the following cases :

al in the case of domanial directors, when he or the shareholder that he
represents transfers his shareholding in the company.

bl In the case of execulive directors, provided that the Board considers it
appropriate and in any event, when he no longer holds his executive position in
the company and/ or companies of the group.
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c] When they are immersed in some fegal confiict of mterest or prohibition.
d] When they are tried for an alleged offence or are subject to disciplinary
proceedings owing to a serious or very serious infringement of legisiation,

instigated by the supervisory authorities.

g] In the case of delegated directors, they shall resign at 65 but may continue
as Directors without prejudice to the provisions of paragraph b) above.

] When they are seriously reprimanded by the Board of Directors following a
report from the Audit and Compliance Committee owing to the breach of their
obhigations as Directors.”

Amendment of the Company's Bylaws

The procedure for amending the Bylaws is regulated by Article 144 of the Spanish
Companies Act, which is common to all companies and requires the approval of
Shareholders at a General Meeting, with the majority votes established by Article 103
of that law.

The competencies of the Meeting contained in Article 9 of the Bylaws and 5 of the
General Shareholders’ Meetings’ regulations, expressly include the amendment of the
Bylaws without different majorities than those contained in the Law.

g} The powers of the members of the Board of Directors and in particular, those
relating to the possibility of issuing or repurchasing shares

All the powers of the Board of Directors have been delegated to the Managing Director
of CIE Autormnative S.A. except thase that may not be delegated by law.

The General Shareholders’ Meeting of 24 April 2007 delegated to the Board of
Directors the power to increase share capital to €14,250,000, in accordance with
Article 153.1. b] of the Spanish Companies Act, with substitution authaority, attributing
to it, moreover, the power to exclude preferential subscription rights, in accordance
with Article 159.2 of the same Law.

With respect to the powers to acquire treasury shares, the General Shareholders’
Meeting held on 22 April 2009 authorized the Board of Directors so that, in
accardance with Article 75 et seqg. of the Spanish Companies Act, it may carry out the
derivative acquisition of shares in CIE Automative, S.A. The maximum number of
shares to be acqguired shall not exceed, together with those already held by the
acquiring Company and subsidiaries, the legal limit, set at 5% of capital in Additional
Provision One of the Spanish Companies Act. From the time Law 3,/2009 (3 April), on
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structural madifications to companies, entered into force, the limit on shares to be
acquired, added to those already held by the acquiring company and its subsidiaries,
must not exceed the new legal limit established at 10% of the company's share capital.

The authorization is in force for 5 years as from the time the General Meeting is held,
once Law 3/2008 {3 Apri), on modifications to corporate structures enters into
force.

h} Significant agreements concluded by the Company that may come into effect,
may be amended or terminated in the event of a change of control in the
Company as a result of a takeover bid and their effects, except when disclosure
may have a serious adverse effect on the Company. This exception is not
applicable as the Company is obligated by law to make this information public.

There are no significant agreements concluded by the Company that may come into
effect, may be amended or terminated in the event of a change in control in the
Company as a result of takeover bid.

i] Agreements between the Company and its administrative and management
personnel or employees that provide for indemnities in the event of resignation
or unfair dismissal or if the employer/ employee refation ends as a result of
takeover bid.

The legal and other effects that may derive from the extinguishment of the relationship
that links the personnel of CIE Automotive to the Company are not uniform but logicaily
vary depending on the personnel involved, position held or work carried out by the
employee, the type of contract with the company, legislation applicable to the
employer/ employee relation and other factors. Nonetheless, generally speaking, a
distinction may be drawn with respect to the following:

a) Employees: For employees linked to CIE Automotive through an ordinary employer/
employee relation, as is the case of practically all the Company’s employees, generally
speaking, employment contracts linking employees to the company do not contain any
indemnity clauses owing to the termination of the employer/ employee relation and
therefore the employee shall be entitled to the indemnity that may be applicable under
employment legislation, irrespective of the reason for the termination of his contract.

b) Senior Management Personnel: For personnel linked to CIE Automotive under a
special senior manager contract, there are instances in which the contract lays down
no indemnity for the extinguishment of the employer/ employee relation and therefore
the manager shall be entitled, if appropriate, to the indemnity provided in legislation
governing the special senior manager relation. In this regard, it should be borne in
mind that Royal Decree 1382/1885, of 1 August 1985, governing Special Senior
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Manager Relations, provides, in Article 10.3, that the senior manager may extinguish
the special employment contract with the right to the agreed indemnities, and in the
absence thereof, of those laid down herein in the event of extinguishment by the
company, owing to, inter alia, a major change in the ownership of the company, leading
to the renewal of its governing bodies or in the content and focus of its core activities,
provided that the extinguishment takes place within three months of such changes.

In addition to these, there are other managers whose contracts recognize the right to
an indemnity in the event of the extinguishment of the employer/ employee relation for
certain reasons. This indemnity is normally set individually for each senior manager in
accordance with his professional circumstances and the relevance and responsibility
attaching to the position held in the Company.

c) Executive Directors: In relation to the Executive Director, the contract governing the
performance of his management duties other than those of his decision- making as a
member of the Board of the Directors, is for an indefinite time period. Nonetheless,
the extinguishment of the relation does not give rise to any right to economic
compensation.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting on 26 February
2010.

Indicate whether any Directors have voted against or abstained in connection with the
approval of this Report.

Yes [ No X

Name of the Director who did not vote to Reasons Explain the
approve this report (opposition, reasons
‘ abstention, failure
to attend the
meeting)
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND CONSOLIDATED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR 20089

In compliance with the provisions of Article 171.1 of the current Spanish Gompanies Act (“Ley de
Sociedades Andnimas”), the Directors forming part of the Board of Directors of CIE AUTOMOTIVE,
$.A. and SUBSIDIARIES have prepared the consolidated annual accounts and the consolidated
Directors’ Report for CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. and SUBSIDIARIES for 2008, consisting of and
identified as follows:

» The content of the commentaries which is printed on government fiscal paper, class 8, numbers
047897001 and 0J7897002.

» The Balance sheet which is printed on government fiscal paper, class 8, numbers 0J7887003
and 0J7887004.

e The Income Statement and the Overall income Statement which are printed on government
fiscal paper, class 8, numbers 0J7897005 and 0J78970086.

e The Statement of Changes in Equity which is printed on government fiscal paper, class 8,
numbers 0J7897007 and 0J7837008.

e The Cash flow statement which is printed on government fiscal paper, class 8, number
0J7887008.

e The notes to the annual accounts which are printed on government fiscal paper, class 8,
numbers 0J7897010 and 0J7897123.

e The Directors’ Report, which the Annual Report on the Audit and Compliance Committee's
Actions and Explanatory Report on the Aspects Envisaged in article 116 of the Law on the
Securities Market includes, is set out on government fiscal paper, class 8, numbers
0J7887124 and 0J7897139.

* In compliance with the provisions of Article 171.2, the Directors declare that they have signed
each of the above-mentioned sheets and signed these sheets of government fiscal paper, class
8, numbers 0J78397285 and 0J7897286.

Similarfy, the Company's Directors declare that, to the best of their knowledge, the annual accounts
prepared in accordance with applicable accounting principles present fairly the financial position and
results of the issuer and companies included in the consolidation taken as a whole and that the
directors’ report includes an fair analysis of the performance and results of the business and
position of the issuer and companies included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties which they face,

In Bilbao, on 26 February 2010
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CIE AUTOMOTIVE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND CONSOLIDATED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR 2009

SIGNATORIES:

Mr. Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui {Chairman)

ELIDOZA PROMOCION DE EMPRESAS, S.L., represented by
Ms Goizalde Egaiia Garitagoitia (Jsputy Chairman)

Mr Ignacio Martin San Vicente
(Managing Director]

Mr Juan Luis Ramirez Belaustegui [Director)

NMr Fermin del Rio Sanz de Acedo
{Director}

ADDVALIA CAPITAL, S.A., represented by
Ms Maria Teresa Salequi Arbizu [Jirector)

COMPANIA ANDALUZA DE RENTAS E INVERSIONES, S.A.,
represented by Mr Juan Salido Freyre (Diractor)

INSSEC PARTICIPADAS, S.L. represented by
Mr Miguel Angel Planas Segurado (Director]

INSTITUTO SECTORIAL DE PROMOCION Y GESTION DE
EMPRESAS, 5.A., represented by
Mr Francisco José Riberas Mera [Director]

GMC DIRECTORSHIPS, S.L., represented by
Mr Jacobo Llanza Figueroa (Direcior]

SALTEC, S.L., represented by
Mr Cristian Abellé Gamazo [Director/

SALTEC PARTICIPADAS, S.L, represented by
Mr Bernardino Diaz-Andreu Garcia [Director/




